T™ILLINGDON

LONDON

Major Applications

Planning

Committee

Date: WEDNESDAY, 2 AUGUST
2017

Time: 6.00 PM

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 5 -

CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH
STREET, UXBRIDGE UBS8

1UW
Meeting Members of the Public and
Details: Press are welcome to attend

this meeting

This Agenda is available online at:

Public Document Pack

To Councillors on the Committee

Councillor Edward Lavery (Chairman)
Councillor lan Edwards (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor Jazz Dhillon

Councillor Janet Duncan

Councillor Henry Higgins

Councillor John Morgan

Councillor John Oswell

Councillor Brian Stead

Councillor David Yarrow

Published: Tuesday, 25 July 2017

Contact: Luke Taylor
Tel: 01895 250 693
Email: ltaylor3@hillingdon.gov.uk

http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?Cld=325&Year=0

Lloyd White

Head of Democratic Services

London Borough of Hillingdon,

3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW
www. hillingdon.gov.uk

Putting our residents first



Useful information for
residents and visitors

Watching & recording this meetin _

g g g Watch a [®)73d broadcast of this
You can watch the public (Part 1) part of this meeting meeting on the Council's YouTube
on the Council's YouTube channel, live or archived Channel: Hillingdon London
after the meeting. Residents and the media are also
welcome to attend in person, and if they wish, report Zhose fllttslrl\?ilng shguld bed aware tf;}t the

H H H H OunNCil WIll TitmM and recorad proceeaings

on the, pu.bllc part of the mee_tmg' Any mgllwdual or for both official record and resident digital
organisation may record or film proceedings as long engagement in democracy.
as it does not disrupt proceedings.

It is recommended to give advance notice of filming to ensure any particular requirements can be
met. The Council will provide seating areas for residents/public, high speed WiFi access to all
attending and an area for the media to report. The officer shown on the front of this agenda should
be contacted for further information and will be available to assist.

When present in the room, silent mode should be enabled for all mobile devices.

Travel and parking i ]

Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, with

0
the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a short wa \,)/>
away. Limited parking is available at the Civic 1 Unbridg

Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at the %&Ega ﬁ

Centre. For details on availability and how to book rube and b

. . . Paviligns ™
parking space, please contact Democratic Service shogging sagions <
Please enter from the Council’s main reception Centre / r—LJ Intu =

where you will be directed to the Committee Roon

Accessibility

For accessibility options regarding this agenda
please contact Democratic Services. For those
hard of hearing an Induction Loop System is
available for use.

Mizinning

car park

Emergency procedures

If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarn
EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt.
Fire Marshal or Security Officer. In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued
via the tannoy, a Fire Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs,
should make their way to the signed refuge locations.



A useful guide for those attending Planning Committee meetings

Security and Safety information

Fire Alarm - If there is a FIRE in the building the
fire alarm will sound continuously. If there is a
SECURITY INCIDENT follow the instructions issued
via the tannoy, a Fire Marshall or a Security
Officer.

Mobile telephones - Please switch off any mobile
telephones before the meeting.

Petitions and Councillors

Petitions - Those who have organised a petition of
20 or more people who live, work or study in the
borough, can speak at a Planning Committee in
support of or against an application. Petitions
must be submitted in writing to the Council in
advance of the meeting. Where there is a
petition opposing a planning application there is
also the right for the applicant or their agent to
address the meeting for up to 5 minutes.

Ward Councillors - There is a right for local
councillors to speak at Planning Committees about
applications in their Ward.

Committee Members - The planning committee is
made up of the experienced Councillors who meet
in public every three weeks to make decisions on
applications.

How the Committee meeting works

The Planning Committees consider the most
complex and controversial proposals for
development or enforcement action.

Applications for smaller developments such as
householder extensions are generally dealt with
by the Council’s planning officers under delegated
powers.

An agenda is prepared for each meeting, which
comprises reports on each application

Reports with petitions will normally be taken at
the beginning of the meeting.

The procedure will be as follows:-

1. The Chairman will announce the report;

2. The Planning Officer will introduce it; with a
presentation of plans and photographs;

3. If there is a petition(s), the petition organiser
will speak, followed by the agent/applicant
followed by any Ward Councillors;

4. The Committee may ask questions of the
petition organiser or of the agent/applicant;

5. The Committee debate the item and may seek
clarification from officers;

6. The Committee will vote on the
recommendation in the report, or on an
alternative recommendation put forward by a
Member of the Committee, which has been
seconded.

About the Committee’s decision

The Committee must make its decisions by
having regard to legislation, policies laid down
by National Government, by the Greater London
Authority - under ‘The London Plan’ and
Hillingdon’s own planning policies as contained
in the ‘Unitary Development Plan 1998’ and
supporting guidance. The Committee must also
make its decision based on material planning
considerations and case law and material
presented to it at the meeting in the officer’s
report and any representations received.

Guidance on how Members of the Committee
must conduct themselves when dealing with
planning matters and when making their
decisions is contained in the ‘Planning Code of
Conduct’, which is part of the Council’s
Constitution.

When making their decision, the Committee
cannot take into account issues which are not
planning considerations such a the effect of a
development upon the value of surrounding
properties, nor the loss of a view (which in itself
is not sufficient ground for refusal of
permission), nor a subjective opinion relating to
the design of the property. When making a
decision to refuse an application, the Committee
will be asked to provide detailed reasons for
refusal based on material planning
considerations.

If a decision is made to refuse an application,
the applicant has the right of appeal against the
decision. A Planning Inspector appointed by the
Government will then consider the appeal.
There is no third party right of appeal, although
a third party can apply to the High Court for
Judicial Review, which must be done within 3
months of the date of the decision.



Agenda

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

1  Apologies for Absence
2 Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting
3  Matters that have been notified in advance or urgent

4  To confirm that the items marked in Part 1 will be considered inpublic
and those items marked in Part 2 will be heard in private

PART | - Members, Public and Press

ltems are normally marked in the order that they will be considered, though the
Chairman may vary this. The name of the local ward area is also given in addition to the
address of the premises or land concerned.

Major Applications with a Petition

Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page

5 | Former Garage Site, Hillingdon | Proposed demolition of the 1-26

R/O 6 - 16 Nelsons East existing garage blocks and

Road, Hillingdon erection of six houses with rear| 150 - 165
dormers, parking spaces, all

72704/APP/2017/1068 associated external works and

changes to the front and rear
gardens of 13 Nelson Road to
widen the existing access.

Recommendation: Approval

Major Applications without a Petition

Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page
6 | Vyners School, Ickenham | Extension to sports hall to create a | 27 - 80
Warren Road, new two-storey teaching block
Ickenham comprising classrooms, dining | 166 - 188
room, library, admin space and
4514/APP/2017/1771 ancillary facilities; provision of new

All Weather Pitch; reconfiguration
of parking layout and reversal in
direction of existing vehicular one-
way system; increased cycle
parking; landscaping; creation of
off-site cricket run; and associated
development.

Recommendation: Approval




Little Britain Lake Uxbridge | Proposed footbridge over the 81-98
(Footbridge), Packet South River Colne at the north end of
Boat Lane, Cowley Little Britain Lake. 189 - 195
52368/APP/2017/1844 Recommendation: Approval
Prologis Park, Horton Yiewsley | Section 73 application for variation | 99 - 140
Road, Yiewsley of Conditions 5 (approved

drawings), 6 (approved 196 - 217

37977/APP/2017/1634

documents), 25 (insertion of
mezzanine floors) and 27 (use as
date centre) as attached to
planning permission ref:
37977/APP/2015/1004 dated
14/12/2015: Hybrid Application for
the phased comprehensive
redevelopment of the site to
provide an overall maximum gross
floorspace of 45,000sgm of light
industrial uses (Use Class B1c
and/or Use Class B2) and/or
storage and distribution uses (Use
Class B8) and ancillary offices,
together with servicing, parking,
access roads and open space. Full
planning permission is sought for
Phase 1 containing 18,900sgm of
floorspace in two buildings up to
16.2m in height (to ridge), together
with associated highways works,
open space, hard and soft
landscaping, car parking and
associated infrastructure. Outline
planning permission is sought for
Phase 2 for up to 26,100sqm of
floorspace with all matters, except
for access, reserved for later
determination.

Recommendation: Approval




9 | Concrete Batching Out of Importation, storage and onward | 141 - 148

Plant, Site at Thorney Borough | distribution of rail borne

Mill Road, Outborough aggregates together with the | 218 - 224
erection and use of a concrete

39707/APP/2017/2356 batching plant and associated

infrastructure at Thorney Mill
Sidings, Thorney Mill Road, Iver
(Consultation by Buckinghamshire
County Council).

Recommendation: Refusal

PART | - Plans for Major Applications Planning Committee 149 - 224




Agenda ltem 5

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address FORMER GARAGE SITE R/O 6-16 NELSON ROAD HILLINGDON

Development: Proposed demolition of the existing garage blocks and erection of 6 houses
with rear dormers, parking spaces, all associated external works and
changes to the front and rear gardens of 13 Nelson Road to widen the existing
access.

LBH Ref Nos: 72704/APP/2017/1068

Drawing Nos: 2016D176P15 - Design and Access Statement
2016D176P02 - Existing Site Plan
2016D176P04 - Block A - Ground and First Floor Plans
2016D176P05 - Block B - Ground and First Floor Plans
2016D176P06 - Block A - Loft & Roof Plans
2016D176P07 - Block B - Loft and Roof Plan
2016D176P08 - Block A - Elevations - 1 of Z
2016D176P09 - Block A - Elevations - 2 of Z
2016D176P10 - Block B - Elevations
2016D176P11 - Proposed Typical Sections
2016D176P12 - Arboricultural Impact Assessment
2016D176P13 - Tree Constraints Plan
2016D176P14 - Proposed Access Road and Gates
2016D176P01 - Site Location Plan
2016/D176/P/03 Revision B - Proposed Site Plan

Date Plans Received: 23/03/2017 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 23/03/2017
Date Application Valid: 24/03/2017 05/07/2017
1. SUMMARY

The proposed development represents an efficient and suitable use of the currently
derelict land. The proposed dwellings benefit from adequate parking provision and
satisfactory access arrangements.

The development will relate sympathetically towards the surrounding area and similar
nearby developments such as that at Nelson Lane.

The development complies with relevant planning policies and SPD standards in terms of
relationship with surrounding residential properties and the living conditions of future
occupants of the development.

It is therefore recommended that the application is approved, subject to the conditions set
out in this report.

2. RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 SPO1 Council Application Standard Paragraph

This authority is given by the issuing of this notice under Regulation 3 of the Town and
Country Planning General Regulations 1992 and shall enure only for the benefit of the

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 1



land.

2 COM3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

3 COM4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers:-

2016D176P01 - Site Location Plan;

2016D176P03 Revision A - Proposed Site Plan;
2016D176P04 - Block A - Ground and First Floor Plans;
2016D176P05 - Block B - Ground and First Floor Plans;
2016D176P06 - Block A - Loft & Roof Plans;
2016D176P07 - Block B - Loft and Roof Plan;
2016D176P08 - Block A - Elevations - 1 of 2;
2016D176P09 - Block A - Elevations - 2 of 2;
2016D176P10 - Block B - Elevations;

2016D176P11 - Proposed Typical Sections;
2016D176P13 - Tree Constraints Plan;

2016D176P14 - Proposed Access Road and Gates;

and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2016).

4 COM5 General compliance with supporting documentation

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the following has been
completed in accordance with the specified supporting plans and/or documents:

2016D176P12 - Arboricultural Impact Assessment;
2016D176P15 - Design and Access Statement;
2016D176P16 - Tree Impact Survey

Thereafter the development shall be retained/maintained in accordance with these details
for as long as the development remains in existence

REASON
To ensure that the development complies with the the provisions Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2016).

5 OM20 Grampian Planning Obligations

Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted, a scheme shall be
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority detailing how road
marking and access improvements to the site from Nelson Road arising from the needs
of the proposed development will be provided. The approved scheme shall then be

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 2



implemented prior to the occupation of the development.

REASON

To ensure the development provides an appropriate contribution to the improvement of
road safety, arising from the proposed development, in accordance with Policy R 17 of the
adopted Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

6 RES10 Tree to be retained

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan(s) shall not be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the Local
Planning Authority. If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely damaged
during (or after) construction, or is found to be seriously diseased or dying, another tree,
hedge or shrub shall be planted at the same place or, if planting in the same place would
leave the new tree, hedge or shrub susceptible to disease, then the planting should be in a
position to be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and shall be of a size
and species to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be planted in
the first planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of
the buildings, whichever is the earlier. Where damage is less severe, a schedule of
remedial works necessary to ameliorate the effect of damage by tree surgery, feeding or
groundwork shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. New planting
should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and
Shrubs'

Remedial work should be carried out to BS BS 3998:2010 'Tree work -
Recommendations' and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape
Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work shall be completed in the first
planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON

To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE 38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and to comply with Section 197 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990.

7 COMS8 Tree Protection

No site clearance or construction work shall take place until the details have been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority with respect to:

1. A method statement outlining the sequence of development on the site including
demolition, building works and tree protection measures.

2. Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or
development shall be commenced until these drawings have been approved and the
fencing has been erected in accordance with the details approved. Unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum height
of 1.5 metres.

Thereafter, the development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved

details. The fencing shall be retained in position until development is completed.
The area within the approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 3



course of the works and in particular in these areas:

2.a There shall be no changes in ground levels;

2.b No materials or plant shall be stored;

2.c No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed.

2.d No materials or waste shall be burnt; and.

2.e No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that trees and other vegetation can and will be retained on site and not
damaged during construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with
policy BE 38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

8 COM9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.a Means of enclosure/boundary treatments

2.b Car Parking Layouts (including provision of one electrical charging point serving the
visitor parking)

2.c Hard Surfacing Materials

2.d External Lighting

3. Details of Landscape Maintenance

3.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.

3. b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within the
landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes
seriously damaged or diseased.

4. Schedule for Implementation

5. Other
5.a Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground
5.b Proposed finishing levels or contours

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the
approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies BE 13, BE 38
and AM 14 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
Policies 5.11 (living walls and roofs) and 5.17 (refuse storage) of the London Plan (2015)

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 4



9 COM26 Ecology

No development shall take place until a scheme to protect and enhance the nature
conservation interest of the site has been submitted to and approved by the Local
Planning Authority. Thereafter, the development shall be carried out in accordance with
the approved details.

REASON

In order to encourage a wide diversity of wildlife on the existing semi-natural habitat of the
site in accordance with policy EC5 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) and London Plan (2016) Policy 7.19.

10 COM®6 Levels

No development shall take place until plans of the site showing the existing and proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished floor levels of all proposed buildings have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be
shown in relation to a fixed and known datum point. Thereafter the development shall not
be carried out other than in accordance with the approved details.

REASON
To ensure that the development relates satisfactorily to adjoining properties in accordance
with policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

11 NONSC Imported Soil

All soils used for gardens and/or landscaping purposes shall be clean and free of
contamination. Site derived soils and imported soils shall be tested for chemical
contamination, and the results of this testing shall be submitted for approval to the Local
Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that the occupants of the development are not subject to any risks from soil
contamination in accordance with policy OE11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

12 COM15 Sustainable Water Management

Prior to commencement, a scheme for the provision of sustainable water management
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The scheme shall clearly demonstrate how it manages water and demonstrate ways of
controlling the surface water on site by providing information on:

a) SUDS FEATURES:

i. incorporating sustainable urban drainage (SuDs) in accordance with the hierarchy set
out in Policy 5.15 of the London Plan. Where the proposal does not utilise the most
sustainable solution, justification must be provided,

ii. calculations showing storm period and intensity and volume of storage required to
control surface water and size of features to control that volume to Greenfield run off rates
at a variety of return periods including 1 in 1 year, 1 in 30, 1 in 100, and 1 in 100 plus
Climate change,

iii. where identified in an area at risk of surface water flooding, include additional provision
within calculations for surface water from off site

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 5



iv. where it is intended to have above ground storage, overland flooding should be
mapped, both designed and exceedance routes above the 100, plus climate change,
including flow paths depths and velocities identified as well as any hazards, (safe access
and egress must be demonstrated).

b) CAPACITY OF RECEPTORS:

i. Capacity demonstrated for Thames Water foul and surface water network, and provide
confirmation of any upgrade work required having been implemented and receiving
watercourse as appropriate.

i. Where infiltration techniques (soakaway) or a basement are proposed a site
investigation must be provided to establish the level of groundwater on the site, and to
demonstrate the suitability of infiltration techniques proposed on the site. (This should be
undertaken at the appropriate time of year as groundwater levels fluctuate).

iii. Where groundwater is found within the site and a basement is proposed suitable
mitigation methods must be provided to ensure the risk to others is not increased.

iv. identify vulnerable receptors, ie WFD status and prevent pollution of the receiving
groundwater and/or surface waters through appropriate methods;

c) MINIMISE WATER USE..
i. incorporate water saving measures and equipment.

ii. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the
development.

d) LONG TERM MANAGEMENT AND MAINTENANCE OF THE DRAINAGE SYSTEM:
i. Provide a management and maintenance plan;

i Include details of Inspection regimes, performance specification, (remediation and
timescales for the resolving of issues where a PMC).

iii. Where overland flooding is proposed, the plan should include the appropriate actions to
define those areas and actions required to ensure the safety of the users of the site
should that be required.

iv. Clear plans showing all of the drainage network above and below ground. The
responsibility of different parties such as the landowner, PMC, sewers offered for adoption
and that to be adopted by the Council Highways services.

Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance
with these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON:

To ensure that surface water run off is controlled to ensure the development does not
increase the risk of flooding contrary to Policy EM6 Flood Risk Management in Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies (Nov 2012), Policy 5.12 Flood Risk Management of
the London Plan (March 2016) and to be handled as close to its source as possible in
compliance with Policy 5.13 Sustainable Drainage of the London Plan (March 2016), and

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 6



to Conserve water supplies in accordance with Policy 5.15 Water use and supplies of the
London Plan (March 2016) and the National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012).

13 H8 Surfacing and marking out of access/parking/servicing areas

The development shall not be occupied until the access roads, parking and servicing
areas shown on the approved plans have been drained, surfaced and marked out in
accordance with details to be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority. Thereafter these areas shall be permanently retained and used for no other
purpose.

REASON

To ensure that the vehicular access, servicing and parking areas are satisfactorily laid out
on site in accordance with Policy AM 14 of the adopted Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and Chapter 6 of the London Plan (2016).

14 COM28 Visibility Splays - Pedestrian

The access to the development from Nelson Road shall be provided with 2.4m x 2.4m
pedestrian visibility splays in both directions and shall be maintained free of all obstacles
to the visibility between heights of 0.6m and 2.0m above the level of the adjoining highway

REASON
In the interests of highway and pedestrian safety in accordance with policy AM 7 Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

15 NONSC Manual Override for Entrance Gate

The electric entrance gate shall be capable of being manually operated in the event of a
power failure and maintained and shall remain as such for so long as the development
remains on site.

REASON

To provide safe and adequate access for pedestrians and vehicles accessing the new
parking area in accordance with Policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012).

16 HH-M1 Details / Samples to be Submitted

No development shall take place until details of all materials, colours and finishes to be
used on all external surfaces within the development have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE 13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012

17 HOG6 Obscure Glazing

Upper floor windows on the east and west (side) elevations facing of both blocks shall be
glazed with permanently obscured glass and non-opening below a height of 1.7 metres
taken from internal finished floor level for so long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON

To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE 24 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 7



18 RES12 No additional windows or doors

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development)(England)Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with
or without modification), no additional windows, doors or other openings above ground
floor height shall be constructed in the walls or roof slopes of the development hereby
approved.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE 24 Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

19 RES14 Outbuildings, extensions and roof alterations

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development)(England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with
or without modification); no garages, sheds or other outbuildings, nor extension or roof
alteration to any dwellinghouses shall be erected without the grant of further specific
permission from the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To protect the character and appearance of the area and amenity of residential occupiers
in accordance with policies BE13, BE 21, BE 23 and BE 24 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

20 COM31 Secured by Design

The building(s) shall achieve 'Secured by Design' accreditation awarded by the Hillingdon
Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Design Adviser (CPDA) on behalf of the Association
of Chief Police Officers (ACPO). No building shall be occupied until accreditation has
been achieved.

REASON

In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to
consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote the
well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the Local
Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's SPG on
Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development provides a safe and secure
environment in accordance with London Plan (2016) Policies 7.1 and 7.3.

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
The London Plan - The Spatial Development Strategy for London consolidated with

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 8



alterations since 2011 (2016) and national guidance.

AM13

R17

AM14
AM7

BE13
BE18
BE19

BE20
BE21
BE22

BE23
BE24

BE38

BE39
EC5

H12

H4
HDAS-LAY

LPP 3.3
LPP 3.4
LPP 3.5
LPP 5.10
LPP 5.13
LPP 5.17
LPP 5.3
LPP 6.13
LPP 7.15

LPP 7.18
LPP 7.3
LPP 7.4
LPP 7.6
LPP 8.3
NPPF
NPPF1
NPPF6

AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people
and people with disabilities in development schemes through (where
appropriate): -

(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services

(ii) Shopmobility schemes

(iii) Convenient parking spaces

(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street
furniture schemes

Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation
leisure and community facilities

New development and car parking standards.

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
Protection of trees and woodland - tree preservation orders
Retention of ecological features and creation of new habitats
Tandem development of backland in residential areas

Mix of housing units

Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006

(2016) Increasing housing supply

(2015) Optimising housing potential

(2016) Quality and design of housing developments

(2016) Urban Greening

(2016) Sustainable drainage

(2016) Waste capacity

(2016) Sustainable design and construction

(2016) Parking

(2016) Reducing and managing noise, improving and enhancing the
acoustic environment and promoting appropriate soundscapes.
(2016) Protecting open space and addressing deficiency

(2016) Designing out crime

(2016) Local character

(2016) Architecture

(2016) Community infrastructure levy

National Planning Policy Framework

NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes

NPPF - Requiring good design

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 9



NPPF7

OEA1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

OE8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

R4 Proposals that would involve the loss of recreational open space

SPD-PO Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document, adopted
July 2008

3 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction work is subject to control under the Control of
Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Act 1993 and the Environmental Protection Act 1990. You
should ensure that the following are complied with:

(i) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the hours of
0800 and 1800 on Monday to Friday and between the hours of 0800 and 1300 on
Saturday. No works should be carried out on Sundays, Public or Bank Holidays;

(ii) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with British
Standard 5228, and use best practicable means as defined in section 72 of the Control of
Pollution Act 1974;

(iil) Measures should be taken to eliminate the release of dust, odours and other
emissions caused by the works that may create a public health nuisance. Guidance on
control measures is given in 'The control of dust and emissions from construction and
demolition: best practice guidelines', Greater London Authority, November 2006; and

(iv) No bonfires that create dark smoke or cause nuisance to local residents should be
allowed at any time.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section
61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction
other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would
minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

4 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2016).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

5 111 The Construction (Design and Management) Regulations
1994

The development hereby approved may be subject to the Construction (Design and
Management) Regulations 1994, which govern health and safety through all stages of a
construction project. The regulations require clients (ie. those, including developers, who
commision construction projects) to appoint a planning supervisor and principal contractor

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 10



who are competent and adequately resourced to carry out their health and safety
responsibilities. Further information is available from the Health and Safety Executive,
Rose Court, 2 Southwark Bridge Road, London, SE1 9HS (telephone 020 7556 2100).

6 112 Notification to Building Contractors

The applicant/developer should ensure that the site constructor receives copies of all
drawings approved and conditions/informatives attached to this planning permission.
During building construction the name, address and telephone number of the contractor
(including an emergency telephone number) should be clearly displayed on a hoarding
visible from outside the site.

7 119 Sewerage Connections, Water Pollution etc.

You should contact Thames Water Utilities and the Council's Building Control Service
regarding any proposed connection to a public sewer or any other possible impact that the
development could have on local foul or surface water sewers, including building over a
public sewer. Contact: - The Waste Water Business Manager, Thames Water Utilities plc,
Kew Business Centre, Kew Bridge Road, Brentford, Middlesex, TW8 OEE.

Building Control Service - 3N/01, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (tel.
01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

8 12 Encroachment

You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches by either
its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning application may have to
be submitted. The validity of this planning permission may be challengeable by third
parties if the development results in any form of encroachment onto land outside the
applicant's control for which the appropriate Notice under Article 13 of the Town and
Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 has not
been served.

9 124 Works affecting the Public Highway - General

A licence must be obtained from the Highway Authority before any works are carried out
on any footway, carriageway, verge or other land forming part of the public highway. This
includes the erection of temporary scaffolding, hoarding or other apparatus in connection
with the development for which planning permission is hereby granted. For further
information and advice contact: - Highways Maintenance Operations, 4W/07, Civic
Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW

10 13 Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at least
6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed plans
must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Residents Services, Building Control, 3N/01 Civic
Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

1 134 Building Regulations 'Access to and use of buildings'

Compliance with Building Regulations 'Access to and use of buildings' and Disability
Discrimination Act 1995 for commercial and residential development.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 11



You are advised that the scheme is required to comply with either:-

- The Building Regulations 2000 Approved Document Part M 'Access to and use of
buildings', or with

- BS 8300:2001 Design of buildings and their approaches to meet the needs of disabled
people - Code of practice. AMD 15617 2005, AMD 15982 2005.

These documents (which are for guidance) set minimum standards to allow residents,
workers and visitors, regardless of disability, age or gender, to gain access to and within
buildings, and to use their facilities and sanitary conveniences.

You may also be required make provisions to comply with the Disability Discrimination Act
1995. The Act gives disabled people various rights. Under the Act it is unlawful for
employers and persons who provide services to members of the public to discriminate
against disabled people by treating them less favourably for any reason related to their
disability, or by failing to comply with a duty to provide reasonable adjustments. This duty
can require the removal or modification of physical features of buildings provided it is
reasonable.

The duty to make reasonable adjustments can be effected by the Building Regulation
compliance. For compliance with the DDA please refer to the following guidance: -

- The Disability Discrimination Act 1995. Available to download from www.opsi.gov.uk

- Disability Rights Commission (DRC) Access statements. Achieving an inclusive
environment by ensuring continuity throughout the planning, design and management of
building and spaces, 2004. Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

- Code of practice. Rights of access. Goods, facilities, services and premises. Disability
discrimination act 1995, 2002. ISBN 0 11702 860 6. Available to download from
www.drc-gb.org.

- Creating an inclusive environment, 2003 & 2004 - What it means to you. A guide for
service providers, 2003. Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

This is not a comprehensive list of Building Regulations legislation. For further information
you should contact Building Control on 01895 250804/5/6.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The site is currently in a state of disuse and has been gated off. The garages occupying
the site are located towards the southern end, adjacent to the eastern boundary. All of the
garages are vacant and are in a poor state of repair with the hard standing area to the front
of them overgrown with weeds. The northern part of the site is currently surfaced with
grass and shrubs growing in places. The site boundaries are bordered by the far end of
rear gardens belonging to surrounding properties that back onto the site and, for the most
part, are marked by approximately 1.8 metre high timber fencing. There are also mature
trees and hedging following site boundaries, particularly on the western perimeter.

Although the site once had a play area, this was fenced off over a decade ago and any

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 12



former play area use is long since abandoned. The site is considered to be classified as
derelict land.

The surrounding area is characterised by residential dwellings, the majority of which are
accommodated within two-storey terraces, with occasional clusters of semi-detached
buildings. There are also a group of semi-detached bungalow dwellings at Nelson Lane to
the south of the site.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposal involves the redevelopment of the former garage block site with a total of 6
new dwellings configured as 2 semi-detached four bedroom dwellings located towards the
narrower southern end of the site and a terrace of 4 dwellings comprising 2 x four bedroom
dwellings either side of 2 x three bedroom dwellings. All dwellings will be two-storeys in
height but incorporating additional floorspace within the roof.

Each individual dwelling will be provided with two off street car parking spaces within its
curtilage to the front of the building.

An 82.3 m? strip of garden land belonging to No. 13 Nelson Road will be acquired in order to
allow for widened access from Nelson Road, ensuring the safe movement of pedestrians
and ftraffic entering and leaving the site. Automatic gates will also be installed, set back
from the junction with Nelson Road so as to prevent waiting vehicles from blocking the
road.

Revisions to the plans occurred during the determination of the application to add additional
landscaped buffer areas to the rear of 11 and 12 Nelson Road and acoustic fencing on the
side boundary with 13 Nelson Road.

3.3 Relevant Planning History
Comment on Relevant Planning History
There is no specific planning history attached to the site.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.CI1 (2012) Community Infrastructure Provision

)
PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment
PT1.EM4 (2012) Open Space and Informal Recreation
)

PT1.H1 (2012) Housing Growth
Part 2 Policies:
AM13 AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people and people witt

disabilities in development schemes through (where appropriate): -

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 13



R17

AM14
AM7

BE13
BE18
BE19
BE20
BE21

BE22

BE23
BE24
BE38

BE39

EC5

H12

H4
HDAS-LAY

LPP 3.3
LPP 3.4
LPP 3.5
LPP 5.10
LPP 5.13
LPP 5.17
LPP 5.3
LPP 6.13
LPP 7.15

LPP 7.18
LPP 7.3
LPP 7.4
LPP 7.6
LPP 8.3

(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services

(i) Shopmobility schemes

(iii) Convenient parking spaces

(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street furniture schemes

Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation, leisure and
community facilities

New development and car parking standards.

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.
Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.
Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Protection of trees and woodland - tree preservation orders
Retention of ecological features and creation of new habitats
Tandem development of backland in residential areas

Mix of housing units

Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

(2016) Increasing housing supply

(2015) Optimising housing potential

(2016) Quality and design of housing developments
(2016) Urban Greening

(2016) Sustainable drainage

(2016) Waste capacity

(2016) Sustainable design and construction

(2016) Parking

(2016) Reducing and managing noise, improving and enhancing the acoustic
environment and promoting appropriate soundscapes.

(2016) Protecting open space and addressing deficiency
(2016) Designing out crime

(2016) Local character

(2016) Architecture

(2016) Community infrastructure levy

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 14



NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF6 NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes

NPPF7 NPPF - Requiring good design

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

OE8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water

run-off - requirement for attenuation measures
R4 Proposals that would involve the loss of recreational open space
SPD-PO Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2008
5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 1st May 2017
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- 27th April 2017

6. Consultations
External Consultees

Site notices were posted on Nelson Road, Nelson Close and Parkfield Avenue. In addition, letters
were sent to all adjoining neighbours notifying them of the proposed development and inviting
comments.

Petition objecting to the development with 87 signatories submitted:-

The site is used by residents to access their rear gardens and for maintenance. Could space be left
for gated access to rear of properties on Nelson Road? Occupants of new 3 bedroom dwellings will
not have external access to rear of site. Gardens will be overlooked by dormer windows. The
nearest play areas are across a major road or through woodland, part of the site should provide a
recreation area. Loss of some parking on Nelson Road and insufficient on site parking for the
development. Loss of habitat for wildlife. The drainage system and water pressure is already
inadequate.

4 letters of objection received from the public. A summary is provided below:-

My property will be overlooked. Devaluation of property. Noise disturbance by residents. Could
attract litter and vermin. Use of part of 13 Nelson Road plot will lead to loss of parking. Grass is cut
by Council and the area is used by residents as they have a key to access it. Would spoil views
from property.The site has hedgerows and trees and is a wildlife habitat. There are rare black bees
on site, visiting red kites and foxes and a variety of nesting birds. The site is embedded and would
encourage criminals to congregate without detection. The Council has not consulted the community
about potential uses for the site. Use of the site as allotments would be preferable. Insufficient car
parking is provided. There are insufficient services available for future occupants.

1 Letter of comment:

Don't want landscape planting to deprive my garden of moisture. What is happening to the old
alleyway down the side of number 1 Nelson Close leading to the new properties?

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 15



Internal Consultees
WASTE STRATEGY:

Space is allocated for waste storage which is good practice. Hillingdon is not a wheeled bin borough.
Bins or other containment would have to be provided by the developer. The current waste and
recycling collection systems are: - - Weekly residual (refuse) waste - using sacks / bins purchased
by the occupier - Weekly dry recycling collection - using specially marked sacks provided by the
Council. - Weekly green garden waste collection - three specially marked reusable bags (each
approximately 80 litre capacity) provided by the Council free of charge. Occupiers of larger
properties can purchase three additional reusable bags. - Weekly collection of textiles provided -
using specially marked purple tinted sacks - Weekly collection of food waste for residents wishing to
participate. Those in the scheme are provided with a 7 litre internal 'caddy' and a 23 litre external
storage container. One area of concern the width of the access road. The collection fleet is around 3
axle vehicles. We ask any access road is 3.5 metres wide to allow the vehicle to safely manoeuvre.
In addition the roadway would have to be able to withstand 26 tonnes. Please confirm the design
allows for this criteria.

OFFICER COMMENT: Measurements show that the narrowest point of the access road is 4 metres
in width.

LANDSCAPES:

A tree report has surveyed 10 oak trees along the south and west boundaries. There are no 'A' grade
trees, but all are 'B' grade - whose condition and value justify retention as part of any new
development. According to the report summary (1.3) there will be a moderate impact on tree 5, an
ash and a high impact on tree 6, an oak. Please note that the plans makes no reference to any ash
trees and no trees are numbered on plan - limiting the usefulness of the survey. However, according
to plan ref. 2016/D176/P/03, one tree will be removed to facilitate the development of plot 4. It
appears that the retention of the oaks to the east of unit 1, to the north-west of unit 4 and possibly the
north-west of unit 6 may not be feasible. - Even if these trees can be safeguarded during
construction there may be pressure to remove them due to their proximity to the proposed buildings.
If this application is to be approved it is possible that more trees could be saved if the layout is
amended slightly - without the loss of units / accommodation.

OFFICER COMMENT: The trees in question do not possess significant amenity value and any loss
can be mitigated by additional planting. Trees shown as retained will be subject to protection by a
suitably worded planning condition. It is not feasible to revise the site layout as this would lead to
conflict with other planning policies.

FLOOD & DRAINAGE:

The site is at risk of surface water flooding according to the Environment Agency flood maps.
Particularly in the southern part of the site. The development therefore needs to manage surface
water on site. An appropriately worded condition is recommended requiring sustainable water
management.

HIGHWAYS:

Parking provision complies with the Council's maximum parking standard, 2 per dwelling. Cycle
Parking : Properties with 2+ bedrooms should provide 2 spaces per unit. Auto tracks are required for
refuse lorries entering and leaving the site bearing in mind that Nelson Road is a one way street
North to South. The developer will have to meet costs related to a traffic order and implementation of
waiting restrictions at the junction to facilitate movements in and out of the site for refuse vehicles.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 16



OFFICER COMMENT: Necessary traffic order measures at the access to the site from Nelson
Road can be secured through the use of a grampian condition. Therefore a refuse vehicle could
access the site.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The site is owned by the Council. Para. 1.2.22 of the London Plan Housing SPG (2016)
states that accelerating the disposal of surplus public sector land for housing is a national
priority and a key objective of the Mayor's Housing Strategy.

The site is located within an established built-up area and is bordered on all sides by
residential properties. Para. 17 of The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
advocates the effective use of previously developed land as one of a raft of core planning
principles. The southern portion of the site, on which garage buildings are sited, is
considered to represent previously developed land.

Inspection of historical Ordnance Survey maps show that part of the site was originally
designated as a play area. Annexe 2 of the NPPF precludes play areas within wider urban
areas from being regarded as previously developed land. It is considered that because this
use ceased over 15 years ago and there has been no intention since this date to re-instate
the use that, in planning terms, it is 'abandoned.'" The former play area is therefore
classified as vacant land.

It is also considered that, in this instance, no parts of the site would be suitable as a play
area due to the secluded nature of the site, entirely to the rear of buildings. It is also noted
from Council records that the site has been subject to anti-social behaviour in the past
which is why it is now secured by a locked gate. Furthermore, the site is located in the
Hillingdon East ward which is not identified as an area subject to open space deficiency
within the Council's Open Space Strategy 2011 - 2026.

In addition, Council communications indicate that play equipment was removed from the
site around 2002 and ownership was assigned to the Council's housing department. Aerial
photographs dating from 2008 show that there is no play equipment present at the site and
it is in a general condition of disuse. It is therefore considered that the proposal would not
result in the loss of a current open space area or an area which possesses the necessary
attributes to be used as a play area. It is considered that it does not meet the standards for
open space set out in para 2.2.11 of the London Plan Housing SPG which states that open
space, whether for public or private communal use should be designed to be safe,
accessible, inviting and well used, without the fear of crime. It should encourage an
appropriate sense of ownership and should be managed to ensure that it remains useful
and welcoming to all users.

The site is therefore considered to represent a suitable example of a windfall site as
defined within para. 48 of the NPPF, the development of which would represent a more
efficient use of land as encouraged with Policy 3.4 of the London Plan (2016) and para.
1.2.25 of the London Plan Housing SPG (2016) which recognises the crucial role small
sites play in securing housing delivery within London.

7.02 Density of the proposed development

The overall area of the site is 2631.7 m2 and the proposed construction of 6 No. dwellings
would therefore result in a residential density of approximately 23 dwellings per hectare.
Table 3.2 of the London Plan (2016) provides a matrix that indicates the optimum
residential density level, expressed in units per hectare, for development based on the
character of its surroundings (central, urban or suburban), public transport accessibility

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 17



7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

level (PTAL) on a sliding scale of 0 (poor) to 6 (excellent) and the type of units being offered
(best on the amount of habitable rooms per unit).

In this instance, the site is located in a suburban setting with a modest PTAL score of 2
and the proposed dwellings will provide 3.8 - 4.6 habitable rooms each. As such, the
optimum density level for the efficient use of the site falls within the 35 - 65 units per
hectare

. Whilst the proposed development falls below this level, it is considered to represent an
efficient development of the site as other constraints, particularly the shape of the site and
proximity to neighbouring residential development, would mean a higher density
development would conflict with other relevant planning policies. Para. 1.3.55 of the London
Housing SPG identifies particular local circumstances as an acceptable reason for
allowing an exception to optimal density development targets.

It is therefore considered that the proposed development is complaint with Policy 3.4 of the
London Plan (2016).
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not applicable to this site.
Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this site.
Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this site.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The new dwellings will have limited street scene presence as they will be positioned to the
rear of existing residential development and largely screened from view within the street
scenes of Nelson Road, Nelson Close, Nelson Lane and Parkfield Avenue. Where the
dwellings will be visible between gaps in buildings it is considered that they will
contextualise with the general appearance of the surrounding area which is characterised
by residential buildings of a comparable design and scale to those of the proposed
development. It is therefore considered that they will integrate into the surrounding
environment in a similar way to the properties on Nelson Close and Nelson Lane which
also occupy the space between Nelson Road and Parkfield Avenue, as will the proposed
buildings.

Although the site is positioned on an envelope of land that is set behind other residential
dwellings, it is not considered that it represents 'tandem' backland development, as the
development will benefit from a designated access road that would prevent disturbance to
occupants of properties fronting Nelson Road. Furthermore, it is considered that the
proposed development is of sufficient size to possess its own street scene and that there
are an adequate number of dwellings within the development to prevent them from
appearing isolated or divorced from their surroundings.

The layout of the development itself is considered to be sympathetic with sufficient space
maintained to the sides of the end of terrace and semi-detached dwellings to ensure that
they do not appear cramped within the plot. Although car parking spaces will be provided to
the front of each dwelling it is considered that an adequate proportion of the front amenity
area will be landscaped and, as such, the site frontages will not appear overwhelmed by
parked cars and a good quality setting will be maintained.

The proposed widened access would remove a narrow strip of garden to the side of 13
Nelson Road but it is not considered that this would compromise the street scene as the

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 18



visual gap between No. 13 Nelson Road and No. 12 Nelson Road would be maintained and
the new access point would not be excessive in width or overly dominant within the overall
street scene.

It is therefore considered that the proposed development would be in accordance with
Policies BE 13, BE 19 and H 12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) and Policies 7.4 and 7.6 of the London Plan.

7.08 Impact on neighbours

The site is surrounded by residential properties and this represents a constraint to the
development of the site that has been taken into account when accepting the relatively low
density of the proposed scheme. The layout of the proposed dwellings has been designed
so as to prevent any unacceptable overlooking, overbearing or overshadowing impact
being imposed upon neighbouring properties.

The proposed dwellings are two-storey structures, with a ridge height of approximately 8.45
metres. Side walls will be stepped in from site boundaries in excess of the minimum 1
metre buffer stipulated in Local Plan Policy BE 22 so as to reduce their visual impact
towards existing neighbouring properties. A separation distance of a minimum of at least
15 metres will be maintained between the proposed dwellings and the principle building on
all existing neighbouring residential properties in accordance with standards set out in the
Residential Layouts SPD (para. 4.9). The roof slopes of the proposed buildings will also
pitch away from boundaries shared with existing neighbouring properties. As a result, the
proposed dwellings will not appear overbearing towards existing neighbouring properties
nor would they be overshadowed or subject to any unacceptable overbearing impact from
those properties.

The front and rear elevations of the proposed terrace and semi-detached dwellings will be
linear and, as such, the windows and amenity spaces of the new dwellings will not be
subject to any undue overshadowing or overbearing impact caused by other properties
within the development.

No habitable rooms serving the proposed dwellings would be within 21 metres of any
windows serving habitable rooms at neighbouring properties taking into account a visibility
splay measured 45° either side of the centre point of each relevant window, in accordance
with Residential Layouts SPD (para. 4.11). It is therefore considered that no intrusive views
into neighbouring buildings would be afforded from any new windows. Any views towards
garden areas from new ground floor windows will be interrupted by site boundary treatment
whilst those from first floor windows will be partially screened by site landscaping and
boundary treatment with any uninterrupted views being of areas a sufficient distance away
to prevent an unacceptable loss in privacy.

The loss of a narrow strip of garden at No. 13 Nelson Road, totalling 82.3 m? in area would
not adversely impact the amenities of the occupants of that property as the area removed
is partially to the side of the dwelling and of no significant amenity value and an ample
amount of garden space of approximately 72.5 m? would be retained for the private use of
the occupants of No. 13 Nelson Road, in accordance with the outdoor amenity space
standards set out in the Residential Layouts SPD.

It is therefore considered that the proposed development is compliant with the standards of
the Residential Layouts SPD, Policies BE 20, BE 21, BE 22, BE 23 and BE 24 of the Local
Plan and Policy 7.6 of the London Plan.

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 19



The linear arrangement of the dwellings within the development will ensure that no dwelling
or associated amenity space is directly overshadowed by a neighbouring property within
the development as no elevation walls will project beyond the front or rear elevations of any
neighbouring building. This will also ensure that no neighbouring properties appear
overbearing towards other properties. As discussed in section 7.08 of this report, an
adequate distance is maintained between the proposed dwellings and existing
neighbouring buildings to prevent any existing development from appearing overbearing or
causing undue levels of overshadowing towards the proposed dwellings.

An adequate distance will be maintained between windows serving habitable rooms within
the proposed dwellings and those at existing neighbouring properties to prevent intrusive
levels of overlooking. Any views from habitable windows serving proposed dwellings
towards habitable windows serving other properties within the development will, in the case
of frontage to frontage views between the terraced and semi-detached blocks, be at a
sufficient distance to prevent unacceptable loss of privacy or, in the case of views from
rear windows, be directed towards the far end of garden areas only and partially obstructed
by site boundary treatment.

Each four bedroom dwelling will incorporate a gross internal area (GIA) of 142.8 m?
distributed over three floors with the uppermost being located within the roof space. This
floor space is in excess of the minimum standards set out in the Technical housing
standards - nationally described space standard and Policy 3.5 of the London Plan. Each
three bedroom dwelling will incorporate a GIA of 108.3 m? and this also satisfies the
minimum standards set out in the above mentioned documents. All habitable rooms are
served by sufficiently large clear glazed windows that offer an unobstructed outlook and will
allow for sufficient permeation of sunlight to provide acceptable living conditions for future
occupants.

The residential layouts SPD identifies minimum outdoor amenity space area standards of
60 m? for two and three bedroom dwellings and 100 m? for four bedroom dwellings. The
smallest private garden within the development is 156.5 m? and serves a three bedroom
dwelling and, as such, the minimum space requirements have been satisfied. All gardens
are fully enclosed and of a suitable shape to provide usable, private amenity space.

It is therefore considered that the proposed development would be in accordance with
Local Plan Policy BE 23 and London Plan Policy 3.5.
7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The development will be accessed from Nelson Road which is a crescent shaped one way
residential street. An existing access which served the vacant garages will be utilised and a
narrow strip of garden land serving No. 13 Nelson Road will be annexed to allow for the
access to be widened to provide safe access / egress with appropriate unobstructed
visibility splays for road traffic, including emergency vehicles. The widened access will also
allow for a pavement to be provided allowing safe access for pedestrians. An automatic
gate will be provided for security purposes and this will be set back a sufficient distance
from the junction to prevent waiting vehicles from obstructing Nelson Road. A central
unobstructed turning area will be provided within the development in order to allow for
circulation of vehicles and enable them to enter and leave the site in forward gear.

Each dwelling will be served by two off street parking spaces positioned to the front of the
building. Adequate amenity space will be maintained to site frontages to prevent over
domination by parking and the parking spaces will not obstruct access to the dwellings.
Each property will be provided with a lockable bike store located within the rear garden.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 20



It is therefore considered that the proposed development satisfies Local Plan Policies AM 7
and AM 14 and London Plan Policy 6.12 and 6.13.
7.11 Urban design, access and security

Matters relating to design and access are discussed in sections 7.07 and 7.12
respectively.

The proposed development will make use of a secluded site which has been the subject of
anti-social behaviour in the past. The layout and arrangement of dwellings will ensure that
all public areas of the site benefit from a good degree of overlooking and will prevent the
creation of any hidden recesses that may encourage anti-social behaviour. A condition will
be attached to any approval requiring the development to incorporate and implement
Secure by Design standards as set out in Section 5.0 of the submitted Design & Access
Statement.

The proposed development would therefore be in accordance with Local Plan Policy BE 18
and London Plan Policy 7.3.
7.12 Disabled access

All entrances / exits to each new dwelling will have level thresholds and the main entrance
doors will be wide enough to allow for wheelchair access. The development will be required
to be built in accordance with Part B and Part M of the Building Regulations.

7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

The proposed development involves the provision of 6 new dwellings and is therefore
below the threshold of 10 dwellings which is applied when making demands for affordable
and / or special needs housing.

7.14 Trees, landscaping and Ecology

The site is not located within a Conservation Area and there are no trees on site subject of,
or considered to be worthy of, Tree Preservation Order (TPO) status.

The proposed development will minimise the loss of existing significant trees within the site
and generally utilise them as part of the comprehensive landscaping scheme for the
development. Existing tress will be augmented with new tree, hedge and shrub planting as
well as grass planting for the bulk of front and rear amenity space and throughout
communal areas in order to maintain a verdant character and appearance.

Amenity space to the front of dwellings will incorporate hard surfacing and car parking
spaces but will contain an adequate proportion of soft landscaping which will be further
bolstered by planting in communal areas.

No protected species are known or considered likely to exist on this site that would require
specific protection. Nesting birds would benefit from protection under the Wildlife &
Countryside Act. Objectors have mentioned foxes, which are not a protected species, and
migratory birds and bees which do not have a permanent presence on site.

It is therefore considered that the proposed development accords with Local Plan Policies
BE 38 and BE 39.
7.15 Sustainable waste management

The development will be included within the Borough's public waste collection service,
which includes recycling collection. The access road is suitable for use by collection
vehicles and operatives.

7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 21



No additional comments.
717 Flooding or Drainage Issues

The site is not located within either Flood Zone 2 or 3 and, therefore, would not be subject
to any significant risk of tidal or fluvial flooding. As such, it is not considered that any
specific flood mitigation measures are required.

A portion of the southern end of the site is identified on Environment Agency maps as being
at risk from surface water flooding. It is therefore critical that surface water and drainage is
managed in such a way that will not exacerbate surface water drainage concerns and will
remove surface and waste water from the site in a sustainable manner.

A condition requiring the submission of a suitable drainage scheme will be attached to any
approval given.

Subiject to the adoption, implementation and maintenance of a suitable drainage scheme,
the proposed development would be compliant with Policy OE 8.
7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues

It is not considered that the proposed residential use of the site would generate a level of
noise or other emissions that would be uncharacteristic of the surrounding residential area.

The proposed development is therefore in accordance with Local Plan Policy OE 1 and
London Plan Policy 7.15.
7.19 Comments on Public Consultations

RESPONSE TO PETITION:

There are no rights of access to the site from the rear of neighbouring properties. Parking
is compliant with the Council's standards. All properties benefit from generous outdoor
amenity space provision and there are a number of public recreation grounds nearby
including Knight Gardens which can be accessed without crossing any major roads. The
connection of the development to the utility network will be assessed by the utility provider.
A condition will be attached to any approval requiring details of ecological management and
mitigation measures to be followed during and post construction in order to prevent
disturbance to wildlife including nesting birds.

RESPONSE TO LETTERS OF OBJECTION:

Matters relating to amenity impact are discussed in the main body of this report. The
Council has, in the past, undertaken consultations relating to future use of the site. Rights
to a view and property value impacts are not covered by planning legislation and, as such,
are not considerations in determining this application.

7.20 Planning obligations

The development falls below the threshold for the requirement for incorporation of
affordable housing. It does, however, represent chargeable development for Mayoral and
London Borough of Hillingdon Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) payment and, as such,
a liability notice setting out the charges will be issued if approval is granted.

7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

Not relevant to this application.
7.22 Other Issues

None.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 22



8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 23



9. Observations of the Director of Finance

10. CONCLUSION

It has been demonstrated that the proposed development satisfies relevant local, regional
and national planning policies and legislation and should therefore be recommended for
approval.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

The London Plan (2016)

Mayor of London's adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance - Housing (March 2016)
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Layouts

Hillingdon Planning Obligations SPD

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

DCLG Technical housing standards - nationally described space standard (2015)
Hillingdon Open Space Strategy 2011 - 2026

Contact Officer: James McLean Smith Telephone No: 01895 250230

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 24



OTTS COUTT

AT

I o )
| i S
i
h "
\ i
! '
) [ |
~ I L
I ‘!
P |
! 1
1 “
Pl
o
2
Z
o g !
_—
ST
I
SN
pouy
TR
~ ;!‘ N
™ \ m! g
£ {2
' >

J ‘\“’e.\ .

o \

Notes:

Site Address:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.
This copy has been made by or with

Former Garage Site,
To the Rear of
6-16 Nelson Road

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
72704/APP/2017/1068 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
Major Page 25 July 2017

LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 26



Agenda ltem 6

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address VYNERS SCHOOL WARREN ROAD ICKENHAM

Development: Extension to sports hall to create a new two-storey teaching block comprising
classrooms, dining room, library, admin space and ancillary facilities;
provision of new All Weather Pitch (AWP); reconfiguration of parking layout
and reversal in direction of existing vehicular one-way system; increased
cycle parking; landscaping; creation of off-site cricket run; and associated
development.

LBH Ref Nos: 4514/APP/2017/1771

Drawing Nos: Design & Access Statement v.4, prepared by CallisonRTKL dated 12/07/17
A-10000 (Existing Site Location Plan’
21573 06 _180_01.1 (Basement Layout Plan’
21573_06_180_01.6 (Elevations’
21573 06 180 _01.4 (1st Floor Layout Plan
21573 06 180 01.2 (Ground Floor Layout Plan
21573 _06_180_01.3 (Mezzanine Layout Plan
21573 06 _180 01 (Reference Plan’
21573 _06_180_01.5 (2nd Floor Layout Plan
A-10002 (Topographical Site Plan’
A-12001 Rev.F (Proposed Ground Floor Plan’
A-12002 Rev.F (Proposed First Floor Plan)
A-12003 Rev.F (Proposed Second Floor Plan)
A-20101 (Proposed Large Scale Elevations Coloured’
A-20102 (Proposed Courtyard Elevations Coloured’
A-20103 (Proposed Site Elevations Coloured’
E/AQ (Topographical Survey’
M292-100 Rev.P2 (lllustrative Landscape Plan Sheet 1 of 2
M292-101 Rev.P1 (lllustrative Landscape Plan Sheet 2 of 2
A-10004 (Proposed Site Location Plan)
A-12008 (Proposed Roof Plan)
Noise Survey (ref: PC-16-0316-RP1-V), prepared by Pace Consult datec
20/02/17
Phase 2 Report on a Site Investigation (ref: 17/10909/A/GO), prepared b
Albury S.1. Ltd, dated March 2017
Archaeological Desk-Based Assessment, prepared by AOC Archaeology
Group, dated January 2015
Planning Statement, prepared by Batcheller Monkhouse dated May 201
External Lighting Strategy Report, prepared by Arcadis dated April 201
Transport Assessment, prepared by Local Transport Projects dated July
2017
Travel Plan, prepared by Local Transport Projects dated July 2017
V-A-30005 (Astro Pitch: Fence arrangement & spec; cricket strip sepcs)
A-10005 Rev.A (Proposed Site Block Plan’
12306A _CCTV (Underground CCTV Survey
Air Quality Assessment v.1, prepared by Aether dated 20/04/17
Energy Statement, prepared by Arcadis dated April 2017
Bat Emergence/Re-entry and Activity Survey Report, prepared by EPR
dated March 2017

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 27



Arboricultural Constraints Report, prepared by SES dated 02/03/1¢

Advice Note, prepared by EPR dated 16/03/17

Woodland Survey and Nature Conservation Assessment, prepared by EPR
dated March 2017

Bat Building and Tree Inspection Report, prepared by EPR dated Marct
2017

CCTV Report, prepared by Amethyst Surveys Limited dated February 2017
Ecological Appraisal, prepared by EPR dated March 2017

Arboricultural Impact Assessment, prepared by SES dated 06/03/17

Tree Protection Plan

Date Plans Received: 15/05/2017 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 05/07/2017
Date Application Valid: 24/05/2017 24/05/2017
15/05/2017

1. SUMMARY

This application seeks full planning permission for works associated with the expansion of
Vyners School in Ickenham. The proposals involve the provision of a two-storey extension
to the existing sports hall, which would also link to the existing art/DT block, located
towards the eastern end of the existing developed area of the site. This would provide new
teaching space and associated facilities, including replacement sports hall storage. The
proposals also include the provision of a new All Weather Pitch (AWP); reinstatement of
an existing cricket wicket on land owned by the school at Hillingdon House Farm on the far
side of the A40 and accessed via an existing footbridge; re-organisation of the existing car
parking arrangements; provision of additional cycle parking spaces; and ancillary
development.

The proposals would enable the expansion of the school from six forms of entry (6FE) to
eight forms of entry (8FE) allowing them to cater for a total of 1451 pupils (including sixth
form).

The Education Act 1996 states that Local Authorities have a duty to educate children
within their administrative area. The Hillingdon School Expansion Programme is part of the
Council's legal requirement to meet the educational needs of the borough.

In the main metropolitan areas throughout the country there has been a significant
increase in the need for school places and this holds true for London. This increase
reflects rising birth rates, migration changes and housing development. The impact of
these factors has, to date, mainly been felt in primary age groups. Many primary schools
have already expanded and three new primary schools have been built. However, these
larger pupil cohorts are now approaching secondary school age.

Historically, there has been some capacity in the system at secondary level. However, this
'excess' capacity is reducing as pupil numbers increase and is how approaching the point
where demand will outstrip capacity. Between 2017 and 2023, the number of pupils
needing Year 7 (secondary admission year) places in Hillingdon schools is forecast to
increase by 17%. Data on place offers for September 2017 admission shows nearly all
schools at, or close to, capacity.

The applicant has advised that there is a forecast need for 8 new forms of entry for

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 28



secondary schools by the 2019 school year across the borough taking into account
committed development at Abbotsfield and Swakeleys Schools.

For secondary school planning purposes, the borough is divided into two geographical
areas broadly north and south of the A40. Most of the 8 form entry requirement for 2019 is
based in the north of the borough, although there is also a rising requirement within the
south.

To meet this need, additional places will need to be provided. However, within the overall
increase in demand, there is also a need to ensure that there are sufficient places in each
area so that pupils can be offered places within a reasonable travelling distance of their
homes. Vyners is considered to be ideally placed to help meet this need.

The proposal fully complies with the aims of paragraph 72 of the National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF), London Plan policy 3.18 and Local Plan: Part Two policy R10, which
seek to encourage the provision of new and/or enhanced educational facilities.
Furthermore, whilst it would inevitably impact on the openness and visual amenity of the
Green Belt in this location, the applicant has demonstrated a case of very special
circumstances sufficient to justify an exception to current policy, which seeks to protect
such land from unacceptable development. The proposal is therefore also considered to
accord with the objectives of policy EM2 of the Local Plan: Part 1, policy OL1 of the Local
Plan: Part 2, policy 7.16 of the London Plan and paragraph 89 of the NPPF, relating to
development in the green belt.

Whilst the proposal would result in some loss of playing field, it is considered that the
provision of alternative high quality sporting facilities and improvements to off-site sports
facilities would be of sufficient benefit to both school and community sports provision so
as to outweigh this loss, such that the proposals would not be contrary to policies which
seek to preserve existing playing fields and sports facilities, including Local Plan: Part 1
policy EM5, Local Plan: Part 2 policy R5, London Plan policy 3.19 and NPPF paragraph 74
and Sport England's Playing Field Policy - A Sporting Future for the Playing Fields of
England.

Sport England have nevertheless sent a holding objection pending assessment of
additional information. Sport England have requested detailed plans to show the
specification of the proposed AWP with a strong suggestion that the final proposal should
be heavily influenced by football and ruby standards; they have sought clarification over
the proposed cricket provision; and they have requested justification for the absence of
floodlights from the proposals. This information has been provided and Sport England's
final comments are awaited at the time of writing. For the purposes of this report, and
based on past comments received from Sport England to comparable schemes, it has
been assumed that this objection will remain. An update will be provided by way of a
Committee Addendum. Should Sport England maintain its objection and should Members
be minded to approve planning permission the scheme would be referable to the
Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government.

It is not considered that the proposed development would result in an unacceptable impact
on the visual amenities of the school site or on the surrounding area. Furthermore, it is
not considered that the proposal would have any significant detrimental impact on the
amenities of the occupiers of neighbouring residential properties.

The proposal is supported by a detailed Transport Assessment and provides for mitigation

measures to reduce its impact on the local highway network. The Council's Highway
Engineer has reviewed this information in detail and confirmed that the proposed

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 29



development would be acceptable in terms of traffic impact, pedestrian and highway
safety.

Objections to the proposed drainage strategy have been raised by the Council's Flood and
Water Management Officer on the basis that insufficient information has been provided at
this stage to demonstrate that the proposed scheme would be feasible. Negotiations are
ongoing between officers and the applicant to resolve this issue and this is reflected in the
recommendation in part 2 of this report.

It should be noted that the scheme is referable to the Greater London Authority (GLA) due
to its location in the green belt. The majority of matters which have been raised in the
GLA's Stage One comments are addressed through the body of this report or by way of
condition or S106 agreement. Where matters have not been fully addressed additional
information has been sought from the applicant. However, notably, no significant issues
have been raised.

The proposal is considered to comply with relevant UDP and London Plan policies and,
accordingly, it is recommended that delegated powers be given to the Head of Planning
and Enforcement to approve the scheme, subject to resolution of the drainage matters to
the satisfaction of the Council's Flood and Water Drainage Officer, and subject to the
appropriate referral to the Greater London Authority and, if necessary, the Secretary of
State.

2. RECOMMENDATION

That delegated powers be given to the Head of Planning and Enforcement to
grant planning permission, subject to the following:

A. Resolution of the drainage matters to the satisfaction of the Council's Flood and
Water Management Officer.

B. That the application be referred to the Mayor under Article 3 of the Town and
Country Planning (Mayor of London) Order 2000.

C. That, if Sport England object, the application be referred to the Secretary of
State in accordance with the Town and Country Planning (Consultation) (England)
Direction 2009.

D. That should the Secretary of State not call in the application, and subject to the
Mayor of London not directing the Council under Article 5 of the Town and
Country Planning (Mayor of London) Order 2000 to refuse the application or that
he wishes to act as the determining authority, the application be deferred for
determination by the Head of Planning and Enforcement under delegated powers.

E. That the Council enter into a legal agreement with the applicant under Section
106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) or any other
legislation to secure the following:

1. Construction Training: Either a contribution equal to the formula (£2,500 for
every £1m build) or an in-kind training scheme equal to the financial contribution
delivered during the construction period of the development with the preference
being for an in-kind scheme to be delivered. A contribution towards co-ordinating
costs may also be required.

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 30



2. Travel Plan: Prior to first occupation of the extension a full travel plan to be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Council. Thereafter the Travel Plan is
required to be reviewed at regular intervals to monitor its impact and, if required,
it shall be updated and/or amended in order that its aims and objectives are
achieved. The trigger points for review shall be agreed in writing by the Council.
The Travel Plan shall include regular review of cycle parking provision and a
commitment to the installation of additional spaces should demand dictate. A
Travel Plan bond in the sum of £20,000 is also to be secured.

3. Community Use Agreement: Prior to occupation of the extension a Community
Use Scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The scheme shall include details of hours of use, access to the grass
pitches, all weather pitch (including WCs and changing rooms) by non-school
users, management responsibilities and include a mechanism for review. The
approved scheme shall be implemented upon commencement of use of the
development.

4. TfL bus contribution: A contribution towards the provision of additional bus
services, the final figure to be agreed through negotiation with TfL.

5. Off site drainage improvements: Delivery of a scheme to deliver offsite drainage
improvements to existing football pitches located at Hillingdon House Farm, to the
east of the athletics track. Alternatively, a financial contribution towards the
provision of such improvements. The scheme or figure to be agreed through
negotiation with the Council's Green Spaces and Special Projects Teams.

6. Project Management & Monitoring: A contribution equal to 5% of the total cash
contributions secured to enable the management and monitoring of the resulting
agreement.

F. That the applicant meets the Council's reasonable costs in the preparation of
the Section 106 agreement and any abortive work as a result of the agreement not
being completed.

G. That the officers be authorised to negotiate the terms of the proposed
agreement.

H. That, if the S106 agreement has not been finalised within six months, under the
discretion of the Head of Planning and Enforcement, the application is refused
under delegated powers on the basis that the applicant has refused to address
planning obligation requirements.

I. That if the application is approved, the following conditions be attached:

1 SPO1 Council Application Standard Paragraph

(This authority is given by the issuing of this notice under Regulation 3 of the Town and
Country Planning General Regulations 1992 and shall enure only for the benefit of the
land).

2 COM3 Time Limit
The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 31



from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

3 COM4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans listed below and it shall
thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in existence:

A-10000 (Existing Site Location Plan)

A-10002 (Topographical Site Plan)

A-10004 (Proposed Site Location Plan)

A-10005 Rev.A (Proposed Site Block Plan)

21573 _06_180_01 (Reference Plan)

21573 06 _180_01.1 (Basement Layout Plan)

21573 06_180_01.2 (Ground Floor Layout Plan)
21573 06 _180_01.3 (Mezzanine Layout Plan)
21573_06_180_01.4 (1st Floor Layout Plan)
21573 06 _180_01.5 (2nd Floor Layout Plan)

21573 _06_180_01.6 (Elevations)

A-12001 Rev.F (Proposed Ground Floor Plan)

A-12002 Rev.F (Proposed First Floor Plan)

A-12003 Rev.F (Proposed Second Floor Plan)

A-12008 (Proposed Roof Plan)

A-20101 (Proposed Large Scale Elevations Coloured)
A-20102 (Proposed Courtyard Elevations Coloured)
A-20103 (Proposed Site Elevations Coloured)

E/AO (Topographical Survey)

M292-100 Rev.P2 (lllustrative Landscape Plan Sheet 1 of 2)
M292-101 Rev.P1 (lllustrative Landscape Plan Sheet 2 of 2)
V-A-30005 (Astro Pitch: Fence arrangement & spec; cricket strip specs)

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2016).

4 COM5 General compliance with supporting documentation

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
supporting plans and/or documents:

Design & Access Statement v.4, prepared by CallisonRTKL dated 12/07/17

Noise Survey (ref: PC-16-0316-RP1-V), prepared by Pace Consult dated 20/02/17

Phase 2 Report on a Site Investigation (ref: 17/10909/A/GO), prepared by Albury S.I. Ltd,
dated March 2017

Archaeological Desk-Based Assessment, prepared by AOC Archaeology Group, dated
January 2015

External Lighting Strategy Report, prepared by Arcadis dated April 2017

Transport Assessment, prepared by Local Transport Projects dated July 2017

Air Quality Assessment v.1, prepared by Aether dated 20/04/17

Energy Statement, prepared by Arcadis dated April 2017

Bat Emergence/Re-entry and Activity Survey Report, prepared by EPR dated March 2017
Arboricultural Constraints Report, prepared by SES dated 02/03/15

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 32



Advice Note, prepared by EPR dated 16/03/17

Woodland Survey and Nature Conservation Assessment, prepared by EPR dated March
2017

Bat Building and Tree Inspection Report, prepared by EPR dated March 2017

Ecological Appraisal, prepared by EPR dated March 2017

Arboricultural Impact Assessment, prepared by SES dated 06/03/17

Thereafter the development shall be retained/maintained in accordance with these details
for as long as the development remains in existence

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2016).

5 COM®6 Levels

No development shall take place until plans of the site showing the existing and proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished floor levels of all proposed buildings have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be
shown in relation to a fixed and know datum point. Thereafter the development shall not be
carried out other than in accordance with the approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the development relates satisfactorily to adjoining properties in accordance
with policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November
2012).

6 COM7 Materials (Submission)

No development shall proceed beyond the steel/timber/concrete superstructure (including
roof structure) of any building proposed until details of all materials and external surfaces
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter
the development shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details and be
retained as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images.

REASON

To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
and Policy 7.13 of the London Plan (2016).

7 COMS8 Tree Protection

No site clearance or construction work shall take place until the details have been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority with respect to:

1. A method statement outlining the sequence of development on the site including
demolition, building works and tree protection measures.

2. Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or
development shall be commenced until these drawings have been approved and the
fencing has been erected in accordance with the details approved. Unless otherwise

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 33



agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum height
of 1.5 metres.

Thereafter, the development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
details. The fencing shall be retained in position until development is completed.

The area within the approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the
course of the works and in particular in these areas:

2.a There shall be no changes in ground levels;

2.b No materials or plant shall be stored;

2.c No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed.

2.d No materials or waste shall be burnt; and.

2.e No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that trees and other vegetation can and will be retained on site and not
damaged during construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with
policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

8 COM9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

Within three months of the date of this consent or within three months of the
commencement of works on site, whichever is the later, a landscape scheme shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall
include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.a Refuse Storage

2.b Covered and secure cycle storage for 166 bicycles

2.c Means of enclosure/boundary treatments

2.d Car Parking Layouts (including provision for 2 disability standard spaces, 5 motorcycle
parking spaces and demonstration that 20% of all parking spaces will be served by
electrical charging points (10% to be active and 10% to be passive)

2.e Hard Surfacing Materials

2.f External Lighting (excluding floodlighting)

2.g Other structures (such as play equipment and furniture)

3. Details of Landscape Maintenance

3.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.

3.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within the
landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes
seriously damaged or diseased.

4. Schedule for Implementation
5. Other

5.a Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground
5.b Proposed finishing levels or contours

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 34



Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the
approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the green belt and surrounding area and provide adequate facilities in compliance with
policies OL2, BE13, BE38 and AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012) and Policy 5.17 (refuse storage) of the London Plan (2016).

9 COM10 Tree to be retained

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan shall not be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the Local
Planning Authority. If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely damaged
during construction, or is found to be seriously diseased or dying another tree, hedge or
shrub shall be planted at the same place or, if planting in the same place would leave the
new tree, hedge or shrub susceptible to disease, then the planting should be in a position
to be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and shall be of a size and
species to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be planted in the
first planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier. Where damage is less severe, a schedule of remedial
works necessary to ameliorate the effect of damage by tree surgery, feeding or
groundwork shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. New planting
should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and
Shrubs'

Remedial work should be carried out to BS BS 3998:2010 'Tree work -
Recommendations' and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape
Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work shall be completed in the first
planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON

To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and to comply with Section 197 of the Town
and Country Planning Act 1990.

10 NONSC Ecological enhancements

Prior to commencement of development an ecological enhancement scheme shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall
clearly detail measures to promote and enhance wildlife opportunities within the
landscaping and the fabric of the buildings. These shall include, but not be limited to, bat
and bird boxes, habitat walls and a range of plants to encourage and support wildlife. The
scheme shall aim to include an area of land dedicated to wildlife habitat. The development
must proceed in accordance with the approved scheme.

REASON

To ensure the development contributes to ecological enhancement in accordance with
Policy EM7 of the Local Plan: Part One Strategic Policies and Policy 7.28 of the London
Plan (2016).

1 COM31 Secured by Design

The building(s) shall adhere to 'Secured by Design' principles as set out in the document
'Secure by Design Design - New Schools 2014' published on behalf of the Association of

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 35



Chief Police Officers (ACPO). No building shall be occupied until relevant security
measures have been implemented.

REASON

In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to
consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote the
well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the Local
Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's SPG on
Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development provides a safe and secure
environment in accordance with London Plan (2016) Policies 7.1 and 7.3.

12 NONSC PV details

Prior to the commencement of development full details (including specifications) of the
photovoltaic (PV) panels as required by the Energy Assessment (Arcadis April 2017) shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details shall
include the type of PVs, the specifications, and the fixing mechanism and angles to the
roof. Elevations and roof plans clearly showing the inclusion of the PVs shall also be
included. The development must proceed in accordance with the approved details.

Reason
To secure the CO2 reductions set out in the Energy Assessment in compliance with
London Plan (2016) Policy 5.2.

13 COM16 Scheme for site noise control

The development shall not begin until a scheme which specifies the provisions to be
made for the control of noise from the All Weather Pitch from the site has been submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. In particular the scheme shall
consider where noise reduction fencing should be installed to reduce noise around goal
areas for hockey and football.

The scheme shall include such combination of physical, administrative measures, noise
limits and other measures as may be approved by the Local Planning Authority.
Thereafter, the scheme shall be implemented and maintained in full compliance with the
approved measures.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of the surrounding area in accordance with policies OE1 and
OES3 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

14 COM17 Control of site noise rating level

The rating level of noise emitted from any plant and/or machinery installed shall be at least
5 dB below the existing background noise level. The noise levels shall be determined at
the nearest residential property. The measurements and assessment shall be made in
accordance with British Standard 4142.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of the surrounding area in accordance with policies OE1 and
OES3 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

15 NONSC Internal noise

The scheme shall meet acceptable internal noise design criteria to guard against external
noises as set out by BS 8233: 2014 - Guidance on sound insulation and noise reduction
for buildings.

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 36



REASON

To ensure that the occupiers of the proposed development are not adversely affected by
external noise sources in accordance with policy OE5 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

16 NONSC Car Park Management Plan

Prior to occupation of the development a Car Park Management Strategy shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The submitted strategy shall contain details of parking allocation for all car parks across
the site; security measures; any parking management equipment such as barriers/cones,
etc; and how this shall be reviewed on an ongoing basis to ensure spaces are allocated to
those in greatest need of a parking space and sustainable travel is encouraged.

Thereafter the areas shall be maintained and managed in accordance with the approved
details in perpetuity.

The car parks must be provided and made available for use prior to occupation of the
development.

REASON

To promote sustainable transport and reduce the impact of the development on the
surrounding road network in accordance with Policies AM2 and AM7 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and London Plan (July 2011)
Policies 6.1 and 6.3.

17 NONSC Delivery and Servicing Plan

Prior to occupation of the development hereby approved a Delivery and Servicing Plan
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This shall:

i) rationalise the number of delivery and servicing trips, particularly during peak traffic
periods, with the aim of reducing the impact of residual freight activity;

ii) ensure there is provision of adequate loading facilities;

iii) ensure that the delivery space and time is actively controlled through a site booking
plan;

iv) Provide details of measures which will be implemented to reduce neighbourhood
impacts.

Operators should also be able to demonstrate their sustainability through membership of
the Freight Operators Recognition Scheme (FORS) or similar.

REASON

To encourage out of hours/off peak servicing to help mitigate the site's contribution to local
congestion levels in compliance with Policy AM2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and Policy 6,14 of the London Plan (2015).

18 NONSC Construction Logistics Plan

Prior to the commencement of development a Construction Logistics Plan shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This plan shall
consider the cumulative impacts of construction traffic and provide details of likely
construction trips generated, and mitigation proposed. Details should include;

i) site access arrangements (vehicular and pedestrian) and parking provisions for
contractors during the development process (including measures to reduce the numbers
of construction vehicles accessing the site during peak hours),

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 37



ii) booking systems,

iii) construction phasing,

iv) vehicular routes,

v) scope for load consolidation in order to reduce the number of road trips generated,

vi) measures to improve safety to vulnerable road users'

vii) measures to prevent mud and dirt tracking onto footways and adjoining roads
(including wheel washing facilities),

The CLP would also need to take account of construction of other developments in the
area.

The approved details shall be implemented and maintained throughout the duration of the
demolition and construction process.

REASON

To reduce the impacts of construction on the surrounding highway network and to
safeguard the amenity of surrounding areas in accordance with Policies OE1 and AM2 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and Policy 6,14
of the London Plan (2015).

19 NONSC Aracheological requirements

No development shall take place until a stage 1 written scheme of investigation (WSI) has
been submitted to and approved by the local planning authority in writing. For land that is
included within the WSI, no demolition or development shall take place other than in
accordance with the agreed WSI, and the programme and methodology of site evaluation
and the nomination of a competent person(s) or organisation to undertake the agreed
works.

If heritage assets of archaeological interest are identified by stage 1 then for those parts of
the site which have archaeological interest a stage 2 WSI shall be submitted to and
approved by the local planning authority in writing. For land that is included within the stage
2 WSI, no demolition/development shall take place other than in accordance with the
agreed stage 2 WSI which shall include:

A. The statement of significance and research objectives, the programme and
methodology of site investigation and recording and the nomination of a competent
person(s) or organisation to undertake the agreed works.

B. The programme for post-investigation assessment and subsequent analysis,
publication & dissemination and deposition of resulting material. this part of the condition
shall not be discharged until these elements have been fulfilled in accordance with the
programme set out in the stage 2 WSI.

REASON

To accord with Policy BE3 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012), because heritage assets of archaeological interest may survive on the
site and because the planning authority wishes to secure the provision of appropriate
archaeological investigation including the publication of results.

20 NONSC Changing Places condition

The proposed Hygiene Room shall be fitted in accordance with the exact specifications of
a 'Changing Places' cubicle.

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 38



REASON
To ensure fully accessible facilities are provided in accordance with policy 7.2 of the
London Plan (2016).

21 NONSC Automatic light switch off

Measures shall be be put in place to ensure that lights, including car park lighting, are
automatically turned off when the buildings are not in use.

REASON

To safeguard residential amenity in accordance with policies BE13 and OE1 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and to reduce
energcy demands in accordance with London Plan (2015) Policy 5.2.

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
the London Plan (2015) and national guidance.

OoL1 Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new
development

OoL2 Green Belt -landscaping improvements

BE3 Investigation of sites of archaeological interest and protection of
archaeological remains

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

EC3 Potential effects of development on sites of nature conservation
importance

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation
measures

OE7 Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood

protection measures

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 39



OES8

R4
R5

R16

R17

AM2

AM7
AM9

AM13

AM14
AM15
LPP 3.18
LPP 3.19
LPP 5.1
LPP 5.12
LPP 5.13
LPP 5.15
LPP 5.2
LPP 5.3
LPP 5.7
LPP 6.1
LPP 6.13
LPP 6.3
LPP 6.9
LPP 7.15

LPP 7.16
LPP 7.19
LPP 7.2
LPP 7.21
LPP 7.3
LPP 7.4
LPP 8.2
NPPF

3

1

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures
Proposals that would involve the loss of recreational open space
Proposals that involve the loss of sports, leisure, community,
religious, cultural or entertainment facilities

Accessibility for elderly people, people with disabilities, women and
children

Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation
leisure and community facilities

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design
of highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking
facilities

AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people
and people with disabilities in development schemes through (where
appropriate): -

(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services

(ii) Shopmobility schemes

(iii) Convenient parking spaces

(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street
furniture schemes

New development and car parking standards.

Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

(2016) Education Facilities

(2016) Sports Facilities

(2016) Climate Change Mitigation

(2016) Flood risk management

(2016) Sustainable drainage

(2016) Water use and supplies

(2016) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions

(2016) Sustainable design and construction

(2016) Renewable energy

(2016) Strategic Approach

(2016) Parking

(2016) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity
(2016) Cycling

(2016) Reducing and managing noise, improving and enhancing the
acoustic environment and promoting appropriate soundscapes.
(2016) Green Belt

(2016) Biodiversity and access to nature

(2016) An inclusive environment

(2016) Trees and woodlands
)
)

— - S S S S

(2016) Designing out crime

(2016) Local character

(2016) Planning obligations

National Planning Policy Framework

Building to Approved Drawing

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 40



drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

4 13 Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at least
6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed plans
must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Residents Services, Building Control, 3N/01 Civic
Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

5 111 The Construction (Design and Management) Regulations
1994

The development hereby approved may be subject to the Construction (Design and
Management) Regulations 1994, which govern health and safety through all stages of a
construction project. The regulations require clients (ie. those, including developers, who
commision construction projects) to appoint a planning supervisor and principal contractor
who are competent and adequately resourced to carry out their health and safety
responsibilities. Further information is available from the Health and Safety Executive,
Rose Court, 2 Southwark Bridge Road, London, SE1 9HS (telephone 020 7556 2100).

6 112 Notification to Building Contractors

The applicant/developer should ensure that the site constructor receives copies of all
drawings approved and conditions/informatives attached to this planning permission.
During building construction the name, address and telephone number of the contractor
(including an emergency telephone number) should be clearly displayed on a hoarding
visible from outside the site.

7 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between
the hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 41



(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section
61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction
other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would
minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

8 119 Sewerage Connections, Water Pollution etc.

You should contact Thames Water Utilities and the Council's Building Control Service
regarding any proposed connection to a public sewer or any other possible impact that the
development could have on local foul or surface water sewers, including building over a
public sewer. Contact: - The Waste Water Business Manager, Thames Water Utilities plc,
Kew Business Centre, Kew Bridge Road, Brentford, Middlesex, TW8 OEE.

Building Control Service - 3N/01, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (tel.
01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

9 134 Building Regulations 'Access to and use of buildings'

Compliance with Building Regulations 'Access to and use of buildings' and Disability
Discrimination Act 1995 for commercial and residential development.

You are advised that the scheme is required to comply with either:-

- The Building Regulations 2000 Approved Document Part M 'Access to and use of
buildings', or with

- BS 8300:2001 Design of buildings and their approaches to meet the needs of disabled
people - Code of practice. AMD 15617 2005, AMD 15982 2005.

These documents (which are for guidance) set minimum standards to allow residents,
workers and visitors, regardless of disability, age or gender, to gain access to and within
buildings, and to use their facilities and sanitary conveniences.

You may also be required make provisions to comply with the Disability Discrimination Act
1995. The Act gives disabled people various rights. Under the Act it is unlawful for
employers and persons who provide services to members of the public to discriminate
against disabled people by treating them less favourably for any reason related to their
disability, or by failing to comply with a duty to provide reasonable adjustments. This duty
can require the removal or modification of physical features of buildings provided it is
reasonable.

The duty to make reasonable adjustments can be effected by the Building Regulation
compliance. For compliance with the DDA please refer to the following guidance: -

- The Disability Discrimination Act 1995. Available to download from www.opsi.gov.uk

- Disability Rights Commission (DRC) Access statements. Achieving an inclusive
environment by ensuring continuity throughout the planning, design and management of
building and spaces, 2004. Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

- Code of practice. Rights of access. Goods, facilities, services and premises. Disability
discrimination act 1995, 2002. ISBN 0 11702 860 6. Available to download from

www.drc-gb.org.

- Creating an inclusive environment, 2003 & 2004 - What it means to you. A guide for
service providers, 2003. Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 42



This is not a comprehensive list of Building Regulations legislation. For further information
you should contact Building Control on 01895 250804/5/6.

10

The Council's Access Officer has provided the following advice:

a) The Equality Act 2010 seeks to protect people accessing goods, facilities and services
from discrimination on the basis of a 'protected characteristic', which includes those with
a disability. As part of the Act, service providers are obliged to improve access to and
within the structure of their building, particularly in situations where reasonable adjustment
can be incorporated with relative ease. The Act states that service providers should think
ahead to take steps to address barriers that impede disabled people.

b) Fixtures, fittings and furnishings, particularly hard materials should be selected to
ensure that sound is not adversely reflected. The design of all learning areas should be
considerate to the needs of people who are hard of hearing or deaf. Reference should be
made to BS 8300:2009+A1:2010, Section 9.1.2, and, BS 223 in selecting an appropriate
acoustic absorbency for each surface.

c) Care should be taken to ensure that the internal decoration achieves a Light
Reflectance Value (LRV) difference of at least 30 points between floor and walls, ceiling
and walls, Including appropriate decor to ensure that doors and door furniture can be
easily located by people with reduced vision.

d) Induction loops should be specified to comply with BS 7594 and BS EN 60118-4, and a
term contract planned for their maintenance.

e) Care must be taken to ensure that overspill and/or other interference from induction
loops in different/adjacent areas does not occur.

f) Flashing beacons/strobe lights linked to the fire alarm should be carefully selected and
installed to ensure they remain within the technical thresholds not to adversely affect
people with epilepsy.

11
Thames Water have advised as follows:

Surface Water Drainage

With regard to surface water drainage it is the responsibility of a developer to make proper
provision for drainage to ground, water courses or a suitable sewer. In respect of surface
water it is recommended that the applicant should ensure that storm flows are attenuated
or regulated into the receiving public network through on or off site storage. When it is
proposed to connect to a combined public sewer, the site drainage should be separate
and combined at the final manhole nearest the boundary. Connections are not permitted
for the removal of groundwater. Where the developer proposes to discharge to a public
sewer, prior approval from Thames Water Developer Services will be required. The
contact number is 0800 009 3921.

Reason - to ensure that the surface water discharge from the site shall not be detrimental
to the existing sewerage system.

Water Comments

With regard to water supply, this comes within the area covered by the Affinity Water
Company. For your information the address to write to is - Affinity Water Company The
Hub, Tamblin Way, Hatfield, Herts, AL10 9EZ - Tel - 0845 782 3333.

12
With regard to condition 19 (archaeological requirements) you are advised as follows:

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 43



Written schemes of investigation will need to be prepared and implemented by a suitably
professionally accredited archaeological practice in accordance with Historic England's
Guidelines for Archaeological Projects in Greater London. This condition is exempt from
deemed discharge under schedule 6 of The Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015.

The archaeological fieldwork should comprise the following:

Evaluation

An archaeological field evaluation involves exploratory fieldwork to determine if significant
remains are present on a site and if so to define their character, extent, quality and
preservation. Field evaluation may involve one or more techniques depending on the
nature of the site and its archaeological potential. It will normally include excavation of trial
trenches. A field evaluation report will usually be used to inform a planning decision
(predetermination evaluation) but can also be required by condition to refine a mitigation
strategy after permission has been granted.

In this case trial trenching on the locations of the extension and new All Weather Pitch
would satisfy stage 1 of the condition with further investigation following under stage 2 if
significant remains are found.

13

You are advised that full planning permission would be required for the installation of any
floodlighting at the site.

14

With regard to condition 8 (landscaping) the Council's Access Officer has advised that full
details of the pathway leading to the All Weather Pitch must be provided. Whilst the use of
compacted gravel is acceptable in principle, the use of this and similar loose material on a
gradient can cause a wheelchair user to lose traction and veer off course resulting in
potential injury. Where the gradient exceeds 1:15, resin bonded gravel should be used.

15

You are advised to take a holistic approach to disabled access across the site. It is noted
that internal refurbishment works are proposed to various parts of the existing school
building and you are encouraged to incorporate improvements to access as part of these
works where opportunity exists.

16

With regard to condition 6, the GLA have advised that in terms of the materials proposed it
should be demonstrated how the scheme will meet the requirements of London Plan
Policy 7.13 relating to fire safety solutions and best practice in fire safety in both design
and management.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

Vyners School occupies an approximately 4.2 hectare, irregularly shaped plot, located on
the southern side of Warren Road in Ickenham.

The existing school buildings, which are located relatively centrally within the site, are

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 44



predominantly two and three storeys high, although there are also several single-storey
elements/blocks. Tennis courts and car parking are located to the east and south east of
the school buildings. Car parking is also located to the north of the school buildings. Playing
fields occupy the western side of the site. There is a significant level change between the
playing fields, which are are located on higher ground, and the remainder of the school site

The school is bounded to the north by residential properties, beyond which is Warren
Road. To the east, south and west it is bounded by woodland which extends around the
periphery and into the south east corner of the school site. A public footpath, forming part of
The Celandine Route, runs alongside the school's fenceline providing access to a
footbridge across the A40, which lies beyond the woodland to the south. The school has
gated access to the footpath and bridge, providing its pupils with direct access to off-site
playing fields owned by the school and forming part of the much larger Council owned
Hillingdon House Farm public open space to the south.

Vehicular and pedestrian access to the site is via Warren Road. Vehicular access to the
playing field, for maintenance vehicles only, is available between residential properties
towards the western end of the site. Vehicular access for visitors and staff is gained
centrally (between nos. 36 and 38 Warren Road) with egress via an easterly located
access adjacent to no.60 Warren Road. This effectively creates a one-way system through
the site for vehicular traffic. Pedestrians are able to use either access.

The entire school site falls within the Green Belt as designated in the Hillingdon Local Plan.
A Tree Preservation Order covers the site and the land to the south and east is designated
as a Nature Conservation Site of Borough Grade Il or Local Importance.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

This application seeks full planning permission for development associated with the
expansion of Vyners School from a 6FE to an 8FE secondary school.

This would enable an increase in pupil numbers from 1151 to 1451, representing a total
increase of 300 (including sixth form). Staff numbers would increase from 152 to 192,
representing an increase of 40.

The proposals seek to demolish an existing single-storey extension to the sports hall and to
replace this with a large two-storey extension to create new teaching space and
associated facilities. This would comprise new classrooms, administrative space and
offices, storage, a new dining room, WCs, a library, a Special Educational Needs (SEN)
suite, a sixth form area, circulation space and associated facilities. It would link, at first floor
level, to the existing eastern gable end of the art/DT block.

The extension would be of a modern design, characterised by a mix of timber cladding,
patinated copper effect cladding and white render. Due to the way the school has grown
and expanded over time the existing/original main entrance has become understated and
has lost its focal point. Accordingly, this seeks to provide a new and inviting main entrance
and focal point to the school.

To the rear of the new extension a landscaped courtyard would be created to provide an
external dining/seating area for pupils.

The school currently operates a one-way, anti-clockwise access system which provides
access to the staff car park and the pupil drop-off area. This proposal seeks to reverse this

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 45



system to be clockwise. This would enable the new extension to become the new entrance
and main focal point of the school, as mentioned above.

No increase in car parking is proposed. However, the existing car parking provision would
be reconfigured to provide a more efficient and effective layout. An increase in cycle
parking provision is proposed. Numbers quoted across the different documents submitted
are inconsistent but this would be in the range of 30 additional spaces.

To the south west of the existing main school buildings an array of mobile classrooms
would be demolished and the area landscaped to provide additional external space for
pupils. An existing mobile classroom unit, located within the car park to the north of the
existing buildings, would also be removed.

A new artificial grass All Weather Pitch (AWP) capable for use for a number of sports
would be provided on the playing field. This would be bounded by 3m high fencing. It is
understood the fencing to its west would be retractable to provide enhanced flexibility of the
wider playing field area and enable as wide a range of sports as is possible to be played
here. Notably, a new cricket strip would be provided adjacent to this so that the playing field
can still be used for cricket when the fencing is retracted.

No floodlighting is proposed, but the applicant has confirmed that the facilities would be
available for community use outside school hours.

At the school's offsite playing fields, located at Hillingdon House Farm, a new cricket strip
would also be created to ensure no loss in overall quality of cricket provision occurs as a
result of the proposals. To offset the loss of playing field which would occur at the school
site, it is also proposed to make a contribution towards offsite drainage improvements to
football pitches at Hillingdon House Farm, following a need identified by the Council's Green
Spaces Team. Hilllingdon House Farm is a public open space and so those pitches would
be available to all.

Internal refurbishment works, not requiring planning permission, would also be carried out
to a number of areas of the existing school building.

3.3 Relevant Planning History
Comment on Relevant Planning History

The school buildings have been significantly altered and extended since originally built and
the site has an extensive planning history. However, none is directly relevant to the current
application.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
Policy Statement - Planning for Schools Development (DCLG, 15/08/11)
London Plan (2015)

National Planning Policy Framework

Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document: Accessible Hillingdon
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document: Residential Layouts
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Community Safety by Design
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Noise

Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Air Quality

Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Planning Obligations

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 46



UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.CI1 (2012) Community Infrastructure Provision
PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment
PT1.EM1 (2012) Climate Change Adaptation and Mitigation

)
)
)
PT1.EM2 (2012) Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains
PT1.EM5 (2012) Sport and Leisure
PT1.EM6 (2012) Flood Risk Management
PT1.EM7 (2012) Biodiversity and Geological Conservation

)

PT1.HE1 (2012) Heritage

Part 2 Policies:

OL1 Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new development

oL2 Green Belt -landscaping improvements

BE3 Investigation of sites of archaeological interest and protection of archaeological
remains

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

EC3 Potential effects of development on sites of nature conservation importance

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures

OE7 Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood protection measures

OES8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

R4 Proposals that would involve the loss of recreational open space

RS Proposals that involve the loss of sports, leisure, community, religious, cultural or
entertainment facilities

R16 Accessibility for elderly people, people with disabilities, women and children

R17 Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation, leisure and

community facilities

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 47



AM2

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM9 Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of highway
improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking facilities

AM13 AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people and people witt
disabilities in development schemes through (where appropriate): -
(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services
(i) Shopmobility schemes
(iii) Convenient parking spaces
(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street furniture schemes

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

AM15 Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

LPP 3.18 (2016) Education Facilities

LPP 3.19 (2016) Sports Facilities

LPP 5.1 (2016) Climate Change Mitigation

LPP 5.12 (2016) Flood risk management

LPP 5.13 (2016) Sustainable drainage

LPP 5.15 (2016) Water use and supplies

LPP 5.2 (2016) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions

LPP 5.3 (2016) Sustainable design and construction

LPP 5.7 (2016) Renewable energy

LPP 6.1 (2016) Strategic Approach

LPP 6.13 (2016) Parking

LPP 6.3 (2016) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity

LPP 6.9 (2016) Cycling

LPP 7.15 (2016) Reducing and managing noise, improving and enhancing the acoustic
environment and promoting appropriate soundscapes.

LPP 7.16 (2016) Green Belt

LPP 7.19 (2016) Biodiversity and access to nature

LPP 7.2 (2016) An inclusive environment

LPP 7.21 (2016) Trees and woodlands

LPP 7.3 (2016) Designing out crime

LPP 7.4 (2016) Local character

LPP 8.2 (2016) Planning obligations

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 16th June 2017
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 48



6. Consultations
External Consultees

Consultation letters were sent to 67 local owner/occupiers and the Ickenham Residents'
Association. Site and press notices were also posted. Three letters of objection have been received
which raise the following concerns:

i) The current exit is also used out of school hours as an entrance for large vehicles. However, it is
difficult to navigate for large vehicles, which cause congestion and damage to the grass verges and
pavements when manoeuvring to gain access. The proposals will worsen this situation unless the
gates are widened.

ii) Loss of outlook to residential properties in Warren Road.

iii) Visual impact of 9m high ball-stop fencing.

iv) Lack of clarity over whether landscape screening will be provided.

V) Impact on residential amenity.

vi) Impact on property saleability and values.

vii) The all weather pitch is too cloe to residential properties.

viii) Increase in balls coming over gardens fences, which is dangerous for small children.

ix) Gardens will become unusable.

x) Gardens have recently been flooded with excess rainwater.

xi) The all weather pitch should be located on the fields on the opposite side of the A40.

ICKENHAM RESIDENTS ASSOCIATION

We have studied the proposed plans (in the short period available) for an expansion of Vyners
School in Ickenham and find that the planning details submitted appear to be within the UDP
guidelines, and welcome the striking, interesting modern design of the proposed extension, which
seems to contrast well with the rather drab existing blocks. Whilst we as an Association do not
normally support applications, we can see merit in this project providing much needed extra senior
school capacity for the LOCAL community. It may also reduce any pressures for another school in
Ickenham.

School Travel Plan - a Major Concern:

As with previous school applications, we urge the LBH Planning Team to make delivery of the school
travel plan a condition, if permission is granted, based on a revised travel plan with a better
evidenced baseline and more challenging targets for reducing car journeys. We would be happy to
help revise the travel plan to ensure we don't miss this opportunity to agree a genuinely ambitious
long term plan which could deliver wide-ranging benefits for pupils, staff and wider community.

We are delighted to see a prominent section of the plan about delivery, clearly stating that the school
will be responsible for annual monitoring and reporting against the plan objectives.

With 420 extra pupils and 51 extra staff expected in the expanded school, we believe the travel plans
are lacking in several important areas:

- the 50% response rate to the survey that underpins the baselines used to set the targets is
extremely dissapointing, and weakens the evidence base considerably. - the plan is surprisingly
unambitious on the all-important modal shift. The baseline seems to paint a picture of a school that
despite great public transport links, struggles to get staff (and pupils, to a lesser extent) to avoid car
journeys. Given local roads are considered generally conducive to cycling, how well served the
school is by bus stops (550 m from school) and the tube (1.3km -16 mins walk), we feel the school
should be pushing for far more demanding sustainable travel targets. The School Travel plan for the
expanded Glebe committed to zero net additional car movements. We want to see the same
ambition for Vyners.

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 49



- in other areas, the plan seems unrealistic - the lack of additional car-parking spaces for 50 extra
teachers does not seem to account for the meagre targets for getting staff out of cars.

The proposed addition of 30 extra cycle parking spaces (from 120 to 150) further reflects the
unambitious nature of the plan.

The Plan is also unclear on how many car journeys are associated with the morning and afternoon
peaks, so monitoring cannot be effective.

Finally, with 120 out of 150 staff currently driving to school, we worry that, if the schools can't get
more staff out of their cars, what hope do they have of encouraging pupils and parents to make
more sustainable transport choices?

Disappointing though to read the Travel Plan consultant's assertion that the school facilities are not
widely

utilised for community use. The Residents' Association will be happy to help the school reach out to
the wider community to ensure increase in community use following any redevelopment.

HISTORIC ENGLAND

The main indicator that either of the two sites subject to this planning application have archaeological
potential comes from investigations conducted along the Harefield to Southall gas pipeline in 2008 to
2009. This revealed features of later prehistoric and Roman date to the south of Western Avenue
which it was suggested may have lain on the edge of a settlement area located on the higher land of
the sports ground. Unfortunately the sports ground itself was found to have been so
comprehensively landscaped and disturbed that nothing survived.

Vyner's School lies about 250m to the north of the previous finds and in a similar topgraphical
location (east facing slope between the ridge to the west and River Pinn to the east) so similar
remains might be present there albeit disturbed by the school. The main potential for survival is
probably in the playing field west of the school buildings.

As noted above the School Sports Ground is on the ridge top which would have had higher potential
but unfortunately is known to have been disturbed.

The National Planning Policy Framework (Section 12) and the London Plan (2011 Policy 7.8)
emphasise that the conservation of archaeological interest is a material consideration in the planning
process. Paragraph 128 of the NPPF says that applicants should submit desk-based assessments,
and where appropriate undertake field evaluation, to describe the significance of heritage assets and
how they would be affected by the proposed development. This information should be supplied to
inform the planning decision. If planning consent is

granted paragraph 141 of the NPPF says that applicants should be required to record and advance
understanding of the significance of any heritage assets to be lost (wholly or in part) and to make
this evidence publicly available.

Appraisal of this application using the Greater London Historic Environment Record and information
submitted with the application indicates the need for field evaluation to determine appropriate
mitigation. However, although the NPPF envisages evaluation being undertaken prior to
determination, in this case consideration of the nature of the

development, the archaeological interest and/or practical constraints are such that | consider a
condition could provide an acceptable safeguard. A condition is therefore recommended to require a
two-stage process of archaeological investigation comprising: first, evaluation to clarify the nature
and extent of surviving remains, followed, if necessary, by a full investigation. The archaeological
interest should therefore be conserved by attaching a condition as follows:

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 50



No development shall take place until a stage 1 written scheme of investigation (WSI) has been
submitted to and approved by the local planning authority in writing. For land that is included within
the WSI, no demolition or development shall take place other than in accordance with the agreed
WSI, and the programme and methodology of site evaluation and the nomination of a competent
person(s) or organisation to undertake the agreed works.

If heritage assets of archaeological interest are identified by stage 1 then for those parts of the site
which have archaeological interest a stage 2 WSI shall be submitted to and approved by the local
planning authority in writing. For land that is included within the stage 2 WSI, no
demolition/development shall take place other than in accordance with the agreed stage 2 WSI
which shall include:

A. The statement of significance and research objectives, the programme and methodology of site
investigation and recording and the nomination of a competent person(s) or organisation to
undertake the agreed works.

B. The programme for post-investigation assessment and subsequent analysis, publication &
dissemination and deposition of resulting material. this part of the condition shall not be discharged
until these elements have been fulfilled in accordance with the programme set out in the stage 2
WSI.

Informative: Written schemes of investigation will need to be prepared and implemented by a
suitably professionally accredited archaeological practice in accordance with Historic England's
Guidelines for Archaeological Projects in Greater London. This condition is exempt from deemed
discharge under schedule 6 of The Town and Country Planning (Development Management
Procedure) (England) Order 2015.

| envisage that the archaeological fieldwork would comprise the following:

Evaluation

An archaeological field evaluation involves exploratory fieldwork to determine if significant remains
are present on a site and if so to define their character, extent, quality and preservation. Field
evaluation may involve one or more techniques depending on the nature of the site and its
archaeological potential. It will normally include excavation of trial trenches. A field evaluation report
will usually be used to inform a planning decision (predetermination

evaluation) but can also be required by condition to refine a mitigation strategy after permission has
been granted.

In this case ftrial trenching on the locations of the extension and new All Weather Pitch would satisfy
stage 1 of the condition with further investigation following under stage 2 if significant
remains are found.

SPORT ENGLAND

The site is considered to constitute playing field, or land last used as playing field, as defined in The
Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015
(Statutory Instrument 2015 No. 595). As such Sport England is a statutory consultee.

Sport England has sought to consider the application in light of the National Planning Policy
Framework (particularly Para. 74) and Sport England's Playing Fields Policy, 'A Sporting Future for
the Playing Fields of England.’

Unfortunately there is insufficient information to enable Sport England to adequately assess the

proposal or to make a substantive response. Please therefore could the following information be
provided as soon as possible:

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 51



1. There is insufficient information in relation to the proposed Artificial Grass Pitch (AGP) for Sport
England to assess its impact in relation to its playing field policy.

Sport England would need to understand the proposed surface, size and proposed pitch
dimensions. Sport England has concerns at this stage that the proposed AGP would not meet Sport
England/FA/RFU guidance.

Having consulted with National Governing Bodies there appears to be demand for both football and
rugby use of the AGP which should have an influence on the proposed specification.

Sport England's guidance can provide further detail which can be found at
https://www.sportengland.org/facilities-planning/design-and-cost-guidance/

2. Confirmation that the existing cricket wicket on the playing field adjacent to the main school
building would be removed.

3. The application proposes community use of the proposed facility which is a factor that Sport
England would consider when determining whether the proposed development is of benefit to sport
to outweigh the loss of playing field. Peak community use is during the evenings and at weekends
therefore the floodlighting of such facilities is important to ensure effective community use. The
application does not proposed floodlighting therefore could the applicant be requested to elaborate
on the reasons for the lack of floodlighting and limiting the community, and sporting, benefits of the
proposal?

Sport England's interim position on this proposal is to submit a holding objection.

THAMES WATER

Waste Comments

Thames Water would advise that with regard to sewerage infrastructure capacity, we would not
have any objection to the above planning application.

Surface Water Drainage

With regard to surface water drainage it is the responsibility of a developer to make proper provision
for drainage to ground, water courses or a suitable sewer. In respect of surface water it is
recommended that the applicant should ensure that storm flows are attenuated or regulated into the
receiving public network through on or off site storage. When it is proposed to connect to a
combined public sewer, the site drainage should be separate and combined at the final manhole
nearest the boundary. Connections are not permitted for the removal of groundwater. Where the
developer proposes to discharge to a public sewer, prior approval from Thames Water Developer
Services will be required. The contact number is 0800 009 3921.

Reason - to ensure that the surface water discharge from the site shall not be detrimental to the
existing sewerage system.

Water Comments

With regard to water supply, this comes within the area covered by the Affinity Water Company. For
your information the address to write to is - Affinity Water Company The Hub, Tamblin Way, Hatfield,
Herts, AL10 9EZ - Tel - 0845 782 3333.

TRANSPORT FOR LONDON (TFL) (SUMMARY COMMENTS)
The following issues stand to be resolved in discussions between Hillingdon Council, the applicant
and TfL:

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 52



- At least 16 additional cycle parking spaces are required to meet the London Plan standards.

- A total contribution of £300,000 is requested towards creating an additional bus service to
accommodate the increase in pupils as a direct result of the development

- A CLP should be submitted;

- The Travel Plan should be secured by s106 agreement;

- Blue badge spaces should be secured by way of condition.

GREATER LONDON AUTHORITY (GLA) (SUMMARY COMMENTS)

London Plan policies on provision of school facilities, Green Belt, open space/ playing fields,
community use, urban and inclusive design, sustainable development, and transport are the key
strategic issues relevant to this planning application. On balance, the application does not fully
comply with the London Plan. The following changes might, however, remedy the above-mentioned
deficiencies, and could possibly lead to the application becoming compliant with the London Plan:

- Land use - educational facilities on Green Belt, open space/playing fields: Very special
circumstances that include educational need, lack of alternative site and wider community benefits
may exist to justify the proposed extension of the school located within the previously developed
Green Belt. However, detailed CGl visuals should be submitted.

- Playing fields and community use: A community use plan, which makes available the sport
facilities in the school for community use outside the school's core hours, should be secured. As the
site is a designated open space/playing field, negotiations with Sport England and local clubs is
strongly recommended and the results of the negotiations should be shared with the GLA.

- Urban and inclusive design: The Council must secure key details of the materials to be used. The
applicant should demonstrate how it will meet the requirements of London Plan Policy 7.13 relating
to fire safety solutions and best practice in fire safety in both design and management. All the
proposed inclusive design measures should be secured.

- Sustainable development: The carbon savings meet the London Plan target. However, further
information is required related to overheating and cooling demand, site heat network, and the carbon
savings associated with the photo voltaic panels. BRUKL worksheets should also be submitted.

- Transport: A contribution of £300,000 is requested to improve bus capacity. Provision of cycle
parking spaces needs to be increased. A construction logistics plan should be provided and secured
along the travel plan submitted.

Officer comment: The issues raised are addressed in the report of by way of condition. The request
for CGls is noted. The Design and Access Statement contains CGls. Furthermore, very limited
views into the site exist. Accordingly, clarification over what the GLA wish the CGls to show has
been sought. An update will be provided to committee.

With regard to community use, a Community Use Agreement is sought by way of S106 agreement.

A condition would be attached seeking full details of all external materials and this would address the
GLA's comments regarding fire safety. An informative has also been attached in this regard.

Further information to satisfy the GLA's comments relating to sustainability has been sought from
the applicant and an update on this matter will be provided by way of a Committee Addendum.

The transport matters raised reiterate TfL's comments and are addressed in the report and by way
of condition or S106 agreement.

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 53



Internal Consultees

HIGHWAY ENGINEER

This application is for a major extension to the existing Vyners Secondary School at Warren Road,
Ickenham. The scope of the Transport Assessment supplied by Local Transport Projects (April
2017), was discussed and agreed during pre-application discussions.

Vyners Secondary School is located off Warren Road, a local residential road, with parking
restrictions in place. The dwellings in Warren Road have ample off -street car parking.

The access to the site is via a one-way loop road that provides egress to Warren Road further to the
west. The loop road also provides access to the 100 space staff car park and an opportunity for
parents to drop off/pick up children prior to 0815 and after 1615.

This application is for increasing pupil facilities that see pupil numbers grow by 300 (from 1151 to
1451) and for staff to grow from 152(FTE) to 192. The site PTAL value of 1b (very poor) suggests
there will be a strong reliance on private car trips but there are bus stops within easy walking
distance of the school. A travel mode split for pupils at the school was derived from a survey in
March 2017 and that identified that the majority (52%) of pupils walked to school whereas 8% used
private car, 9% shared private car and 4% (sixth form) came to school in their own car. 15% of
students used the local bus services and 9% cycled.

From the above it is clear that nearly 80% of pupils used sustainable modes which is good for a
school with low PTAL values.

Staff travel was predominantly (70%) by car.

There are clear wide footways along Warren Road that lead to Swakeleys Road in the west and
Swakeleys Drive in the north-east. There is also a footpath across the site that crosses the A40 and
leads towards Uxbridge. The TA provided traffic data on the arrivals and departures at the school
and during the hour 0730 to 0830 there was a peak in traffic flow and similarly in the afternoon
between 1620 and 1720.

The TA provided a review of existing casualty accidents for the area surrounding the school over the
last 5 years and 7 collisions were recorded. This data showed that pupils were not involved in the
casualties in the area.

The increased pupils at the school will result in additional trips and the TA suggests that 32
additional two-way car trips would be generated in both the morning and afternoon peak periods. The
increased number of staff will add a further 30 two-way trips to the morning and afternoon periods.
The TA suggests that the increase in traffic will not have a material impact on the operation of the
highway network. The consultants carried out a parking beat survey of the area surrounding the
school. There was a small amount of on-street car parking associated with the school at drop-off
and pick-up times but this did not interrupt traffic flows in the area. Drop-off and pick-ups were
allowed within the school site during certain time periods and that facility was used. The TA
concluded that there is ample on-street car parking capacity to deal with the increase in pupils.

The proposals also include reversing the direction of the access road which should not cause
problems. The proposals also include providing 30 additional cycle parking spaces which is
supported given the high proportion of cyclists at the school. The application also included a draft
School Travel Plan which should be enacted 3 months after occupation of the new facility.

In the light of the above comments no significant highway concerns are raised over the above
application.

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 54



TREES/LANDSCAPE OFFICER
This school site has been the subject of pre-application meetings and discussion, particularly
regarding tree loss / safeguarding within or close to a nature conservation area.

An Arboricultural Constraints Report, by SES, has been submitted. The assessment has identified
one mixed woodland area (Category A) and three tree groups (of mixed categories). There are 17
individual specimens which include an 'A' grade oak (T14) near the entrance with the other trees
predominantly 'B' grade with some 'C's'.

The Tree Protection Plan reflects the outcome of earlier advice. Details of proposed tree work to the
oak (T14) will be required, as will a Construction Method Statement.

In view of the proximity of T14 to the proposed development arboricultural supervision / monitoring
should be secured during the site operations.

A Bat Building and Tree Inspection report, by EPR, has been submitted. This concludes (clause 4.1)
that further specialist survey work is required.

Recommendation: No objection subject to the above comments and conditions COM8 (Tree
Protection), COM9 (parts 1,2,4,5 and 6) (Landscaping) and COM10 (Trees to be retained).

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION UNIT
The scheme shall meet acceptable internal noise design criteria to guard against external noises as
set out by BS 8233: 2014 - Guidance on sound insulation and noise reduction for buildings.

Activities in the school playground or any other external areas must not give rise to public nuisance -
light/dust/noise. An environmental noise survey may be appropriate if external use for activities is
intended.

Conditions relating to sound insulation, control of plant/machinery noise and dust should be attached
should planning permission be granted. The standard informative relating to control of nuisance from
construction works should also be attached.

It is noted that no floodlighting is proposed. Floodloghting would have potential to cause public
nuisance. The close proximity of homes to the All Weather Pitch would make it extremely difficult to
prevent light intrusion into habitable areas. Very careful consideration would need to be given to any
lighting provided in this location.

Officer comment: Dust from construction work would be controlled by Environmental Health

legislation and, accordingly, a condition in this respect is not considered necessary in this instance.

WASTE STRATEGY
No objection.

ACCESS OFFICER

This proposed development seeks to extend the existing sports hall, provide a replacement sports
storage facility, new teaching spaces, administrative facilities, a new library and a Special
Educational Needs suite to include a 'Changing Places' room.

The external environment will be reorientated to permit the main pedestrian and vehicle access

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 55



along the tree-lined approach leading from Warren Road. Car parking would be reconfigured to allow
for 100 vehicles, to include two accessible parking bays.

The Design & Access Statement makes reference to dropped kerbs within the reorganised car park.
The D & A Statement and plans confirm level access into the new classrooms and all areas within
the new teaching block. New corridors will be a minimum of 1800 mm wide and vertical circulation
within the new building will be provided via a full passenger lift.

It is noted that a link corridor, leading from the new building to the existing, would be constructed at
first floor level, thus facilitating wheelchair access to the existing art block.

It is understood that a refuge area would be incorporated into the upper stairwell in accordance with
BS 5839: part 9, and, BS 8300:2009.

Access to the All Weather Pitch would be via the existing inclined pathway which would be
resurfaced using compacted gravel.

Comments:

1. All aspects of the external landscape are considered to be acceptable. However, more detail is
needed on the pathway leading to the All Weather Pitch. Whilst the use of compacted gravel is
acceptable in principle, the use of this and similar loose material on a gradient can cause a
wheelchair user to lose traction. veer off course resulting in potential injury. Where the gradient
exceeds 1:15, resin bonded gravel should be used.

2. The development opportunity should be used to carry out a holistic assessment of the existing
school building, particularly in regard to vertical circulation for wheelchair users.

3. The proposed Hygiene Room should be fitted in accordance with the exact specifications of a
'Changing Places' cubicle.

4. An emergency evacuation plan/fire strategy that is specific to the evacuation of persons unable to
escape by stairs should be submitted and reviewed prior to any grant of planning permission.
Provisions could include: a) a stay-put policy within a large fire compartment (e.g. within a
classroom at first floor with suitable fire resisting compartmentalisation); b) provisions to allow the lift
to be used during a fire emergency (e.g. uninterrupted power supply attached to the lift); c)
contingency plans to permit the manual evacuation of disabled people should other methods fail.

Conclusion: further details requested. Standard informatives should be attached to any grant of
planning permission.

Officer comment:

With regard to point 1, this can be dealt with by way of the landscaping condition, as can point 3.
With regard to point 2, it is not considered reasonable to require the applicant to make significant
changes to the existing building where no works requiring planning permission are proposed.

With regard to point 4, this would be covered by building regulations.

FLOOD & WATER MANAGEMENT OFFICER
Summary

A Flood Risk Assessment has been submitted by Ambiental dated March 2017 v1 and Drainage
strategy by Arcadis dated April 2017 v2 Amended 5th May. Ref 5001-UA009222-01. A CCTV survey

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 56



has been submitted alongside these.

It is noted that Rain Water Harvesting in Section 4 is to be considered however then in section 7.4.1
it will not be proposed at this time.This must be considered at this time in order to ensure that these
can be included within a design and build contract.

It is noted that the drainage proposals will control surface water within the site for events up to the 1
in 100 year plus 40 % allowance for climate change.

The report states that "Through the use of trapped gullies and attenuation crates, the proposed
development will attenuate surface water flows, provide water quality treatment and prevent
downstream flooding. These achievements align with the aims and objectives of the London Plan
and other legislative guidelines"

However it is Local Plan and Policy requirements that the proposal should meet, as the Lead Local
Flood Authority is the statutory consultee on surface water. This and other points were made clear in
previous comments. There are still issues with the proposals and clarification which must be
provided before the scheme can be considered in principle acceptable, as it is not clear that a
suitable and sustainable scheme can be implemented on site. Connecting into an existing system
the condition of which is clearly understood to be poor is not acceptable as it is likely to exacerbate
flood risk on the site.

Section 5 states that consultations have been undertaken with the Environment Agency and Thames
Water to agree the drainage strategy for the site neither of which have a remit to agree the strategy
in this case as it is the remit of the Lead Local Flood Authority.

Detailed Comments

Run off rates and volumes:

These should be presented in I/s/ha so that comparison can be made to other developments.
Although it is stated that the proposals will control surface water run off up to the 1 in 100 year plus
40% allowance for climate change. The 50% betterment proposed is not acceptable, London

Borough of Hillingdon as a standard require greenfield run off rates.

The existing run off rate from this area (approximately 1500m2) resulting in 20.6l/s for the 1 year
event.

Proposals limit run off to 8.3I/s for all events up to the 1 in 100 year plus 40% climate change.

In addition the area of the all weather pitch is limited to a discharge of 2I/s for an area which is
unclear. This is an area indicated to be low lying and at risk of surface water flooding shown on the
Environment Agency maps and receive water from a wider catchment area. This allows for the
increase in flow generated by the positive drainage associated with the proposed all weather pitch.
150m3 of geocellular storage is

provided for the area of filter drain and pitches. It is not clear of the calculations that volume is based
on.

In total the discharge will be 10.3Is however the total area used in the calculations is 0.150 ha ie not
including the area which drains to the playing fields and filter drains.

Volumes required for storage:

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 57



The report then states the surface water flows from the remainder of the site will need to be
restricted so that the existing connection can be utilised.

The existing 300mm diameter outfall pipe is estimated to have a capacity of 204l/s. Calculations are
not provided as this should be based on the pressure along that pipe.

In section 7.1 it is stated that the outfall invert level will need to be confirmed prior to detailed design.
This is critical to determine the head. There may not be a free discharge into the river from the outfall
ie it is submerged. Understanding this level if utilising the existing invert, must be done now to
determine the volume needed on site and that there is appropriate space feasible to provide
sustainable attenuation. This also has implications if the invert level is not appropriate, and the falls
need to be altered.

The report states that to contain flows from the 1 in 100 year plus 40% climate change event, 314m3
of additional storage is required for the existing school, with a restricted outflow of 195.71/s . This
flow rate and volume is reliant upon the condition and gradient (head or pressure) of the existing
outfall pipe which is currently unknown.

The London Borough of Hlllingdon would not find it acceptable to accept the indicated proposal to
upsize the pipe to allow discharge to the river, increasing the risks. This must be removed from the
strategy.

Sustainable Drainage Methods:
No consideration of living roofs appear to have been included as requested.

Rainwater harvesting is to be considered at a later stage, and or what is being done to reduce the
potable water supply.

No proposals to make the system fit for purpose:

In Section 3 it is acknowledged that the state and condition of the existing pipeline is poor and outfall
has fallen into the river. The Amethyst survey details the issues but there are no proposals which
details what needs to be done to make the system fit for purpose, where it is being retained. This
states that it will be done at detailed design however could fundamentally alter the design of the
drainage.

The Flood Risk Assessment also recommends "It may be prudent to compile a full existing network
model at detailed design stage to clarify capacity, model any additional inflows, and allow any
remedial measures to be determined”. However only proposing to do this at a later stage.

Environment Agency Permit Required:

An appropriate outfall would have to be put in place, meeting current design requirements, which will
require an Environment Agency permit.

Council Corporate Property - Easement required:

This also crosses land external to the school and an appropriate licence needs to be issued in order
that the Council as Landowner are aware of its location for the future. This should include an
easement agreement for the school to maintain. There is no information provided to suggest this is
adopted by anyone including Thames Water although it is implied that this is adopted in Section 9
that is is for the adopting authority

to maintain.

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 58



Section 106 Management plan:

Any management and maintenance plan will need to be included in the Section 106 agreement to
ensure that it is maintained in perpetuity. This maintenance plan must be provided in more detail
which includes Tank specification for jetting frequency, and the off site works required and not
currently included. Specific allowance for review of replacement structures at the end of their lifetime
should also be included to be

undertaken by appropriate persons.

Section 9 This must include all elements of the drainage system including any off site inspections of
drainage runs and outfalls, any tank and or geocellular storage provided and pitch drainage. This
table is now too generic as it does not appear to contain information on all the elements to be
expected to be cleared.

Elements should at least be visually inspected in advance of adverse weather forecasts.

Clearance of pipe work etc should be undertaken more than 'as necessary'.

Exceedance routes:

There are no exceedance routes indicated within the drainage strategy, which is particularly
important where the fall is towards the school if the drainage system does not function or there is an

event above that which is designed for.

This could be allowed for dishing the play area with the geocellular storage underneath, to provide
allowance for this. This could provide a suitable learning area within science about water.

Implications of development proposals:

It appears from the CCTV that all of the drainage is currently discharged towards what will be
extension of the school. The proposal places what is a more vulnerable use in the way of any
surface water flood flows.

The proposal suggests that all of the drainage will need to be rerouted around the proposed building

There is no final arrangement scheme provided to demonstrate a suitable sustainable scheme
considering the options preferred has been considered and is feasible.

Finished floor levels are no longer mentioned in the report. However the previous report submitted
considered it suitable to raise the finished floor levels to protect the contents of the buildings.
However 300mm may or may not be suitable, depending on the volume of water flowing towards this
proposed building, and access points. This should be above the highest point of the indicated ground
level. How does this affect levels and access to and from the buildings.

Sustainable Drainage Options:

It is clear in Table 2 that the proposals follow the SuDs hierarchy in terms of discharge but not in
terms of the options available within Table 3 SuDs components.

Paragraph 3.21 and Table 4 showing the various options does not explain why some have been
discounted such as rainwater harvesting. 3.25 discounting swales and channels is not acceptable
when they have been implemented successfully in other schools.

The requirement to control surface water for the pitches is required for 151m3 however further

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 59



information is required - there is insufficient information on when and whether suitable areas is set
aside to provide this, by this report.

Conclusions:

This report confirms there is an existing surface water risk at the school, with an inadequate
drainage system. It is not clear from this report that this is will be managed appropriately by these
proposals to clearly show a suitable sustainable scheme can and will be implemented. There are
too many elements left to detailed design which affect the provision of a sustainable drainage
scheme and affect other elements of the scheme.

ENVIRONMENTAL OFFICER
No objection.

The final energy strategy is to rely heavily on photovoltaics. Therefore the following condition is
necessary:

Condition

Prior to the commencement of development full details (including specifications) of the photovoltaic
(PV) panels as required by the Energy Assessment (Arcadis April 2017) shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details shall include the type of PVs, the
specifications, and the fixing mechanism and angles to the roof. Elevations and roof plans clearly
showing the inclusion of the PVs shall also be included. The development must proceed in
accordance with the approved details.

Reason
To secure the CO2 reductions set out in the Energy Assessment in compliance with London Plan
Policy 5.2.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

Whilst the site accommodates a well established educational facility, it also comprises an
area of playing field and it falls within the Green Belt as designated in the Hillingdon Local
Plan. It has no other specific designations. Accordingly, the key issues pertaining to the
principle of development relate to the continued educational use of the site, the impact of
the development on the Green Belt and impact on the playing fields.

New educational facilities:

In respect of new developments for educational facilities there is strong support for this at
local, regional and national level.

Policy R10 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
seeks to encourage the provision of enhanced educational facilities across the borough,
stating:

"The Local Planning Authority will regard proposals for new meeting halls, buildings for
education, social, community and health services, including libraries, nursery, primary and
secondary school buildings, as acceptable in principle subject to other policies of this plan."

This is reiterated in the London Plan Policy 3.18 which states:

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 60



"Development proposals which enhance education and skills provision will be supported,
including new build, expansion of existing facilities or change of use to educational
purposes. Those which address the current projected shortage of primary school places
will be particularly encouraged.”

Furthermore, on 15/08/11 the DCLG published a policy statement on planning for schools
development, which is designed to facilitate the delivery and expansion of state-funded
schools. It states:

"The Government is firmly committed to ensuring there is sufficient provision to meet
growing demand for state-funded school places, increasing choice and opportunity in
state-funded education and raising educational standards. State-funded schools - which
include Academies and free schools, as well as local authority maintained schools
(community, foundation and voluntary aided and controlled schools) - educate the vast
majority of children in England. The Government wants to enable new schools to open,
good schools to expand and all schools to adapt and improve their facilities. This will allow
for more provision and greater diversity in the state-funded school sector to meet both
demographic needs and the drive for increased choice and higher standards."

It goes on to say that:

"It is the Government's view that the creation and development of state-funded schools is
strongly in the national interest and that planning decision-makers can and should support
that objective, in a manner consistent with their statutory obligations. We expect all parties
to work together pro actively from an early stage to help plan for state-school development
and to shape strong planning applications. This collaborative working would help to ensure
that the answer to proposals for the development of state-funded schools should be,
wherever possible, "yes."

The statement clearly emphasises that there should be a presumption in favour of the
development of schools and that "Local Planning Authorities should make full use of their
planning powers to support state-funded schools applications."

Paragraph 72 of the NPPF reiterates the objectives set out in the DCLG Policy Statement
on Planning for Schools Development. It clearly confirms that the Government attaches
great importance to ensuring that a sufficient choice of school places are available to meet
existing and future demand.

The proposal is considered to fully comply with this strong local, regional and national
policy support for new, enhanced and expanded educational facilities.

Green Belt:
Notwithstanding the above, the development nevertheless represents inappropriate
development within the Green Belt.

Policy EM2 of the Local Plan: Part 1 confirms that any proposals for development within the
Green Belt will be assessed against national and London Plan polices, including the very
special circumstances test, although it is noted that at paragraph 8.27, the Local Plan: Part
1, states that "in very exceptional circumstances the Council will consider the release of
Greenfield sites for schools."

Policy OL1 of the Local Plan: Part 2, confirms that only predominantly open land uses will

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 61



be considered acceptable within the Green Belt and that planning permission for other
uses will not be granted.

London Plan policy 7.16 confirms that the "strongest protection" should be given to
London's Green Belt, in accordance with national guidance, and emphasises that
inappropriate development should be refused, except in very special circumstances.

The NPPF paragraph 87 makes it clear that inappropriate development is, by definition,
harmful to the Green Belt and should not be approved except in very special
circumstances. It states that:

"When considering any planning application, local planning authorities should ensure that
substantial weight is given to any harm to the Green Belt. 'Very special circumstances' will
not exist unless the potential harm to the Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness, and
any other harm, is clearly outweighed by other considerations."

In view of the above, the applicant has submitted a Planning Statement which seeks to set
out a case of very special circumstances sufficient to justify the provision of the
development in this Green Belt location. These centre around the educational need for the
development, the lack of alternative sites/options to meet this need, the benefits of the
proposals to the wider community and the limited visual impact. A comprehensive report
has been produced, which discusses each of these matters at length.

The issue of educational need has been touched upon in part 1 of this report. The Planning
Statement reiterates the growing need for secondary school places across the borough
and provides the figures, based on Office for National Statistics (ONS), GLA and Council
data, to demonstrate this. It shows that notwithstanding the recent expansion of Northwood
School and the soon to be completed expansions of Abbotsfield and Swakeleys Schools,
that additional school places will nevertheless be required over coming years, with an
additional seven forms of entry required in the north of borough by 2019.

Over the past few years the Council has undertaken a comprehensive primary school
expansion programme to ensure the growing need for school places has been met. The
increase in population, which has in turn led to increased demand for school places, has
been well documented. That need is now moving into the secondary school sector and
across London and within Hillingdon there is now a growing need for secondary school
places. The applicant is understood to have worked closely with the Council's Education
Team in submitting the application and based on the evidence provided the educational
need for the development is fully accepted.

In the applicant's justification for the development a comprehensive sequential test, which
looks at a full range of alternative options to meet the need has also been provided. The
Planning Statement demonstrates that consideration has been given to looking at how the
need could be met within existing school accommodation, but concludes that the capacity
simply does not exist to cater for the numbers needed. This argument is accepted. The
Planning Statement goes on to consider whether the need could be better met at other
non-green belt schools or sites in the borough. However, Ruislip High School has already
committed to expanding and an application for this is expected to be submitted within the
next few weeks. Taking into consideration a range of factors, including ensuring places are
provided where they are most needed, operational requirements, site availability and cost,
no other suitable non-green belt school or alternative sites were found. Finally, the applicant
considers other green-belt schools, such as Bishopshalt and Uxbridge High. However,

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 62



concludes these would be less well placed to meet the immediate need. It is also notes
that they are, arguably, located on more open sites where development proposals would
have greater visual impact.

The applicant argues that due to the nature of the Vyners School site, surrounded by
residential properties to the north and woodland on all other sides, no open views exist into
the site and that, notwithstanding the site's green belt location, the development proposals
would have very limited visual impact on the surrounding area. The applicant also highlights
the benefits the proposals would have to the wider local community through the provision of
enhanced facilities at the school which could be made available for community use.

Considering the justification provided within the applicant's Planning Statement officers are
satisfied that a robust assessment of alternative options to meet the educational need have
been fully considered by the applicant and that a case of very special circumstances exists
such that an exception to green belt policy could be justified in this instance.

Impact on playing fields/sports facilities:

With specific regard to the loss of playing field, policies R4 and R5 of the Local Plan: Part 2
seek to resist their loss "unless adequate, accessible, alternative facilities are available."

Part B of London Plan policy 3.19 states:

"Development proposals that increase or enhance the provision of sports and recreation
facilities will be supported. Proposals that result in a net loss of sports and recreation
facilities, including playing fields should be resisted."

Sport England's Playing Field Policy - A Sporting Future for the Playing Fields of England,
confirms that Sport England will oppose the granting of planning permission for any
development which would lead to the loss of, or would prejudice the use of, all or part of a
playing field, unless one of five exceptions applies. Exceptions E4 and E5, quoted below,
are considered to be most relevant to this application:

"E4 The playing field or playing fields, which would be lost as a result of the proposed
development, would be replaced by a playing field or playing fields of equivalent or greater
quantity, in a suitable location and subject to equivalent or better management
arrangements, prior to the commencement of development.”

"E5 The proposed development is for an indoor or outdoor sports facility, the provision of
which would be of sufficient benefit to the development of sport so as to outweigh the
detriment caused by the loss of the playing field or playing fields."

Paragraph 74 of the NPPF reiterates the objectives set out in Sport England's Policy
Statement. It confirms that sports and recreational buildings and land, including playing
fields, should not be built on unless (amongst other criteria)

i) the loss resulting from the proposed development would be replaced by equivalent or
better provision in terms of quantity and quality in a suitable location; or

ii) the development is for alternative sports and recreational provision, the needs for which
clearly outweigh the loss.

The applicant's Planning Statement seeks to justify the development against the relevant

policy criteria by demonstrating that there would in fact be no overall loss in quantity or
quality of sports facilities to be provided at the site/within the vicinity.

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 63



The proposed extension would result in the loss of an existing multi-use games area,
understood to be predominantly used for tennis. To offset this loss and to cater for the
increased pupil numbers it is proposed to provide an artificial grass all weather pitch
(AWP) on the existing playing field.

The existing playing field is currently used for a range of sports and and the submitted
plans indicate it generally accommodates a running track, rounders pitches and a cricket
strip, although it is acknowledged that markings are likely to change for different seasons.
The proposed AWP would take up a significant portion of the existing playing field.
Retractable fencing would be provided along the western side of the proposed AWP and
the cricket strip replaced so that when opened up the entire area (grass and artificial grass)
could still be used for sports requiring a larger space. The AWP itself would be designed to
cater for a range of sports including tennis, touch rugby, athletics and recreational football,
although the emphasis would be on hockey.

Whilst for general school use and PE curriculum delivery the proposals would provide
flexible sporting facilities, which are supported by the school, the applicant has
acknowledged that the usability of the grass playing field would nevertheless be reduced
and that for more professional games, a change in surface from artificial to natural grass
may not be ideal. Accordingly, to offset this loss, and in accordance with pre-application
advice provided by Sport England, a new cricket strip would be provided at the school's
offsite playing fields, which are located towards the northern most corner of Hillingdon
House Farm, on the opposite side of the A40.

The applicant acknowledges that whilst the school are supportive of community use of their
site, that out of hours use of the AWP will need to be carefully managed in order to ensure
it does not adversely impact on the amenity of neighbouring residents. A community use
agreement would be secured by way of S106 agreement to ensure opportunities for
community use of the site are maximised but carefully managed with residents in mind.

In acknowledging the constraints of the school site the applicant has also given
consideration to off-site provision. It is understood that there is a demand for community
sports facilities, especially from local football clubs and through discussions with the
Council's Green Spaces and Special Projects Teams the applicant has identified a need
for drainage improvements to existing football pitches at Hillingdon House Farm and to the
east of Hillingdon Sports and Leisure Complex. It is considered that enhancements to
those facilities, where there is an identified demand and where residents will be unaffected
by noise and disturbance and so hours of use are unrestricted, would have greater benefit
to the wider community. Accordingly, it is also proposed to make a financial contribution
towards drainage enhancements to those pitches at Hillingdon House Farm.

The applicant has verbally committed to the provision of £50k based on making
improvements to two pitches at a cost of £25k each. However, the Council's Green
Spaces and Special Projects Teams have advised that the necessary drainage
improvements are estimated to cost in the region of £35k per pitch. Negotiations are
underway between the applicant and relevant Council teams to agree a final figure to
secure works to two pitches. This would be secured by way S106 legal agreement.

The benefits of the proposed AWP, which unlike the existing school playing field, could be
used all year round, combined with the provision of off-site enhancements to sporting
provision are considered sufficient to offset any loss in usability of on-site sports facilities at
the school site and officers consider the proposal to comply with relevant planning policy in

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 64



this regard. However, notwithstanding this, Sport England have nevertheless raised a
holding objection, pending receipt of further information.

Firstly Sport England have requested further details on surface, size and pitch dimensions
of the AWP, the final specification to be influenced by local demand for football and rugby.

The applicant has provided a detailed plan of the proposed facility and responded as
follows:

"With regard to surface, the school have set out a strong preference for a sand-dressed
AGP that provides a high specification synthetic sports surface for hockey and is also an
ideal multi-use facility for a variety of sports such as tennis, touch rugby, athletics and
recreational football. The specific turf that we have identified is TigerTurf Evo Pro that has a
pile height of 18mm. The rationale for this preference is that following the proposed
expansion and development of the AGP itself, the school will continue to have a good
provision of marked out grass pitches for football and rugby. However, they have limited
facilities for other outdoor sports and a sand-dressed AGP will not only provide
opportunities to play an advanced level of hockey, it will also provide opportunities to play a
variety of other sports such as those set out above. In addition to organised sport, the
surface is also expected to be used by pupils throughout the school day for recreational
use and a multi-use surface of this nature lends itself to this purpose.

With regard to football and rugby pitches specifically, discussions have been held with
officers in Leisure to understand demand in the local area. To the south of the school
playing field is Hillingdon Sport & Leisure Complex which is a public, Council owned facility
where amongst a multitude of other sporting facilities is a full-size 3G pitch. To the east of
the school's playing field is Hillingdon House Farm which comprises a public open space
used by the community and sports clubs including Uxbridge Football Club who have
recently approached the Council regarding their intention to increase membership to their
club, across different age-groups over the coming months. To facilitate this, there is a need
for drainage improvements to a section of the Hillingdon House Farm site to bring pitches
up to a standard where year-round play is possible. Currently, the pitches ... become
saturated and often unplayable during the wetter months and similar drainage improvement
works on other sections of the field have successfully alleviated this problem in recent
years and it is therefore intended to extend this work as part of the wider development."

Secondly Sport England seek clarification over the proposed cricket provision. As
discussed above, and shown on plan, a replacement cricket wicket would be provided
alongside the AWP and could be used when the fencing is retracted. A new cricket wicket
would be provided at the school's offsite natural grass playing fields to ensure no loss in
quantity or quality of cricket provision.

Thirdly, Sport England seek justification as to why no floodlighting is proposed. This was
discussed with the applicant at pre-application stage. However, given the very close
proximity of the proposed AWP to residential properties it was considered that,
notwithstanding modern technical solutions to minimise light spill, that it would be
extremely difficult to ensure there was no actual or perceived loss of residential amenity as
a result of any lighting installed. It was also considered that due to the use of the nearby
woodland and southern part of the playing fields by bats for foraging (as identified in the
submitted Bat Emergence/Re-entry and Activity Survey), that provision of floodlighting here
would not be ideal.

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 65



Officers acknowledge that notwithstanding current planning policies relating to playing
fields and sports provision that the operational needs of the school are an important
consideration. In this instance, officers are satisfied that an appropriate balance has been
struck between planning and educational policy requirements such that the development
meets the practical needs of the school whilst ensuring there is no overall loss in quality or
quantity of sports provision within the locality. Sport England's final comments, based on
the additional information provided by the applicant, have yet to be received at the time of
writing, and an update will be provided via a Committee Addendum. However, even if Sport
England were to maintain their objection, officers are of the view that the educational need
for the proposals carries significant weight, which would outweigh any loss in sports
provision Sport England may argue.

The Ministerial Statement on planning for schools development is clearly an important
material planning consideration. It is important to understand the 'weighting' that should be
given to this as a material planning consideration. Officers have undertaken a search of
appeal decisions concerning new education developments that affect either playing fields
or open space to understand how Planning Inspectors have interpreted the Ministerial
Statement.

A search of a national appeals database identified 3 appeal cases where loss of open
space or playing field was involved.

Where the schemes are of direct relevance is that in each case the decision maker had, in
effect, to decide whether a clear education need outweighed other strong material planning
considerations. All 3 appeals (namely the appeal by Chapel Street Community Schools
Trust for a free school on open space in Oxfordshire, a new free secondary school by
'Great Schools for all Children' in Warrington on public open space involving the loss of a
sports pitch and Poulton Church of England Primary and Nursery School's planning
application in Poulton-Le-Flyde Lancashire which proposed modular buildings on urban
open space) were allowed and significant weight was given by the appeal inspector to the
education need in every case.

In the Warrington case (which is a 2014 case and therefore was based on the NPFF,
Ministerial statement and most up to date national Planning Policies) the Council in refusing
the planning application stated:

"The playing fields offer significant benefits to the local community due to the sports pitches
available and their accessibility and close proximity to residents, community groups and
schools."

Sport England did not object subject to,

"Conditions regarding the submission, agreement and implementation of a sports
development plan and community use agreement, the details and specifications of the
sports hall, changing rooms and artificial grass pitch and a scheme for the improvement of
the remaining playing fields are required to ensure that there is sufficient benefit to the
development of sport, suitable arrangements for community access and that the loss of
the existing playing fields on the site is effectively mitigated."

It should be noted that Sport England therefore appear to have been satisfied that
conditions could be used to address potential policy conflicts.

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 66



The Inspector in allowing the appeal stated;

"There are differing views as to the potential effects on existing schools and the justification
for the proposed school in terms of the need to raise educational standards. What is clear
however is that the proposal will create an additional school, increasing the number of
school places available and creating greater choice and diversity for secondary education
in the area. In the context of the Framework and the Ministerial Policy Statement, this
constitutes a significant benefit that carries substantial weight."

It should be noted that the appeal was then called in by the Secretary of State who then
confirmed that he agreed with the Inspector's original decision letter.

In the Poulton Church of England Primary and Nursery School case the Planning Inspector
cites the text in the Ministerial statement which says that the development of state-funded
schools is in the 'national interest' and that planning decision makers should support that
objective, in a manner consistent with their statutory obligations. The Planning Inspector
then openly criticises the Local Planning Authority in his decision letter for not giving
sufficient consideration to the Ministerial Statement.

What these recent appeal cases show is that decision makers are expected to place
substantial weighting on the Ministerial Statement and that it is a very important material
planning consideration. As such, notwithstanding the fact that Sport England have yet to
confirm their final position, officers consider that the educational need argument outlined by
the applicant with respect to schools should be given substantial weighting as a material
planning consideration.

Whilst every application must be assessed on its own merits, of note is also Sport
England's approach to past applications. Officers are aware of several primary school
sites within Hillingdon where Sport England have raised no objection to the provision of
MUGAs on playing fields. However, more recently they objected to loss of playing field at
Northwood School (application ref: 12850/APP/2014/4492), which was neither upheld by
the GLA or the Secretary of State. They also objected to loss of playing field at Hillside
Infant and Junior Schools (application ref: 18495/APP/2016/3957). Although not referable to
the GLA, notably again this objection was not upheld by the Secretary of State. It is difficult
to argue that those decisions don't set at least give support to a departure from playing field

policy.

Taking everything into consideration, including current planning policy wording at local,
regional and national level, the applicant's and Sport England's arguments, it is very difficult
to see how an objection from Sport England could be upheld in this instance. The applicant
has put forward a strong, well reasoned justification for the proposal and demonstrated that
there would be no loss in overall sports provision in terms of quantity or quality.
Accordingly, it is considered that the proposals do comply with current planning policy and
that refusal on these grounds could not be justified.

Conclusion:

The proposal is considered to fully comply with current planning policy which seeks to
support the improvement, enhancement and expansion of existing school sites.
Comprehensive justification has been provided for the development in this location which is
considered to amount to a case of very special circumstances sufficient to justify an
exception to green belt policy. Although Sport England's final view is not known at this

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 67



7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

stage, the proposal is also considered to comply with current policy which allows the loss
of existing playing fields, providing the loss resulting from the proposed development would
be off-set by alternative facilities. Even if it could be argued that a loss in quantity of sports
provision would occur, it is considered that this would be so negligible that it would not
amount to such exceptional circumstances that it would outweigh the educational need for
the development.

On the basis of the above, the proposal is considered to comply with current local, London
Plan and national policies relating to educational provision, green belt development and
sports facilities and no objections are raised to the principle of the development, subject to
the proposals meeting site specific criteria.

Density of the proposed development

The application relates to new educational development. Residential density is therefore
not relevant to the consideration of this application.
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

There are no Conservation Areas, Listed Buildings or Areas of Special Local Character
within the vicinity. Although the application site does not fall within a designated
Archaeological Priority Area, there is a requirement to consult Historic England's Greater
London Archaeological Advisory Service (GLAAS) due to the size of the site. An
Archaeological Desk-Based Assessment has been submitted in support of the application
and GLAAS have been consulted. No objection has been raised subject to a condition
requiring a written scheme of investigation.

Airport safeguarding

Not applicable. There is no requirement to consult the aerodrome safeguarding authorities
on this application.
Impact on the green belt

As mentioned in part 7.01 of this report, current planning policy seeks to prevent
unacceptable development in, and preserve the openness of, the green belt.

The principle of allowing the proposed development in the green belt has been discussed
at length in part 7.01 of this report and is accepted.

In terms of the visual impact of the development on the openness of the green belt, this is
considered to be limited. The school is bounded by residential properties to the north and
woodland on all other sides. Accordingly, public views into the site are very limited.

The size, scale and height of the proposed extension would not be out of character with
that of the existing buildings and the use of timber cladding is appropriate to the school's
woodland setting. Screening provided by existing development is such that no public views
are likely from Warren Road. The extension would be visible from the public footpath which
skirts the school's boundary, however, it would be set back from the site boundaries and
seen in context with the wider developed site such that its overall visual impact on the
green belt and the openness of the area would be limited.

In terms of the AWP, its visual impact would be largely limited to its fencing. Plans indicate
that planting would be provided to screen this from residents. However, as with the rest of
the site, the playing field is screened from public views by surrounding development and
woodland and, as such, its impact on the openness of the wider green belt would be very
limited.

Overall, given the developed nature of the existing site and the limited public views into it, it
is not considered that the proposed development would have any significant adverse

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 68



impact on the visual amenities of the openness of the green belt in this location.
7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policies BE13 and BE19 seek to ensure that new development complements or improves
the character and amenity of the area. The scale, bulk and siting of buildings are key
determinants in ensuring that the amenity and character of an area is not compromised by
new development.

The proposed extension would be located towards the eastern end of the developed part of
the side, linking to both the existing sports hall building and the DT block. Its size, scale,
mass and two-storey height would be in keeping with that of existing buildings found across
the school site.

Its modern design and use of metal effect cladding to the front of the extension would add a
focal point and element of civic presence to the school building whilst the use of timber
cladding would be appropriate to its woodland setting and assist in softening its visual
impact.

The AWP and its associated fencing would need to be functional in their design to ensure
they are fit for purpose for a range of sports to be played. However, landscape screening to
the north of the facility would assist in reducing its visual impact on neighbouring residents.

The school site as a whole is largely screened from public views by residential
development to the north and woodland to the east, south and west. Glimpses only of the
site are available from Warren Road and, as such, the proposed development would have
no significant detrimental impact on the visual amenities of the Warren Road streetscene.
Although views are available from the Celandine Route, a public footpath which skirts the
school's periphery through the adjoining woodland, the proposed extension would be set
back from the boundary and seen in context with the existing school buildings. Very few
trees would be removed to accommodate the proposed development and existing trees
and planting would provide some screening and soften views from here. Accordingly, the
development is considered to comply with the above mentioned policies and it is not
considered that the development would have any significant detrimental impact on the
character or appearance of the school site of the visual amenities of the surrounding area.
7.08 Impact on neighbours

Local Plan: Part 2 policies BE19, BE20, BE21 and BEZ24, in addition to the Council's
Supplementary Planning Document on Residential Layouts, seek to safeguard residential
amenity.

The Council's Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) on Residential Layouts states
that in order to protect the daylight and sunlight available to adjoining properties, and to
protect against potential over domination, a minimum distance of 15m should be
maintained between adjoining two or more storey buildings. Furthermore, a minimum
distance of 21m should be retained between facing habitable room windows in order to
ensure there is no unacceptable overlooking.

The nearest residential properties would be located in excess of 50m away to the north of
proposed extension. Given this distance, which exceeds minimum Council guidelines, it is
not considered that the development would would have any significant detrimental impact
on residential amenity.

With regard to the AWP, this would be bounded by 3m high ball stop fencing. Although
located only a few metres from the site boundary, this would be in excess of 30m from the

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 69



rear elevations of the nearest properties. Furthermore, the plans indicate a high landscape
screen would be provided to reduce the visual impact of this on residential amenity. In light
of the distance and proposed screening, it is not considered that this would result in such a
loss in residential amenity that refusal could be justified.

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

This consideration relates to the quality of residential accommodation and is not applicable
to this type of development. However, it is considered that the proposed development,
which has been designed to accord with Department for Education standards, would
provide an appropriate environment for the future staff and pupils.

7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Local Plan: Part 2 policies AM2 and AM7 seek to safeguard highway and pedestrian safety
and ensure that developments do not have an adverse impact on the surrounding highway
network. Policies AM14 and AM15 seek to ensure appropriate levels of car parking are
provided.

A Transport Assessment, accompanied by a Travel Plan, has been submitted in support of
the application.

The proposals seek to expand the school from 6FE to 8FE. Total pupil numbers would
increase from 1151 to 1451 (including sixth form) and staff numbers would increase from
152 to 192, representing increases of 300 and 40 respectively.

Currently staff and visitor parking only is provided on site. Parents are required to use on-
street parking available along local roads. No increase in car parking numbers is proposed,
but the car park would be reconfigured to reflect the proposed reversal of the existing one-
way system around the site.

The Transport Assessment confirms an increase in cycle parking from 120 spaces to 150
spaces (although it should be noted that there is an inconsistency in the numbers quoted
across different documents). Notwithstanding this, Transport for London (TfL) have
advised that a total of 46 additional cycle parking spaces (to provide a total of 166 spaces)
should be provided in compliance with London Plan standards. This would be secured by
way of condition should approval be granted.

No reference is made to the provision of electric vehicle charging points in the submission.
In accordance with London Plan requirements 20% (10% active and 10% passive) of
spaces should be served by electric vehicle charging points. This would be required by
way of condition.

Despite the school's low PTAL, the Transport Assessment confirms that the majority
(80%) of pupils travel by sustainable modes of transport, with most travelling on foot or by
public transport. This is reflective of the fact that the majority of pupils attending the school
are very local and also of an age where they are more able to travel independently than
primary aged children. A significant number of staff (70%) however travel by car.

Based on current trip generation data, the Transport Assessment suggests that 32
additional two-way car trips would be generated in both the morning and afternoon peak
periods by pupils, with a further 30 two-way trips by staff in the morning and afternoon
periods. However, it concludes that providing appropriate mitigation measures are put in
place through the adoption of a robust school Travel Plan, this would have no unacceptable
impact on the local highway network.

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 70



Notably, in terms of parking, restrictions exist along Warren Road to prevent this during the
school day. There is ample on-street parking capacity to cope with any overspill demand
within the wider surrounding area. However, robust Travel Plan measures should help to
reduce overall parking demand such that neither TfL or the Council's Highway Engineer
have raised objections to the proposed parking provision.

Congestion associated with schools only typically occurs for relatively short periods of time
during peak drop-off and pick-up times for the school and traffic disperses relatively quickly.
Accordingly, it is not considered that the scheme would result in such a significant impact
on the surrounding highway network that refusal could be justified.

In terms of staff travel this is unlikely to occur during peak times as the majority of staff
arrive before and depart after peak pupil start/finish times. Accordingly, it is not considered
that the additional trips generated by staff would lead to a significant demand for additional
parking or have any significant impact on the highway network.

It is not considered that the proposed development would have such a detrimental impact
on the local highway network that refusal could be justified, providing a robust school travel
plan is provided to encourage the use of more sustainable modes of transport to/from
school. This would be required by way of S106 legal agreement should approval be
granted. Notably, the Council's Highway Engineer has raised no objections to the proposed
development.

Transport for London (TfL) are also supportive of the proposals, subject to conditions to
secure cycle parking, disabled parking, a construction logistics plan, a travel plan and a
contribution towards increased bus capacity. Conditions relating to the first three points
would be attached should approval be granted. The latter two requirements would be
secured by way of a S106 legal agreement. Negotiations are ongoing with TfL regarding the
financial contribution required towards busses.

Resident concerns regarding the use of the eastern most access point by HGVs are noted.
However, it is unlikely a school would generate large numbers of HGV movements and,
notably, the Council's Highway Engineer has raised no objections in this regard. As
mentioned above, a Construction Logistics Plan would be secured by way of condition to
ensure impacts of construction vehicles are as limited as possible. Accordingly, it is not
considered refusal could be justified on these grounds.

7.11 Urban design, access and security

- Urban Design

This issue has been addressed in parts 7.05 and 7.07 of the report. Taking into
consideration the site constraints and the character and appearance of the surrounding
area, the size, scale, height and design of the proposed development is considered to be
visually acceptable in this instance.

- Security

The submitted Design and Access Statement confirms that security has been carefully
considered by the applicant to ensure that a secure and welcoming environment is
provided for pupils, whilst limiting opportunities for trespassing and vandalism. It
demonstrates that daytime and out of hours security has been carefully considered and
that a series of measures would be employed to ensure a safe and secure environment is
retained. It confirms that access controlled entry would be provided and that the design has
sought to ensure that passive surveillance is available of all areas around he school
buildings. It confirms that the proposals would adhere to the principles of Secure by Design

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 71



and that the following measures would be incorporated: - The existing boundary fence will
be retained. Where damaged or ineffective due to adjacent property/trees, this will be
reviewed and amendments made accordingly to reinstate it;

- Lockable gates will be provided where appropriate;

- CCTV to cover new pedestrian and vehicular access points to both principal boundaries.
Further CCTV will be provided in the ground floor common areas linked to the main alarm
system;

- Appropriate zoning for site / building lock down for out of hours community use;

- Windows and doors are to be designed in accordance with SBD principles;

- New intruder alarm system to be provided and will be linked to the existing School alarm
system.

Should planning permission be granted a condition requiring the development to adhere to
Secure by Design principles would be attached.
7.12 Disabled access

The submitted Design and Access Statement confirms that the proposed development will
achieve reasonable levels of accessibility with level access provided throughout the new
extension, appropriate corridor and door widths, disability standard parking bays and
provision of lifts. Ramped access would also be provided to the proposed AWP. It confirms
that the development will comply with relevant educational design standards (BB99), Part
M of the Building Regulations, BS5839 and BS8300.

Notably, access throughout the existing buildings is poor and no lift access is available to
upper floors. Through the proposed first floor link to the DT block the scheme will
significantly improve access to this part of the existing school site in addition to ensuring
the new development is fully accessible throughout. Whilst the Access Officer has advised
that opportunities should be taken at this stage to improve accessibility within existing
school buildings it should be noted that no works requiring planning permission are
proposed to them. It would be reasonable to require the applicant to make significant
alterations or retrofit lifts to those existing parts of the site which do not form part of the
current development proposals ad refusal could not be justified on these grounds.
However, should planning permission be granted it is recommended that an informative is
attached to encourage the applicant to consider making improvements to accessibility
during refurbishment and maintenance works.

The Access Officer has also sought further information regarding the type of surface which
would be used for the access path to the AWP and regarding the hygiene room/changing
places facility. These details would be sought by way of condition should approval be
granted.

Finally, the Access Officer has sought the provision of an emergency evacuation plan for
disabled persons. It is considered that this matter would be sufficiently addressed by
building regulations and, accordingly, a condition to this effect could not be justified.

Overall, the application has demonstrated that careful consideration has been given to
accessibility throughout the new development works and, accordingly, subject to imposition
of appropriate conditions, it is not considered that refusal could be justified on grounds of
accessibility.

7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this type of development.
7.14 Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 72



Trees, landscaping and Ecology

The NPPF states that development proposals should seek to respect and retain, where
possible, existing landforms and natural features of development sites, including trees of
amenity value, hedges and other landscape features. It states that development should
make suitable provision for high quality hard and soft landscape treatments around
buildings. Landscape proposals will need to ensure that new development is integrated and
positively contributes to or enhances the streetscene. In addition, proposals should seek to
create, conserve or enhance biodiversity and improve access to nature by sustaining and,
where possible, improving the quality and extent of natural habitat enhancing biodiversity in
green spaces and among developments. Local Plan: Part 2 7.15 7.16 Sustainable waste
management Renewable energy / Sustainability policy BE38 seeks the retention and
utilisation of topographical and landscape features of merit and the provision of new
planting and landscaping wherever it is appropriate.

Trees across the site are protected by way of a Tree Preservation Order (TPO). The
school also lies immediately adjacent to a Nature Conservation Site of Borough Grade 2 or
Local Importance. These designations reflect the school's woodland setting and
characteristic of this, extensive tree planting exists around its east, west and southern
boundaries.

Despite this, the proposals would predominantly be contained to existing areas of
hardstanding or well maintained grass and, they therefore, would have limited impact on
existing trees and landscape features of merit. Only two trees would be removed to
accommodate the new extension and, whilst the loss of these two grade 'B' oak trees is
regrettable, given the extensive tree planting present within and adjacent to the school site
this will, in reality, have limited impact on the visual amenity of the school site or adjacent
woodand. Replacement planting would be provided within wider landscape enhancements
proposed across the school site.

Given the education need for the development, the existing site constraints and proposed
new tree planting, the loss of these two trees is justified in this instance.

Notably, the Council's Trees/Landscape Officer has raised no objections subject to
standard landscaping conditions.

Ecology

In terms of ecological impacts, an Ecological Appraisal, Woodland Survey and Nature
Conservation Assessment with accompanying Advice Note, a Bat Building and Tree
Inspection Report and a Bat Emergence/Re-entry and Activity Survey has been submitted
in support of the application. These confirm that there are no protected species present on
site, which would pose any significant constraint to the development proposals given that
building works would be to existing developed areas and maintained playing field only. They
do however highlight that the woodland is suitable for other protected species such as
reptiles and stag beetles and that bats are present within the area and use the woodland
for foraging.

A range of ecological enhancements are recommended in the reports to ensure that
biodiversity features and enhancement of opportunities for wildlife are provided. Although
limited details have been provided at this stage, the applicant has confirmed their
commitment to taking on board the recommendations of the reports in their Design and
Access Statement. Accordingly, a scheme of ecological enhancements would be secured
by way of condition should approval be granted.

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 73



7.15 Sustainable waste management

No details of refuse provision have been provided. However, the applicant has verbally
advised that existing refuse stores, which are understood to be located close to the
school's kitchen, would continue to be used.

Notably, the school ultimately has discretion over which waste management methods are
used on site and the Council's Waste Strategy Manager has raised no objections.
Nevertheless, details of refuse storage would be required by way of condition to ensure that
existing facilities have sufficient capacity and that these are expanded or new facilities are
provided if needed.

7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability

Policy 5.2 of the London Plan requires development proposals to make the fullest
contribution possible to reducing carbon emissions. Major development schemes must be
accompanied by an energy assessment to demonstrate how a 35% target reduction in
carbon dioxide emissions will be achieved from 2013 Building Regulations, where feasible.

In accordance with this policy the applicant has submitted an Energy Statement to
demonstrate how the London Plan objectives will be met. In addition to energy efficient
building measures such as ensuring the building will be well insulated, use of high
efficiency boilers, energy efficient lighting, natural ventilation, etc, photovoltaic panels would
be provided to provide a portion of the site's energy needs through the use of a renewable
energy.

These measures would achieve a 35.9% reduction in carbon dioxide emissions above Part
L of the Building Regulations in compliance with London Plan requirements. The Council's
Environmental Officer has notably raised no objections to the details submitted, subject to
a condition requiring further details of the photovoltaic panels.

717 Flooding or Drainage Issues

London Plan policy 5.13 states that development proposals should use sustainable urban
drainage systems (SuDs) unless there are good reasons for not doing so and that
developments should aim to achieve green-field run-off rates. Policy 5.15 goes on to
confirm that developments should also minimise the use of mains water by incorporating
water saving measures and equipment.

The site does not fall within a flood zone or critical drainage area, but the woodland to the
east of the school falls within Flood Zone 2. In accordance with London Plan policy a Flood
Risk Assessment & Drainage Strategy has been provided.

The Council's Flood and Water Management Officer has advised that the submitted
proposals provide insufficient information to demonstrate that the strategy proposed is
feasible. Furthermore, they fail to provide sufficient detail or commitment to reducing
potable water demand. Accordingly, the proposals cannot be supported at this stage.

The applicant is working to address the Flood and Water Management Officer's comments
(provided in full in part 6 of this report). Given the need to provide school places in time and
so to minimise delays to the programme, it has however been necessary to progress this
application to Committee whilst these matters are resolved and this is reflected in the
Committee recommendation.

7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues

- Air quality
It is not considered that the proposed development would lead to such an increase in traffic

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 74



over and above its existing consented use that it would have a significant impact on local
air quality. Notably, officers in the Council's Environmental Protection Unit have raised no
objections on these grounds.

- Noise

This is an existing and established school with no current restrictions over use of its indoor
or outdoor facilities. The AWP, in particular, would increase the intensity of use of existing
playing field. However, no floodlighting is proposed and, as such, use of MUGA (and other
outdoor space) would be restricted to reasonable daylight hours only. A Community Use
Agreement would be sought by way of condition, which would enable further control over
activities here to ensure they are carefully managed so to minimise their impacts on
residential amenity.

Notably, whilst officers in the Council's Environmental Protection Unit have noted the
intensification of use, no objections have been raised in this regard. Furthermore, subject
to a condition to control noise from plant and machinery, it is not considered that the
proposed building would given rise to any significant unacceptable increase in noise levels.

Overall, it is not considered that the proposed development would result in any significant
increase in noise levels such that refusal could be justified.
7.19 Comments on Public Consultations

Point (i) to (iv), (vii), (ix) and (x) have been addressed in the body of the report, by way of
condition or through the proposed S106 agreement.

Point (v) raises concerns over impact on property values. This is not a material planning
consideration.

Point (viii) raises concerns over an increased number of balls from the school site being
thrown/kicked into residential gardens and being dangerous to young children. Ball stop
fencing, in addition to vegetative screening will be provided to the AWP. Furthermore, it
must be noted that this is an existing playing field where no control exists over existing use
and existing fencing is relatively low. Accordingly, refusal cannot be justified on these
grounds.

Point (xi) suggests the AWP should be located on the opposite side of the A40. The AWP
would provide a dual purpose facility for the school, which would be used for delivery of the
PE curriculum and out of hours sports use but which would also provide playground space
during break periods. Accordingly, it needs to be located on the school site for operational
reasons. The principle of allowing the pitch here has been discussed at length in part 7.01
of the report.

7.20 Planning obligations

Policy R17 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
states that the Local Planning Authority will, where appropriate, seek to supplement the
provision of recreational open space, facilities to support arts, cultural and entertainment
activities, and other community, social and educational facilities through planning
obligations in conjunction with other development proposals.

The Community Infrastructure Levy Regulation 2010 (Regulations issued Pursuant to the
2008 Act) and the NPPF have put three tests on the use of planning obligations into law. It
is unlawful (since 6th April 2010) to request planning obligations that do not meet the
following tests:

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 75



i. necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms
ii. directly related to the development, and
iii. fairly and reasonable related in scale and kind to the development

The effect of the Regulations is that the Council must apply the tests much more strictly
and is only to ask for planning obligations that are genuinely necessary and directly related
to a development. Should planning obligations be requested that do not meet the policy
tests the Council would have acted unlawfully and could be subject to a High Court
challenge.

On the basis of the NPPF and the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulation 2010, it is
only considered reasonable to request contributions towards the following:

1. Construction Training: Either a contribution equal to the formula (£2,500 for every £1m
build) or an in-kind training scheme equal to the financial contribution delivered during the
construction period of the development with the preference being for an in-kind scheme to
be delivered. A contribution towards co-ordinating costs may also be required.

2. Travel Plan: Prior to first occupation a full travel plan to be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Council. Thereafter the Travel Plan is required to be reviewed at regular
intervals to monitor its impact and, if required, it shall be updated and/or amended in order
that its aims and objectives are achieved. The trigger points for review shall be agreed in
writing by the Council. The Travel Plan shall include regular review of cycle parking
provision and a commitment to the installation of additional spaces should demand dictate.
A Travel Plan bond in the sum of £20,000 is also to be secured.

3. Community Use Agreement: Prior to occupation of the development a Community Use
Scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
scheme shall include details of hours of use, access to the grass pitches, all weather pitch
(including WCs and changing rooms) by non-school users, management responsibilities
and include a mechanism for review. The approved scheme shall be implemented upon
commencement of use of the development.

4. TfL bus contribution: A contribution towards the provision of additional bus services, the
final figure to be agreed through negotiation with TfL.

5. Off site drainage improvements: A contribution towards the provision of drainage
improvements to existing football pitches located at Hillingdon House Farm, to the east of
the athletics track, the final figure to be agreed through negotiation with the Council's Green
Spaces and Special Projects Teams.

6. Project Management & Monitoring: A contribution equal to 5% of the total cash
contributions secured to enable the management and monitoring of the resulting
agreement.

Notably, as the development is for educational use it would not necessitate a contribution
towards the Mayoral or Hillingdon Community Infrastructure Levy.
7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable.
7.22 Other Issues

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 76



Community use:

Current local and London Plan policies encourage community use of sports facilities and
the applicant has confirmed the school's support for out of hours use of their facilities.
Nevertheless, the proximity of the site to residential properties in noted and the applicant
acknowledges that this would need to be carefully managed.

To ensure that community use of the site is optimised, whilst also taking account of the
need to safeguard residential amenity, the provision of a Community Use Agreement would
be secured by way of legal agreement. This would set out the school's policy surrounding
community use of their facilities and include details of hours of use and management
practices.

This is notably something the Greater London Authority have sought and something Sport
England would also typically were they to support the scheme.

Lighting:

An External Lighting Strategy Report has been submitted in support of the application. This
confirms that 4m high post mounted LED lights will be located within the car park areas
and designed to face away from residential properties. Furthermore, wall mounted LED
lighting would be provided around the building to provide localised downward lights.

Details of proposed lighting, accompanied by lighting plots are provided to demonstrate that
careful consideration has been given to any potential impact on residents. Notably, officers
in the Council's Environmental Protection have not highlighted any concerns regarding
these proposals.

No floodlighting of the AWP is proposed. However, during pre-application discussions
Sport England strongly encouraged such provision and their comments on this application
seek justification as to why no floodlighting is proposed. Whilst it is acknowledged that
technology exists to significantly limit light pollution from floodlights, in this instance, given
the likely height of the lighting required and the very close proximity of the AWP to exposed
residential gardens officers would have concerns regarding such provision in this location.
Notably, officers in the Council's Environmental Protection Unit have advised that
notwithstanding measures which could be put in place to reduce lightspill, it would
nevertheless be very difficult to sufficiently control this in this location so as to ensure no
detrimental impact on residential amenity.

From an ecological perspective and also from a visual perspective in terms of impact on
the openness of the green belt, the provision of tall floodlights in this location is also not
ideal. Accordingly, notwithstanding Sport England's view on this matter, it is not considered
that provision of floodlighting should be insisted upon in this instance or that the lack of
floodlights proposed is sufficient grounds for refusal.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 77



of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable.

10. CONCLUSION

The proposal is considered to fully comply with current Local Plan, London Plan and
national planning policies which seek to encourage the enhancement and expansion of
existing educational facilities.

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 78



Notwithstanding Sport England's objection, it is considered that in compliance with current
policy requirements the applicant has sufficiently demonstrated that through a combination
of onsite and offsite enhancements there will be no overall loss in the quantity or quality of
sports provision. It is also considered that, on balance, the educational need for the
development outweighs any impact the development might have on sports provision.

Furthermore, the applicant has argued a case of very special circumstances sufficient to
justify the development in the green belt.

On the basis of the above, no objections are raised to the principle of the development.

It is not considered that the proposed development would result in an unacceptable impact
on the visual amenities of the school site or on the surrounding area. The proposal would
not have any significant detrimental impact on the amenities of the occupiers of
neighbouring residential properties and it is not considered that the development would lead
to such a significant increase in traffic and parking demand that refusal could be justified on
highway grounds.

The proposal is considered to comply with relevant Local Plan and London Plan policies
and, accordingly, approval is recommended, subject to referral of the scheme to the
Secretary of State if needed.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
Policy Statement - Planning for Schools Development (DCLG, 15/08/11)
London Plan (2015)

National Planning Policy Framework

Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document: Accessible Hillingdon
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document: Residential Layouts
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Community Safety by Design
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Noise

Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Air Quality

Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Planning Obligations

Contact Officer: Johanna Hart Telephone No: 01895 250230

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 79



.........................

[ <Ifi__\‘_:- v
& _ 5N
)

P
s>
5
..1
.j]
|

~

'.::\‘J';‘_'.'.'_;i;:-f o N
]

L0

I

The Clump

uuid SN

pn Plantation

Park Wood

Sol RN S

LONDON BOROUGH
Vyners School OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

Notes: Site Address:
Site boundary

Warren Road

For identification purposes only.

Ickenham Planning Section
This copy has been made by or with Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
the authority of the Head of Committee Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
i ion 47 of th . _— .
Services pursuant to section 47 of the Planning Application Ref: Scale:

Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act). 4514/APP/2017/1771 1:2,500
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright. Planning Committee: Date:

© Crown copyright and database

qgggsé%g Ordnance Survey Major Page 80 JUly 2017 HILLILﬁUEJ DON




Agenda ltem 7

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address LITTLE BRITAIN LAKE PACKET BOAT LANE COWLEY
Development: Proposed footbridge over the River Colne at the north end of Little Britain Lake

LBH Ref Nos: 52368/APP/2017/1844

Drawing Nos: Flood Risk Assessment For Proposed Footbridge On River Colne Adjacent
To Little Britain Lake At Cowley
Design & Access Statement ((Including Heritage and Flood Risk
Statements))
2017D217P002
2017D217P003
2017D217P004
2017D217P005
2017D217P001

Date Plans Received: 19/05/2017 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 24/05/2017
1. SUMMARY

The proposed footbridge represents a compatible use within the green belt environment. It
is sympathetically designed and modestly sized and would not overlook or impede upon
the neighbouring residential property at Huntsmoor Weir.

It is therefore considered that the proposed footbridge constitutes acceptable green belt
development and would not have any detrimental visual or amenity impact.

2, RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 SPO1 Council Application Standard Paragraph

This authority is given by the issuing of this notice under Regulation 3 of the Town and
Country Planning General Regulations 1992 and shall enure only for the benefit of the
land.

2 COM3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

3 COM4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers:-

2017D217P001;

2017D217P002;
2017D217P003;

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 81



2017D217P004;
2017D217P005;

and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (March 2016).

4 COM5 General compliance with supporting documentation

The development hereby permitted shall not be brought into use until the following has
been completed in accordance with the specified supporting plans and/or documents:

- Design and Access Statement (Including Heritage and Flood risk statements);

- Flood Risk Assessment For Proposed Footbridge On River Colne Adjacent To Little
Britain Lake At Cowley;

- The bridge soffit must be at 27.72 metres AOD or above.

Thereafter the development shall be retained/maintained in accordance with these details
for as long as the development remains in existence

REASON

To minimise the impact of flooding on users of the bridge and to minimise the impact of
the proposed development on the surrounding area. To comply with Policy 5.13 of the
London Plan (March 2016) and to ensure the development does not increase the risk of
flooding in compliance with Policy EM 6 (Flood Risk Management) in the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part 1 Strategic Policies (Nov 2012), Policy 5.12 of the London Plan and the National
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF).

5 COom7 Materials (Submission)

No development shall take place until details of the colours of the external finish to the
bridge have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Thereafter the development shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details
and be retained as such.

REASON

To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policies BE4, BE13 and OL1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012).

6 RES25 No floodlighting

No floodlighting or other form of external lighting shall be installed unless it is in
accordance with details which have previously been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. Such details shall include location, height, type and
direction of light sources and intensity of illumination. Any lighting that is so installed shall
not thereafter be altered other than for routine maintenance which does not change its
details.

REASON

To safeguard the amenity of surrounding properties and of the rural nature of the
surrounding green belt in accordance with policies BE13, OE1 and OL1 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 82



7 COM10 Tree to be retained

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan shall not be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the Local
Planning Authority. If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely damaged
during construction, or is found to be seriously diseased or dying another tree, hedge or
shrub shall be planted at the same place or, if planting in the same place would leave the
new tree, hedge or shrub susceptible to disease, then the planting should be in a position
to be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and shall be of a size and
species to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be planted in the
first planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier. Where damage is less severe, a schedule of remedial
works necessary to ameliorate the effect of damage by tree surgery, feeding or
groundwork shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. New planting
should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and
Shrubs'

Remedial work should be -carried out to BS BS 3998:2010 'Tree work -
Recommendations' and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape
Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work shall be completed in the first
planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON

To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and to comply with Section 197 of the Town
and Country Planning Act 1990.

8 COM8 Tree Protection

No site clearance or construction work shall take place until the details have been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority with respect to:

1. A method statement outlining the sequence of development on the site including
demolition, building works and tree protection measures.

2. Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or
development shall be commenced until these drawings have been approved and the
fencing has been erected in accordance with the details approved. Unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum height
of 1.5 metres.

Thereafter, the development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
details. The fencing shall be retained in position until development is completed.

The area within the approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the
course of the works and in particular in these areas:

2.a There shall be no changes in ground levels;

2.b No materials or plant shall be stored;

2.c No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed.

2.d No materials or waste shall be burnt; and.

2.e No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 83



REASON

To ensure that trees and other vegetation can and will be retained on site and not
damaged during construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with
policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
The London Plan - The Spatial Development Strategy for London consolidated with
alterations since 2011 (2016) and national guidance.

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

BE10 Proposals detrimental to the setting of a listed building

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE18 Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE34 Proposals for development adjacent to or having a visual effect on
rivers

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

BE39 Protection of trees and woodland - tree preservation orders

BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

OoL1 Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new
development

OL2 Green Belt -landscaping improvements

OoL9 Areas of Environmental Opportunity - condition and use of open land

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

OE7 Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood
protection measures

LPP 2.18 (2016) Green Infrastructure: the multi functional network of open and
green spaces

LPP 5.12 (2016) Flood risk management

LPP 6.10 (2016) Walking

LPP 7.16 (2016) Green Belt

LPP 7.19 (2016) Biodiversity and access to nature

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 84



LPP 7.21 (2016) Trees and woodlands

LPP 7.24 (2016) Blue Ribbon Network
LPP 7.27 (2016) Blue Ribbon Network: supporting infrastructure and
recreational use
LPP 7.28 (2016) Restoration of the Blue Ribbon Network
LPP 7.30 (2016) London's canals and other rivers and waterspaces
LPP 7.4 (2016) Local character
LPP 7.5 (2016) Public realm
LPP 7.6 (2016) Architecture
LPP 7.8 (2016) Heritage assets and archaeology
3

Under the terms of the Environmental Permitting Regulations a Flood Risk Activity Permit
is required from the Environment Agency for any proposed permanent or enabling works
or structures, in, under, over or within eight metres of the top of bank of the River Colne,
designated a 'main river'. Details of lower risk activities that may be Excluded or Exempt
from the Permitting Regulations can be found at: https://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-
activities-environmental-permits. Please contact us at PSO-Thames@environment-
agency.gov.uk for further information. The applicant will need to demonstrate:

- That access to the watercourse is not restricted for future maintenance or improvement
works.

- That works will not obstruct flood flows thereby increasing the risk of flooding to nearby
properties around Hartham Common and its locality.

- That works will not adversely affect the construction and stability of the river bank.
- That all the conditions/requirements of the Flood Risk Activity Permit are met.
Advice to applicant

Water voles (protected species under the Wildlife and Countryside Act) are known to be in
the catchment, both upstream and downstream of the site. Part of the ecological
information required for the Flood Risk Activity Permit will be for a water vole survey on the
riparian areas affected by the works. This survey should be done in the same season as
the works are proposed, in order to be valid. If burrows and presence are identified, this
must be used to inform the method statement and demonstrate how no contravention of
legislation will occur.

4 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between
the hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 85



C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section
61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction
other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would
minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

5 132 Trees in a Conservation Area

As the application site is within a conservation area, not less than 6 weeks notice must be
given to the Local Planning Authority of any intention to cut down, top, lop or uproot or
otherwise damage or destroy any trees on the application site. Please contact the Trees &
Landscape Officer, Residents Services, 3N/02, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW for
further advice.

6 143 Keeping Highways and Pavements free from mud etc

You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to
avoid spillage of mud, soil or related building materials onto the pavement or public
highway. You are further advised that failure to take appropriate steps to avoid spillage or
adequately clear it away could result in action being taken under the Highways Act 1980.

7 144A Prevention of Litter

You should ensure that your premises do not generate litter in the streets and nearby
areas. Sections 93 and 94 of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 give local authorities
the power to serve 'Street Litter Control Notices' requiring businesses to clear up the litter
and implement measures to prevent the land from becoming littered again. By imposing a
'Street Litter Control Notice', the local authority has the power to force businesses to clean
up the area in the vicinity of their premises, provide and empty bins and do anything else
which may be necessary to remove litter. Amendments made to the 1990 Act by the
Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005 have made it immediately an offence to
fail to comply with the requirements of a Street Litter Control Notice, and fixed penalties
may be issued as an alternative to prosecution.

Given the requirements of the Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005, you are
advised to take part in Defra's Voluntary Code of Practice for 'Reducing litter caused by
Food on the Go', published in November 2004.

Should you have any queries on the above, please contact the Environmental
Enforcement Team within the Environment and Consumer Protection Group on 01895
277402 at the London Borough of Hillingdon.

8 145 Discharge of Conditions

Your attention is drawn to conditions 5, 6, 8, 10 and 11 which must be discharged prior to
the commencement of works. You will be in breach of planning control should you
commence these works prior to the discharge of this/these condition(s). The Council may
consider taking enforcement action to rectify the breach of this condition(s). For further
information and advice contact - Residents Services, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW
(Tel: 01895 250230).

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 86



9 147 Damage to Verge - For Council Roads:

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs,
including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage
occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this
development shall not override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will
require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense.

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB3
3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

10 ITO5 Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981

Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981: Note that it is an offence under this act to disturb
roosting bats, nesting birds or any other protected species. Therefore, if applicable, it is
advisable to consult your tree surgeon / consultant to agree an acceptable time for
carrying out the approved works.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The site spans a cut in the River Colne that splits from the main river, running over a weir
and beside a former mill house before merging back with the main river.

The making of the cut has resulted in a broadly crescent shaped island being formed to
which there is currently no direct access to the public. The island is within the ownership of
the Council as is Little Britain Lake, which was formed by gravel extraction, and its banks
which are followed by a public footpath with adjacent green space including picnic areas.
The island itself is covered by fairly dense woodland.

The site, and surrounding area fall within the green belt and the land extending to the north,
east, and south which occupies the area between the River Colne and the Grand Union
Canal is designated as a nature conservation site of metropolitan importance. The
boundaries of the Cowley Lock Conservation Area largely coincide with the nature
conservation site perimeter.

The surrounding area is rural in nature and characterised by rivers and lakes which are
generally bordered by trees and woodland. Packet Boat Lane and Old Mill Road are the
only nearby roads and are both narrow and tree lined and, as such, do not compromise the
rural nature of the surroundings. There is the occasional building which are sporadically
positioned and are well screened by trees so as not to appear unduly disruptive within this
rural setting. Huntsmoor Weir, which is a Grade Il Listed residential dwelling, is located
close by to the north.

The main line of the River Colne forms the boundary of Hillingdon Borough with land to the

west of the river falling under the jurisdiction of South Bucks District Council who have
been notified of the proposed development.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 87



The proposal involves the erection of a timber arched footbridge to provide pedestrian
access to the island referred to as Little Britain Island which will allow members of the
public to access the island as well as provide access to the weir for the Environment
Agency and any other relevant waterway management operatives.

The bridge would be accessed from the existing footpath that extends around Little Britain
Lake and is, itself, accessed from Old Mill Road.

The span of the bridge would be 21 metres with the walkway width being 1.5 metres. The
walkway would be bordered by painted steel railings which would be 1.4 metres in height
and every eighth vertical rail would feature oak cladding. Oak handrails will be mounted on
top of the railings on both sides. The walkway would not feature any steps and would be be
finished with an anti-slip surface throughout.

3.3 Relevant Planning History
Comment on Relevant Planning History
No relevant history for the site.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

PT1.EM2 (2012) Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains
PT1.EM3 (2012) Blue Ribbon Network

PT1.EM4 (2012) Open Space and Informal Recreation

PT1.EM5 (2012) Sport and Leisure

PT1.EM6 (2012) Flood Risk Management

PT1.EM7 (2012) Biodiversity and Geological Conservation

PT1.EM8 (2012) Land, Water, Air and Noise

PT1.HE1 (2012) Heritage

)

PT1.T1 (2012) Accessible Local Destinations

Part 2 Policies:

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
BE10 Proposals detrimental to the setting of a listed building

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
BE18 Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 88



BE21
BE24
BE34
BE38

BE39
BE4
OoL1
OoL2
OoL9
OE1

OE7
LPP 2.18
LPP 5.12
LPP 6.10
LPP 7.16
LPP 7.19
LPP 7.21
LPP 7.24
LPP 7.27
LPP 7.28
LPP 7.30
LPP 7.4
LPP 7.5
LPP 7.6
LPP 7.8

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.
Proposals for development adjacent to or having a visual effect on rivers

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Protection of trees and woodland - tree preservation orders

New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new development
Green Belt -landscaping improvements

Areas of Environmental Opportunity - condition and use of open land

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood protection measures
(2016) Green Infrastructure: the multi functional network of open and green spaces
(2016) Flood risk management

(2016) Walking

(2016) Green Belt

(2016) Biodiversity and access to nature

(2016) Trees and woodlands

(2016) Blue Ribbon Network

(2016) Blue Ribbon Network: supporting infrastructure and recreational use

(2016) Restoration of the Blue Ribbon Network

(2016) London's canals and other rivers and waterspaces

(2016) Local character

(2016) Public realm

(2016) Architecture

(2016) Heritage assets and archaeology

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1
5.2

Advertisement Expiry Date:- 12th July 2017

Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 89



3rd July 2017

6. Consultations
External Consultees

A site notice was posted adjacent to the car park on Old Mill Road which serves visitors to Little
Britain Lake.

A letter was sent to the neighbour at the adjoining the site, notifying them of the proposed
development and inviting responses.

A notice was also published in the local press.
ONE LETTER OF OBJECTION RECEIVED - SUMMARY PROVIDED BELOW:

There is a deed in place allowing the Environment Agency access to the weir from Old Mill Road.
The island is called Huntsmoor Island not Little Britain Island.

No notice was sent to any other property.

There was no consultation with neighbours.

The Mill House is a privately owned and occupied building and the Design and Access Statement
says the footbridge will allow access to it.

There are no pathways or street lighting in the surrounding area and there is already an adequate
picnic area toilet facilities and limited car parking available.

Visitor numbers are low except on fun days when there is congestion on the roads and damage to
the verge.

There is a growing concern of anti-social behaviour.

The island is isolated with no public access and is a sanctuary for wildlife, plants and trees.

There are two known badger setts and a number of kestrel nests on the island.

The proposal will encroach an area reserved for wildlife and there is no public requirement for
expansion of the picnic area.

The site is located in Flood Zone 3 and not 2 as stated in the application and there is significant risk
of flooding.

There would be desecration and destruction to the island in order to provide footpaths.

There is insufficient car parking.

Will not be in keeping with surroundings and will harm neighbour amenities.

Will impact upon the character and setting of a Listed Building.

Issue of the public purse and cost benefit details have not been provided.

ENVIRONMENT AGENCY:

| confirm based on the FRA we have no objection to the proposed development. The site is located
within Flood Zone 3, the bridge is classified as water compatible development with a design life of up
to 100 years, and as such should not inhibit a design flow of 1:100 plus a 25% climate change
allowance. The plans indicate that the bridge soffit will be 27.72mAOD, being above the 1:1000 flood
level of 26.89mAOD and 300mm above the higher upstream bank top of 27.4mAOD. As the
abutments shall be set back two metres from each bank edge there will be no reduction in channel
capacity through the cross section.

Under the terms of the Environmental Permitting Regulations a Flood Risk Activity Permit is required
from the Environment Agency for any proposed permanent or enabling works or structures, in,
under, over or within eight metres of the top of bank of the River Colne, designated a 'main river'.
Details of lower risk activities that may be Excluded or Exempt from the Permitting Regulations can

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 90



be found at: https://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-activities-environmental-permits. Please contact
us at PSO-Thames@environment-agency.gov.uk for further information. The applicant will need to
demonstrate:

- That access to the watercourse is not restricted for future maintenance or improvement works.

- That works will not obstruct flood flows thereby increasing the risk of flooding to nearby properties
around Hartham Common and its locality.

-That works will not adversely affect the construction and stability of the river bank.
- That all the conditions/requirements of the Flood Risk Activity Permit are met.

Water voles (protected species under the Wildlife and Countryside Act) are known to be in the
catchment, both upstream and downstream of the site. Part of the ecological information required
for the Flood Risk Activity Permit will be for a water vole survey on the riparian areas affected by the
works. This survey should be done in the same season as the works are proposed, in order to be
valid. If burrows and presence are identified, this must be used to inform the method statement and
demonstrate how no contravention of legislation will occur.

Internal Consultees
FLOOD OFFICER:

There are no objections in principle to the proposed bridge subject to the construction of the bridge
in accordance with the flood risk information set out in the Design and Access Statement.

LANDSCAPE OFFICER:

The proposal to provide a pedestrian footbridge across the river to Little Britain Island will land close /
amid the tree-lined embankment on the island. While there is no topographic or arboricultural impact
assessment to confirm that it is feasible to land the bridge on the island without affecting trees, the
drawing indicates that the intention is to land between the nearest trees. It is also understood that
trees on the island are due to be thinned / managed in the interest of good arboricultural practice. No
objection, subject to the recommended conditions.

CONSERVATION OFFICER:

The site lies within the Cowley Lock CA and also within the proposed Colne Valley APZ. It is not
considered that the proposal would detract from the character or appearance of this part of the
conservation area. As such, no objections are raised to the proposals, the structure of the bridge
should be painted in appropriate colours, to be covered by condition.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The site is located within the green belt and is therefore subject to strict controls in relation
to the nature and amount of development that would be deemed acceptable.

Para. 89 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that the construction of
new buildings within the green belt should be regarded as inappropriate. The paragraph
then goes on to list exceptions to this general directive, one of which is provision of
appropriate facilities for outdoor recreation as long as it preserves the openness of the
green belt and does not conflict with the purposes of including land within it. Policy 7.16 of
the London Plan directs to the NPPF as guidance for appropriate development in the green
belt whilst Policy OL 1(ii) of the Local Plan identifies open air recreational use as an

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 91



acceptable green belt use.

The site is located within the Colne Valley, which is part of the wider Blue Ribbon Network.
One of the key strands of Policy EM3 of the Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies
(November 2012) is to improve access to and the quality of Hillingdon's river and canal
corridors, thereby providing a healthier lifestyle accessible to all whilst Strategic Policy EM4
states that the Council will safeguard, enhance and extend the network of open spaces.

It is considered that the footbridge will enhance the existing outdoor recreation offer at Little
Britain Lake and, therefore, qualifies as an exceptional case and represents appropriate
green belt development.

7.02 Density of the proposed development

Not relevant to this application.
7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The proposed bridge has a low profile and would be well screened by surrounding trees.
The design is simple and unobtrusive and the use of timber handrails and cladding creates
a traditional appearance that is compatible with historic features within the surrounding
area as well as its overall rural nature.

Given its modest size and the amount of screening surrounding it, it is not considered that
the bridge will adversely impact upon the setting of the neighbouring Grade Il Listed Building
at Huntsmoor Weir.

It is therefore considered that the proposed development is in accordance with Hillingdon
Strategic Policy HE1, Policy BE4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012) and Policy 7.8 of the London Plan (March 2016).

7.04 Airport safeguarding

Not relevant to this application.
7.05 Impact on the green belt

The proposed bridge is a modestly sized feature that would be largely finished in timber.
The railings would allow views to permeate through the bridge and the structure would
therefore not appear as a visually obstructive feature. The bridge would not be located
close to any other significant built forms and would therefore not result in unacceptable
clutter or coalescence. Whilst it would stand alone, it would not appear as an alien feature
within the countryside given the context, with a bridge not being an unexpected feature in a
riverside environment.

No significant area of green space would be lost to accommodate the bridge and it has
been sited so as to require minimal works to existing woodland on the island. The bridge
would not cause shading that could compromise the growth of vegetation and would not
interrupt or alter the current flow of the river colne.

The development does not include any external lighting that may compromise the rural
nature of the surrounding area and the oak and green painted railing finish would result in a
visually recessive appearance that would be compatible with the surrounding environment.

It is therefore considered that the proposed bridge would not result in any harmful impact
upon the character and integrity of the green belt and is therefore in compliance with Policy
EM2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policy
OL1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
Policy 7.16 of the London Plan.

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 92



7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The bridge is sympathetically designed and located and is of a modest size. It would be
largely screened from view by surrounding soft and hard landscaping and would only be
visible from a small area immediately surrounding the site. In any case, the bridge is
considered to be an appropriate feature within the surrounding riverside environment,
which forms part of the Blue Ribbon Network and, as set out in sections 7.03 and 7.05 it
would not compromise the setting or integrity of the surrounding historic environment or the
green belt.

It is therefore considered that the proposed development meets the standards of Policies
BE13 and BE34 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012) and Policies 7.4, 7.28 and 7.30 of the London Plan (March 2016).

7.08 Impact on neighbours

The proposed footbridge would be positioned approximately 10 metres to the south of the
southern boundary of Huntsmoor Weir. This boundary is marked by approximately 2 metre
high timber fencing. The most elevated part of the bridge walkway would be at the
centrepoint and would be raised approximately 0.35 metres above the height of the land
adjacent to the boundary fence. As such, it is not considered that pedestrians using the
bridge would be able to obtain intrusive views into Huntsmoor Weir as any views will be
interrupted by the existing site boundary treatment.

The screening offered by the site boundary treatment combined with the low profile of the
proposed footbridge would ensure that the footbridge does not appear overbearing towards
Huntsmoor Weir nor will it cause any demonstrable overshadowing of the property.

The footbridge will allow access to Council owned greenspace which would be ancillary to
the overall greenspace area around Little Britain Lake and it is not considered that it would
lead to any unacceptable intensification in recreational use that would be to the detriment to
the amenities enjoyed by the occupants of neighbouring dwellings.

It is therefore considered that the proposal is in accordance with Policies BE20, BE21,
BE24 and OE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012) and Policy 7.6 of the London Plan (March 2016).

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

Not relevant to this application.
7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The footbridge would not be located on or adjacent to the highway. It would be accessible
via the existing pathway that encircles Little Britain Lake. The slope angle of the footway is
gentle and its width will allow adequate room for pedestrian movement. The footbridge
would not be used by motorised vehicles.

It is therefore considered that the proposed footbridge does not conflict with Policy AM7 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).
7.11 Urban design, access and security

The proposed development would improve access to publicly owned land within the Blue
Ribbon Network, providing an enhancement to the surrounding provision of public open
space, allowing members of the public to experience more of the qualities of the
surrounding environment and aiding the practicality of managing, maintaining and
enhancing the island site for nature conservation purposes.

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 93



It is therefore considered that the proposed development complies with Policies EM3 and
EM4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012), Local
Plan Policies BE34 and EC1 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) and London Plan Policies 6.10, 7.19, 7.27 and 7.30.

7.12 Disabled access

The proposed footbridge has step free access and the arch is not steeply inclined. The
walkway would be 1.5 metres in width and this is adequate to allow for wheelchair access.
7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not relevant to this application.
7.14 Trees, landscaping and Ecology

The site is located within a Metropolitan and Borough Grade 1 Site of Importance for Nature
Conservation (SINC). Policy EM7 of Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies
(November 2012) provides objectives for the management of such sites and this includes
the aim to work with partners, private landowners and other utility providers to achieve
multi-functional use of land use that promotes and enhances biodiversity, adds to the green
grid or achieves other open space outcomes, including improved accessibility.

A Flood Risk Activity Permit will be required for the works and part of the application
process involves the submission of a water vole survey on the riparian areas affected by
the works along with protection and mitigation measures to be adopted should water voles
be found to be present.

The western side of the footbridge would be landed on the bank of the island which is
currently under dense tree cover. The precise positioning of the footbridge would be
carefully considered so as to prevent the need to cut back trees and to ensure no harmful
disturbance to root protection areas. The footbridge would not require any significant
foundations to be dug and, as such, would not result in any harmful disturbance or
destabilisation to the banks of the river.

The proposed footbridge would not obstruct or alter the flow of the river nor adversely
impact upon any significant habitat space on the banks of the river.

It is therefore considered that the proposed footbridge is in accordance with policies BE34,
BE38, EC1 and OL9 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) and Policies 7.19 and 7.21 of the London Plan (March 2016).

7.15 Sustainable waste management

Not relevant to this application.
7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not relevant to this application.
7.17 Flooding or Drainage Issues

The footbridge would span the banks of the cut of the Colne River, within Flood Zone 3 and
the functional flood plain (Flood Zone 3b). The footbridge has been positioned at a suitable
level so as to prevent obstruction to the flow of the river or jamming with debris so as to
safeguard against the potential for presenting a flood risk.

Table 2 of the Flood Risk and Coastal Change guidance which supplements the NPPF
classifies amenity open space as a water compatible use whilst Table 3 of the same
guidance recognises water compatible use as appropriate for Flood Zone 3b provided that
any structure is designed and constructed to

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 94



- remain operational and safe for users in times of flood;
- result in no net loss of floodplain storage; and
- not impede water flows and not increase flood risk elsewhere.

The Environment Agency have assessed the proposals and have raised no objections. The
key issue relates to the height of the bridge soffit which must be sufficient to be resilient to
flooding.

The proposed bridge soffit height has been deemed acceptable by the Environment
Agency and the height of 27.72 metres AOD and a condition will be used to ensure the
footbridge is built in accordance with these details.

The bridge would be raised above the river and therefore not impede water flow whilst the
fact that the bulk of it is over the river will prevent any net loss in floodplain storage.

It is therefore considered that the proposed footbridge, provided it is built in accordance

with approved details, will accord with Policy EM6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One -

Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policy OE7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -

Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and Policy 5.12 of the London Plan (Marc 2016).
7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues

The bridge would not result in any material increase in the generation of noise. As
mentioned earlier in the report, it would not be used by motorised vehicles.

It is therefore considered that the proposed footbridge satisfies Policy OE1 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).
7.19 Comments on Public Consultations

Issues relating to the visual and amenity impact of the proposed footbridge are discussed
within the main body of this report. The island does not have an official name according to
ordnance survey maps and the location of the proposed footbridge is clearly shown on the
location plan to provide clarity. The Environment Agency require a more reliable and
accessible means to reach the weir. The land is publicly owned greenspace and members
of the public are therefore entitled to access and utilise it.

7.20 Planning obligations

No Section 106 agreement or CIL payment is required for this application.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning

applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 95



Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

10. CONCLUSION

It is recommended that the application is approved, subject to relevant conditions as set
out in this report.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
The London Plan (March 2016)

Hillingdon Planning Obligations SPD

Accessible Hillingdon SPD

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

Hillingdon Open Space Strategy 2011 - 2026

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 96



Contact Officer: James McLean Smith Telephone No: 01895 250230

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 97



Weir/ -/~ <]

Huntsmoor Weir

T

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

Little Britain Lake (Footbridge),
Packet Boat Lane

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
52368/APP/2017/1844 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
Major Page 98 July 2017

HILLINGDON

LONDON




Agenda Iltem 8

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address PROLOGIS PARK WEST LONDON HORTON ROAD YIEWSLEY

Development: Section 73 application for variation of Conditions 5 (approved drawings), 6
(approved documents), 25 (insertion of mezzanine floors) and 27 (use as
data centre) as attached to planning permission ref. 37977/APP/2015/1004
dated 14-12-2015: Hybrid Application for the phased comprehensive
redevelopment of the site to provide an overall maximum gross floorspace of
45,000sgm of light industrial uses (Use Class B1c and/or Use Class B2)
and/or storage and distribution uses (Use Class B8) and ancillary offices,
together with servicing, parking, access roads and open space. Full planning
permission is sought for Phase 1 containing 18,900sgm of floorspace in two
buildings up to 16.2 metres in height (to ridge), together with associated
highways works, open space, hard and soft landscaping, car parking and
associated infrastructure. Outline planning permission is sought for Phase 2
for up to 26,100sgm of floorspace with all matters, except for access,
reserved for later determination.

LBH Ref Nos: 37977/APP/2017/1634

Drawing Nos: 05015
05016
27122/PL/100
05901
IA-407-LD-P0O1
IA-407-LD-P02
IA-407-LD-P03
IA-407-LP-P0O1
05005
05006
Consultant Advice (G-006[1.0]) by Norman Disney & Younc
05705
05706
A05801
A05802
05003
05004
05013
05014
05703
05704
Design & Access Statement by TTSP
Framework Travel Plan
Energy Strategy (Revision 3.0) by Norman Disney & Younc
Economic Statement by Maddox Planning Consultants
Planning Statement by Savills
Planting Statement by Ireland Albrech
Transport Statement (70032265-01) by WSP Parsons Brinckerhoff

Date Plans Received: 05/05/2017 Date(s) of Amendment(s):

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 99



Date Application Valid: 12/05/2017

1. SUMMARY

The proposed data centre use is compatible with the character of the business park and
would support the continued viability of the Industrial and Business Area (IBA).

Additional works required will be mitigated visually by improved landscaping whilst noise
and emissions from associated plant can be suitably restricted and managed.

The gantries and associated plant, as well as the mezzanine will be removed if and when
use as a data centre ceases, allowing the flexibility of the buildings to be maintained.

2. RECOMMENDATION

Approval, subject to delegated powers being given to the Head of Planning and
Enforcement to grant planning permission, subject to any relevant amendments
agreed by the Head of Planning and Enforcement and the following:

a) That the Council enter into a deed of variation to the legal agreement with the
applicant under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as
amended) or any other legislation to secure the legal obligations secured under
the original consent (reference 51588/APP/2011/2253 dated 27/03/12).

b) That in respect of the application for planning permission, the applicant meets
the Council's reasonable costs in preparation of the Section 106 and 278
Agreements and any abortive work as a result of the agreement not being
completed.

c) That officers be authorised to negotiate and agree the detailed terms of the
proposed agreement and conditions of approval.

d) That if any of the heads of terms have not been agreed and the S106 legal
agreement has not been finalised within 3 months of the date of this Committee
resolution, or any other period deemed appropriate by the Head of Planning and
Enforcement, then the application may be referred back to the Committee for
determination.

e) That subject to the above, the application be deferred for determination by the
Head of Planning and Enforcement under delegated powers, subject to the

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 100



completion of the legal agreement under Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 and other appropriate powers with the applicant.

f) That if the application is approved, the following conditions be imposed subject
to any changes negotiated by the Head of Planning and Enforcement prior to
issuing the decision:

1 COM3 Reserved matters - submission (Phase 2)

Approval of the details of the layout, scale and appearance of the buildings and the
landscaping of the site for the land shown as 'Area of Outline Application' on the approved
Planning Layout (Drawing no. 27122/PL/056B) (hereinafter called "Phase 2") shall be
obtained from the Local Planning Authority in writing before any development is
commenced on the Phase 2 site.

Reason
The land referred to in condition 1 within the application site is in part an outline permission
and the reserved matters shall be made to the Local Planning Authority.

2 CcoM4 Time Limit- (Phase 2)

Application for approval of the reserved matters shall be made to the Local Planning
Authority before the expiration of three years from the date of the original planning approval
notice, this being the 14th of December 2015.

Reason
To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990
(as amended).

3 COM5 Time Limit- (Phase 2)

Plans and particulars of the reserved matters referred to in condition 1 above, relating to
the layout, scale and appearance of any buildings to be erected, including the means of
access to the phase 2 site and the landscaping of the Phase 2 site, shall be submitted in
writing to the Local Planning Authority and shall be carried out as approved. All reserved
matters shall be begun before the expiry of 2 years from the date of the decision to which
the reserved matters development relates.

Reason
The land referred to in condition 1 within the application site is in part an outline permission
and the reserved matters shall be made to the Local Planning Authority.

4 NONSC  Time Limit - (Phase 1)

The development shown in detail (hereinafter called "Phase 1") on drawing no.
27122/PL/056B and all other related drawings and details hereby permitted (hereinafter
called "Phase 1") shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of
original planning approval notice, this being the 14th of December 2015.

Reason
To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990
(as amended).

5 RES18 Approved Plans (Phase 1)

Phase One of the development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in
complete accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans referenced below
and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 101



existence:

Phase One of the development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in
complete accordance with

the details shown on the submitted plans referenced below and shall thereafter be
retained / maintained for

as long as the development remains in existence:

- Michael Sparks 27122/PL.

- TTSP: 05001, 05002, 05003, 05004, 05005, 05006, 05011, 05012, 05013, 05014, 05015,
05016, 05701,

05702, 05703, 05704, 05705, 05706, 05801, 05802, 05900 and 05901;

- Barry Chins: 02A, 03C, 11B, 12B, 13A, 14A and 22A;

- WSP: 6377-ATR-003 and 6377-SK-003B

- Ireland Albrecht: IA-407-LD-P01, IA-407-LD-P02, 1A-407-LD-P03, 1A-407-LP-P01

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan
(November 2012) and the London Plan (March 2015).

6 COowm7 Approved Documents (Phases 1 & 2)

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the following has been
completed in accordance with the specified supporting plans and/or documents:

- Geo-Environmental Assessment - WSP 10/03/2015

- Preliminary Risk Assessment (Phase 1 Report) - WSP 10/03/2015

- Air Quality Assessment - AECOM Limited March 2015

- Ecological Assessment - Ecology Solutions March 2015

- Design and Access Statement - Michael Sparks ref. 27122 March 2015

- Sustainability and Energy Statement - Turley Sustainability March 2015

- Sustainability and Energy Statement Addendum - Turley Sustainability June 2015
- Noise Assessment - AECOM Limited March 2015

- Flood Risk Assessment - WSP 10/03/2015

- Landscape Design Statement 1469/14/Rp02 - Barry Chinn Associates June 2015
- Landscape & Visual Assessment Addendums - Barry Chinn Associates March 2015
- Canal Frontage Landscape Statement - Barry Chinn Associates June 2015

- Pre-Development - Tree Survey Midland Tree Surgeons Limited (Feb 2015)

- Transport Assessment - WSP 11 March 2015

- PERS Audit - WSP 15 May 2015

- Design and Access Statement including Site Photographs and Air Quality Statement
TTSP Architects May 2017

- Planting Design Statement prepared by Ireland Albrecht

- Transport Statement - WSP May 2017

- Travel Plan Summary - WSP May 2017

- Energy Strategy - Norman Disney & Young May 2017

- Acoustic Consultancy Report - Lee Cunningham Partnership May 2017

- Economic Statement - Maddox Associates May 2017

- Consultant Advice Note (G-006[1.0]) - Norman, Disney & Young July 2017

Thereafter the development shall be retained/ maintained in accordance with these details

for as long as the development remains in existence, unless alternative details are
approved in respect to another condition on this consent.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 102



REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan
(November 2012) and the London Plan (March 2015).

7 TL6 Parameters - Floor Space, Height and Car Parking (Phase 2)

Notwithstanding any illustrative information contained in supporting documentation, within
Phase 2 of the development, the siting, maximum and minimum width and length of any
buildings shall accord with Drawing Number 27122/PL/056B 'Parameters Plan’, unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The proposed floor area/size and heights of any buildings or structures parts of buildings
or structures within Phase 2 of the development, as identified on Parameters Plan
27122/PL/056B, including any plant and equipment, shall not exceed 26,100sgm of
floorspace (GIA) and 18.7 metres in height (to ridge).

Car parking arrangements for Phase 2 shall demonstrate that parking provision is
commensurate with the scale of development and shall ensure that following the
completion of the building(s) approved on Phase 2, no more than 250 additional car
parking spaces are provided within the Phase 2 site. Following completion of all buildings
within Phases 1 and 2, no more than 430 car parking spaces are to be provided on the
site at any time. In addition cycle and motorcycle parking shall be provided for each
building within each phase.

REASON

i) To prevent over development of the site, to ensure that the scale and massing of the
buildings are appropriate to their setting, to comply with the terms of the application and to
accord with Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012),

ii) To safeguard the visual amenities of the Green Belt and to accord with Policies OL1,
OL2 and OL5 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) and to accord with London
Plan (March 2015) Policy 7.16.

ii) To ensure that the vehicular access, servicing and parking areas are satisfactorily laid
out on site in accordance with Policy AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Local Plan
(November 2012) and Chapter 6 of the London Plan (March 2015).

8 RES9 Levels (Phases 1 & 2)

For each phase of the development detailed plans of the site showing the existing and
proposed ground levels and the proposed finished floor levels of all proposed buildings
within each phase of the site have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. Such levels shall be shown in relation to a fixed and know datum point
and no building within the site shall exceed the maximum height of 67.93m AOD.
Thereafter the development shall not be carried out other than in accordance with the
approved details.

REASON
To ensure that the development relates satisfactorily to adjoining properties in accordance
with policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).

9 RES11 Landscape Plan (Phases 1 & 2)

For each phase of the development a landscape scheme shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping
1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 103



1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,
1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.a Refuse Storage

2.b Means of enclosure/boundary treatments, including details of the positions, heights
and materials proposed

2.c Car Parking for;

i. Phase 1: 180 parking spaces, including demonstration of 18 parking spaces for disabled
users and 54 parking spaces are served by electrical charging points (of which 36 active
and 18 passive; and,

ii. Phase 2: a maximum of 250 parking spaces (including demonstration that 20% active
and 10% passive provision for electric vehicles) and 10% parking spaces are allocated for
disabled users.

2.d Cycle and Motorcycle parking for each building within each phase of the development
2.d Hard Surfacing Materials

2.e External Lighting

2.f CCTV or any other structures (such as play equipment and furniture)

3. Living Walls and Roofs
3.a Details of the inclusion of living walls and roofs, or
Justification as to why no part of the development can include living walls and roofs

4. Details of Landscape Maintenance

4.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.

4.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within the
landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes
seriously damaged or diseased.

5. Schedule for Implementation

6. Other
6.a Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground
6.b Proposed finishing levels or contours

Thereafter the approved details shall be implemented prior to first occupation of the
buildings within each phase in full accordance with the approved details and shall be
retained thereafter.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with condition 3(v) and policies
BE13 and BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) and Policies 5.11 (living
walls and roofs), 5.8 (Innovative energy Technologies), 6.13 (Parking) and 5.17 (refuse
storage) of the London Plan (March 2015).

10 NONSC Landscaping Scheme - Implementation (Phases 1 & 2)

For each phase of the development all hard and soft landscaping shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved landscaping scheme and shall be completed within the first
planting and seeding seasons following the completion of the development or the
occupation of the buildings, whichever is the earlier period. Thereafter, the areas of hard
and soft landscaping shall be permanently retained.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 104



Any tree, shrub or area of turfing or seeding shown on the approved landscaping scheme
which within a period of 5 years from the completion of development dies, is removed or in
the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes seriously damaged or diseased shall
be replaced in the same place or, if planting in the same place would leave the new tree,
hedge or shrub susceptible to disease, then the planting should be in a position to be first
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority in the next planting season with another
such tree, shrub or area of turfing or seeding of similar size and species unless the Local
Planning Authority first gives written consent to any variation.

REASON

To ensure that the landscaped areas are laid out and retained in accordance with the
approved plans in order to preserve and enhance the visual amenities of the locality in
compliance with policy BE38 of the of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).

1 NONSC Landscaped Adjacent to Development Areas (Phase 1)

Notwithstanding any illustrative information contained in supporting documentation, the
landscape areas shown on Drawings 03C, 09A, 11B, 12B, 13A and 22A shall be
completed within the first planting and seeding seasons following the completion or
occupation of the building approved on Phase 1, whichever is the earlier period.

REASON

To ensure that the landscaped areas are laid out in accordance with the approved plans in
order to preserve and enhance the visual amenities of the locality in compliance with
policy BE38 of the of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).

12 NONSC Bird Hazard Management Plan (Phases 1 & 2)

Prior to commencement of each phase of the development, or any of the elements of
development for which full planning permission is hereby approved, detailed drawings and
supporting documentation in relation to the relevant phase or component of the full
planning element shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority, in respect of the following:

i) A Bird Hazard Management Plan which shall include the following details:

- Details of any water features,

- Monitoring of any standing water within the site,

- Drainage details including Sustainable Urban Drainage Schemes (SUDS). Such
schemes must also comply with Advice Note 6 Potential Bird Hazards from SUDS which
is available at www.aoa.org.uk/publications/safeguarding.asp

- Management of any flat roofs within the site which may be attractive to nesting, roosting
or 'loafing' birds. The management plan shall comply with Advice Note 8 - Potential Bird
Hazards from Building Design (www.aoa.org.uk/publications/safeguarding.asp),

- Any earthworks,

- The species, number and spacing of trees and shrubs,

- reinstatement of grass areas,

- maintenance of planted and landscaped areas, particularly in terms of the height and
species of plants that are allowed to grow,

- which waste materials can be brought on to the site,

- monitoring of waste imports,

- physical arrangement for collection and storage of putrescible waste,

- signs deterring people from feeding birds.

Thereafter and prior to occupation of each relevant phase/relevant component of the full

planning element, the scheme shall be completed in strict accordance with the approved
details and thereafter maintained for the life of the development.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 105



REASON
To protect Aircraft safety in accordance with Policy A6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

13 NONSC Ecological Enhancements (Phases 1 & 2)

Prior to the commencement of each phase of the development an ecological
enhancement scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The scheme shall clearly detail measures to promote and enhance wildlife
opportunities within the landscaping and the fabric of the buildings within each phase of
the development including measures such as habitat walls, bird and bat boxes and nectar
rich planting. The scheme shall aim to include an area of land dedicated to wildlife habitat.
Each phase of the development must proceed in accordance with the approved scheme.

REASON
To ensure the development contributes to ecological enhancement in accordance with
Policy EM7 (Local Plan) and Policy 7.28 of the London Plan.

14 NONSC Trees to be Retained (Phases 1 & 2)

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan shall not be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the Local
Planning Authority. If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely damaged
during construction, or is found to be seriously diseased or dying another tree, hedge or
shrub shall be planted at the same place or, if planting in the same place would leave the
new tree, hedge or shrub susceptible to disease, then the planting should be in a position
to be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and shall be of a size and
species to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be planted in the
first planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier. Where damage is less severe, a schedule of remedial
works necessary to ameliorate the effect of damage by tree surgery, feeding or
groundwork shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. New planting
should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and
Shrubs'

Remedial work should be carried out to BS BS 3998:2010 'Tree work -
Recommendations' and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape
Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work shall be completed in the first
planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON

To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and to comply with Section 197 of the Town
and Country Planning Act 1990.

15 NONSC Floodlighting (Phases 1 & 2)

For each phase of the development no floodlighting shall be installed unless it is in
accordance with details which have previously been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. Such details shall include location, height, type and
direction of light sources and intensity of illumination. Any lighting that is so installed shall
not thereafter be altered without the prior consent in writing of the Local Planning Authority
other than for routine maintenance which does not change its details.

REASON

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 106



To safeguard the amenity of surrounding properties in accordance with policy BE13 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and Policy 7.1 of
the London Plan (March 2015)

16 NONSC Facilities for People with Disabilities (Phases 1 & 2)

For each phase of the development the plans and details relating to disabled access,
circulation and facilities shall ensure that:

(i) External areas, including landscaped areas are designed to be inclusive with any gravel
surface to be smooth and resin bonded, and should otherwise meet the specifications
prescribed in BS 8300:2009.

(ii) All areas to which the public have access are designed to achieve a gradient no
steeper than 1:18 with handrails and a level landing provided at every 8 metres of ramp
flight,

(iii) Level access is provided to all buildings

(iv) Building entrances (including level approaches, signposting, types and dimensions of
door width and lobby openings) meet the needs of disabled persons,

(v) All buildings, including their approach, are designed in accordance with BS 8300:2009,

The facilities approved shall be provided prior to the occupation of each relevant phase of
development and shall be permanently retained thereafter.

REASON
In order to ensure the development achieves an appropriate level of accessibility in
accordance with Policy 3.8 of the London Plan (March 2015) and the HDAS - Accessible
Hillingdon.

17 NONSC Existing Access Closure (Phase 1)

No building within the development shall be occupied until the existing access from the
site to Iron Bridge Road has been permanently closed and any kerbs, verge, footway, fully
reinstated by the applicant, in a manner to be agreed in writing with the Local Planning
Authority; and only the approved details shall be implemented.

REASON

To restrict access onto the public highway where it is necessary in the interest of highway
safety in accordance with policy AM7 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012)

18 COM15 Canalside Risk Assessment and Method Statement

Prior to the commencement of any works adjacent to the water in the Grand Union
Canal, a Risk Assessment and Method Statement outlining all works to be carried out
adjacent to the water Grand Union Canal must be submitted and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Canal & River Trust.

REASON
To ensure the proposed works do not have any adverse impact on the safety of waterway
users and the integrity of the navigation.

19 COM31 Canalside Water Run-off and Ground Water Drain

If surface water run-off and ground water is proposed to drain into the waterway, details
shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation
with the Canal & River Trust prior to the commencement of development, and thereafter
implemented in accordance with the agreed details unless otherwise agreed in writing.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 107



REASON:
To determine the potential for pollution of the waterway and likely volume of water

20 RES16 Submission Energy Assessment (Phases 1 & 2)

Prior to the commencement of each phase of the development a detailed energy
assessment shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The assessment shall clearly set out the baseline energy performance of each phase of
the development, and the detailed measures to reduce CO2 emissions of each phase by
35%. The assessment shall provide detailed specifications of the measures and
technology set out in outline energy assessment. The assessment shall also include full
details of the photovoltaics including type, specification, and a detailed roof layout which
must be reflected in other plans and elevations.

Finally, the assessment must include appropriate measuring and monitoring proposals
and how the information will be submitted to the Local Planning Authority to demonstrate
CO2 reductions are being met.

Each phase of the development must proceed in accordance with the approved scheme.

REASON

To ensure appropriate carbon savings are delivered in accordance with London Plan
Policy 5.2.

21 NONSC Secure by Design (Phases 1 & 2)

The buildings shall achieve 'Secured by Design' accreditation awarded by the Metropolitan
Police. No building within each phase of the development shall be occupied until
accreditation has been achieved.

REASON

In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to
consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote the
well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the Local
Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's SPG on
Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development provides a safe and secure
environment in accordance with Policies 7.1 and 7.3 of the London Plan (March 2015).

22 NONSC Contaminated Land (Phases 1 & 2)

(i) Each phase of the development hereby permitted shall not commence until a scheme
to deal with contamination has been submitted in accordance with the Supplementary
Planning Guidance Document on Land Contamination and approved by the Local Planning
Authority (LPA). The scheme shall include all of the following measures unless the LPA
dispenses with any such requirement specifically and in writing:

(a) A site investigation, including where relevant soil, soil gas, surface and groundwater
sampling, together with the results of analysis and risk assessment shall be carried out by
a suitably qualified and accredited consultant/contractor. The report should also clearly
identify all risks, limitations and recommendations for remedial measures to make the site
suitable for the proposed use; and

(b) A written method statement providing details of the remediation scheme and how the
completion of the remedial works will be verified shall be agreed in writing with the LPA
prior to commencement, along with details of a watching brief to address undiscovered
contamination.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 108



(ii) If during development works contamination not addressed in the submitted remediation
scheme is identified, the updated watching brief shall be submitted and an addendum to
the remediation scheme shall be agreed with the LPA prior to implementation; and

(iii) All works which form part of the remediation scheme shall be completed and a
comprehensive verification report shall be submitted to the Council's Environmental
Protection Unit before any part of the development is occupied or brought into use unless
the LPA dispenses with any such requirement specifically and in writing.

(iv) No contaminated soils or other materials shall be imported to the site. All imported
soils for landscaping purposes shall be clean and free of contamination. Before any part of
the development is occupied, all imported soils shall be independently tested for chemical
contamination, and the results of this testing shall be submitted and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. All soils used for gardens and/or landscaping purposes shall
be clean and free of contamination.

REASON:

To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and
ecological systems and the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable
risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with policy OE11 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).

23 NONSC Sustainable Water Management (Phases 1 & 2)

For each phase of the development, a scheme for the provision of sustainable water
management for that phase shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The scheme shall clearly demonstrate how it:

a) Manages Surface Water. The scheme shall demonstrate ways of controlling the
surface water on site.

i. (following the strategy set out in Flood Risk Assessment and Surface Water
Drainage Strategy, produced by WSP

ii. incorporates sustainable urban drainage in accordance with the hierarchy set
out in Policy 5.15 of the London Plan. Where the proposal does not utilise the most
sustainable solution, justification must be provided.

iii. provide information on all Suds features including the method employed to delay
and control the water discharged from the site to Greenfield run off rates and:

a. calculations showing storm period and intensity and volume of storage required to
control surface water and size of features to control that volume.

b. any overland flooding should be shown, with flow paths depths and velocities
identified as well as any hazards, ( safe access and egress must be demonstrated).

iv. Demonstrates capacity and structural soundness in the receptors of Thames
Water network and receiving watercourse as appropriate.

V. During Construction

a. measures taken to prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface
waters;

b. how they or temporary measures will be implemented to ensure no increase in flood
risk from commencement of construction.

b) Foul water

i. The Scheme shall demonstrate capacity in the receiving foul sewer network or
provides suitable upgrades agreed by Thames Water.

d) Minimise water use. The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to
minimise the use of potable water through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

i. incorporate water saving measures and equipment.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 109



ii. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;

iii. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the
development.

e) Long Term Management and Maintenance of the drainage system.

i. Provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the
development of arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its
lifetime. Including appropriate details of Inspection regimes, appropriate performance
specification, remediation and timescales for the resolving of issues. Where there is
overland flooding proposed, the plan should include the appropriate actions to ensure the
safety of the users of the site should that be required.

ii. Where the maintenance will not be the responsibility of an individual
householder, the details of the body legally responsible for the implementation of the
management and maintenance plan must be provided.

The development shall not be occupied until the approved details have been implemented
and thereafter retained/maintained in accordance with the approved details for as long as
the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure that surface water run off is controlled to ensure the development does not
increase the risk of flooding contrary to Policy EM6 Flood Risk Management in Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies (November 2012) Policy 5.12 Flood Risk
Management of the London Plan (March 2015) and National Planning Policy Framework
and the Planning Practice Guidance. To be handled as close to its source as possible in
compliance with Policy 5.13 Sustainable Drainage of the London Plan (March 2015), and
conserve water supplies in accordance with Policy 5.15 Water use and supplies of the
London Plan (March 2015).

24 NONSC Restrictions - Enlargement of Industrial/Warehouse Buildings

Notwithstanding the provisions of Part 8, Schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that
Order with or without modification), the building(s) shall not be extended without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To enable the Local Planning Authority to assess all the implications of the development
and in accordance with policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012)

25 COM30 No additional internal floorspace (Phases 1 & 2)

Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 55 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
(or any others revoking and re-enacting this provision with or without modification), no
additional structural internal mezzanine floorspace that can be used for storage, excluding
that intended to be used for a data centre, shall be created in excess of that area
expressly authorised by this permission.

REASON

To enable the Local Planning Authority to assess all the implications of the development
and to ensure that adequate parking and loading facilities can be provided on the site, in
accordance with Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012)

26 NONSC No External Storage Above 3 Metres (Phases 1 & 2)

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 110



Notwithstanding the provisions of Part 3, Schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that
Order with or without modification), and unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority, external storage associated with the use of any part of the site shall not
exceed 3 metres in height within any part of the development hereby approved.

REASON

To enable the Local Planning Authority to assess all the implications of the development
and to ensure the development does not detrimentally impact upon the Green Belt and
streetscene.

27 NONSC Use Restrictions (Phases 1 & 2)

Notwithstanding the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order (as amended), or in
any provision equivalent to that Class in any statutory instrument revoking and re-enacting
that Order with or without modification, the units within Phase 2 shall not be used as a
data centre.

REASON
To ensure compliance with policies within chapter 5 of the London Plan (March 2015).

28 NONSC Reporting Energy Usage

Prior to the occupation of the development a scheme for the reporting of energy usage
and CO2 emissions should be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The report shall be submitted on a 6 monthly basis for 5 years on
commencement of operation of the development. The report shall detail the amount of
energy consumed (kwHrs) and the related CO2 emissions. The report shall also provide
a commentary of the actual performance of the data centre in relation to the anticipated
performance set out in the Energy Assessment (and addendum). Measures to ensure
compliance with the agreed reductions of the Energy Assessment will also be detailed
where there is a difference (+/- 3%) from the predicted performance. These measures
must be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. The development must be
modified and/or operated in accordance with the measures where appropriate, unless
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure compliance with the Energy Assessment and London Plan Policy 5.2.

29 COmM7 Substation Details

Construction of the electricity substation buildings shall not commence until details of the
design, dimensions and all external finishes and materials have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the development shall be
constructed in accordance with the approved details and be retained as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

30 NONSC Green Walls

Prior to the occupation of each data centre building, the Green Walls for that building shall
be constructed and planted in accordance with details to be submitted to and approved in

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 111



writing by the Council.
The details submitted shall include

i) Method of construction,

ii) Schedule of framework materials;

i) Schedule of the species to be planted, method of planting, height and spread at planting
and growth projections;

iv) An ongoing management and maintenance regime for the green wall to include
irrigation methods and an inspection programme to allow dead or dying plants to be
identified and replaced.

The green walls shall thereafter be retained in accordance with the submitted details in
perpetuity and shall not be removed or altered without the prior written consent of the
Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that the landscaped areas are laid out and retained in accordance with the
approved plans in order to preserve and enhance the visual amenities of the locality in
compliance with policy BE38 of the of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).

31 NONSC Reinstatement and Restoration

Prior to the occupation of any of the buildings within Phase 1 of the planning permission
reference 37977/APP/2015/1004 for a any use other than as a data centre, details of the
reinstatement of the hard and soft landscaping, removal of mezzanine floors, removal of
the external gantries and removal of all external plant and machinery shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Council and all works carried out in accordance with these
details.

REASON

In the interests of amenity and the future functionality and flexibility of the buildings and
their uses in accordance with Policies BE 13, LE 1 and LE 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan
(November 2012).

32 NONSC Air Quality Assessment

Prior to occupation, a detailed air quality assessment shall be submitted to and approved
by the Local Planning Authority.

This should assess levels of both nitrogen dioxide and PM10, and should use the
IAQM/EPUK2017 guidelines to describe and assess impacts.

The air quality modelling will use an advanced dispersion model taking into account the 3D
data of the surrounding buildings and the exhaust stack height to the overall impact of the
emissions on nearby receptors.

The study will have to demonstrate that the release environment and stack design will not
result in adverse air quality impacts. Both long term and short term limit values for NO2
and PM are to be assessed using a series of scenarios:

a) all units are on for 50 hours per year
b) all units are on for 200 hours per year

The estimates above must assume that generators will join STOR and undertake triad

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 112



management and capture the range of plausible run hour outcomes.

c) half of the units are on 50 hours per year
d) half of the units are on 200 hours per year

The study should optimise both location and height of of flues and use worst case
meteorological conditions.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of the surrounding area in accordance with Policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) and London Plan (2016) Policy 7.15

33 HO4 Materials

Details of the design and appearance of the materials to be used in the construction of the
external surfaces of the development hereby permitted shall be submitted to, and
approved, by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of development.

REASON

To safeguard the visual amenities of the area and to ensure that the proposed
development does not have an adverse effect upon the appearance of the existing building
in accordance with Policies BE 13 and BE 15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

34 M3 Boundary treatment - details

Notwithstanding the details on the approved plans, no boundary treatment will be erected
until there has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority a
plan indicating the positions, design, materials and type of boundary treatment to be
erected. The boundary treatment shall be completed before the buildings are occupied.
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

REASON

To safeguard the visual amenities of the area, with particular reference to the visual quality
of the Grand Union Canal, in accordance with Policies BE 13 and BE 32 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

35 N8 Limit for site noise level

The level of noise emitted from the site shall not exceed 5dB below background level, as
measured at the boundary of the nearest noise sensitive premises. A post completion test
to demonstrate the plant noise level will be at least 5dB below the background sound level
at the nearest sensitive receptor shall be submitted within 6 months of the
commencement of operations on each site.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of the surrounding area in accordance with Policy OE 1 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) and London Plan (2016) Policy 7.15

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 113



incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2

Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant
material considerations, including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

AM10

AM11

AM13

AM14
AM15
AM2

AM7
AM8

AM9

BE1

BE13
BE18
BE19

BE20
BE21
BE24

BE25
BE31
BE32

BE38

BE39
EM2
EM6

Incorporation in new developments of additions to the proposed
cycle network

Improvement in facilities and promotion of safety and security at bus
and rail interchanges; use of planning agreements to secure
improvement in public transport services

AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people
and people with disabilities in development schemes through (where
appropriate): -

(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services

(i)) Shopmobility schemes

(iii) Convenient parking spaces

(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street
furniture schemes

New development and car parking standards.

Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons
Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
Priority consideration to pedestrians in the design and
implementation of road construction and traffic management
schemes

Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design
of highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking
facilities

Development within archaeological priority areas

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

Modernisation and improvement of industrial and business areas
Facilities for the recreational use of the canal

Development proposals adjacent to or affecting the Grand Union
Canal

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
Protection of trees and woodland - tree preservation orders

(2012) Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains
(2012) Flood Risk Management

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 114



LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted January 2010

LE1 Proposals for industry, warehousing and business development

LE2 Development in designated Industrial and Business Areas

LPP 1.1 (2016)Delivering the strategic vision and objectives for London

LPP 2.1 (2016) London in its global, European and United Kingdom context

LPP 2.13 (2016) Opportunity Areas and Intensification Areas

LPP 2.17 (2016) Strategic Industrial Locations

LPP 2.18 (2016) Green Infrastructure: the multi functional network of open and
green spaces

LPP 2.2 (2016) London and the wider metropolitan region

LPP 2.3 (2016) Growth Areas and Co-ordination Corridors

LPP 2.6 (2016) Outer London: vision and strategy

LPP 2.7 (2016) Outer London: Economy

LPP 2.8 (2016) Outer London: Transport

LPP 4.1 (2016) Developing London's economy

LPP 4.12 (2016) Improving opportunities for all

LPP 4.4 (2016) Managing Industrial Land and Premises

LPP 5.1 (2016) Climate Change Mitigation

LPP 5.10 (2016) Urban Greening

LPP 5.11 (2016) Green roofs and development site environs

LPP 5.12 (2016) Flood risk management

LPP 5.13 (2016) Sustainable drainage

LPP 5.14 (2016) Water quality and wastewater infrastructure

LPP 5.15 (2016) Water use and supplies

LPP 5.21 (2016) Contaminated land

LPP 5.3 (2016) Sustainable design and construction

LPP 5.7 (2016) Renewable energy

LPP 5.9 (2016) Overheating and cooling

LPP 6.1 (2016) Strategic Approach

LPP 6.10 (2016) Walking

LPP 6.12 (2016) Road Network Capacity

LPP 6.13 (2016) Parking

LPP 6.3 (2016) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity

LPP 6.4 (2016) Enhancing London's Transport Connectivity

LPP 6.9 (2016) Cycling

LPP 7.14 (2016) Improving air quality

LPP 7.16 (2016) Green Belt

LPP 7.18 (2016) Protecting open space and addressing deficiency

LPP 7.19 (2016) Biodiversity and access to nature

LPP 7.2 (2016) An inclusive environment

LPP 7.24 (2016) Blue Ribbon Network

LPP 7.28 (2016) Restoration of the Blue Ribbon Network

LPP 7.3 (2016) Designing out crime

LPP 7.30 (2016) London's canals and other rivers and waterspaces

LPP 7.4 (2016) Local character

LPP 7.5 (2016) Public realm

LPP 7.6 (2016) Architecture

LPP 8.2 (2016) Planning obligations

LPP 8.3 (2016) Community infrastructure levy

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 115



LPP 8.4 (2016) Monitoring and review

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF11 NPPF - Conserving & enhancing the natural environment

NPPF4 NPPF - Promoting sustainable transport

NPPF9 NPPF - Protecting Green Belt land

OEA1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation
measures

OES8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

OL5 Development proposals adjacent to the Green Belt

SPD-NO Noise Supplementary Planning Document, adopted April 2006

SPD-PO Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document, adopted
July 2008

SPG-AQ Air Quality Supplementary Planning Guidance, adopted May 2002

SPG-CS Community Safety by Design, Supplementary Planning Guidance,

adopted July 2004

3 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies. On the
8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils Local
Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies from the
old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of State in
September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for development control
decisions.

4

The applicant is advised that where the conditions requiring the submission of details have
been discharged in connection with the original permission, the Local Planning Authority
will not require these details to be resubmitted as part of this new planning permission
where those details would remain the same.

5 158 Opportunities for Work Experience

The developer is requested to maximise the opportunities to provide high quality work
experience for young people (particularly the 14 - 19 age group) from the London Borough
of Hillingdon, in such areas as bricklaying, plastering, painting and decorating, electrical
installation, carpentry and landscaping in conjunction with the Hillingdon Education and
Business Partnership.

Please contace: Mr Peter Sale, Chief Executive Officer, Hillingdon Training Ltd: contact
details - c/o Hillingdon Training Ltd, Unit A, Eagle Office Centre, The Runway, South
Ruislip, HA4 6SE Tel: 01895 671 976 email: petersale@hillingdontraining.co.uk

6 11 Building to Approved Drawing

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 116



requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

7 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between
the hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section
61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction
other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would
minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

8 12 Encroachment

You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches by either
its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning application will have to
be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a development that results in any
form of encroachment.

9 121 Street Naming and Numbering

All proposed new street names must be notified to and approved by the Council. Building
names and numbers, and proposed changes of street names must also be notified to the
Council. For further information and advice, contact - The Street Naming and Numbering
Officer, Planning & Community Services, 3 North Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8
TUW (Tel. 01895 250557).

10 13 Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at least
6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed plans
must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Planning & Community Services, Building Control, 3N/01
Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

1 145 Discharge of Conditions

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 117



Your attention is drawn to the pre-commencement conditions which must be discharged
prior to the commencement of works. You will be in breach of planning control should you
commence these works prior to the discharge of this/these condition(s). The Council may
consider taking enforcement action to rectify the breach of this condition(s). For further
information and advice contact - Planning & Community Services, Civic Centre, Uxbridge,
UB8 1UW (Tel: 01895 250230).

12 148 Refuse/Storage Areas

The proposed refuse and recycling storage areas meet the requirements of the Council's
amenity and accessibility standards only. It is worth drawing the applicants' attention to the
Waste Manager's advice, as follows:-

a) The proposal is for industrial units. The occupiers would have to make an arrangement
with a licensed waste carrier for the collection of the waste produced from the premises.

b) The area of the first unit is 18900 sgm. Based on BS 5906 guidance the estimated
waste generated would by 5 litre per 1 sqm equating to a total of 94,500 litres per week.
This would require 86 x 1,100 litre eurobins. It would be logical therefore to use a larger
container either a large front end loader type bin could be used - of the 12 cubic yard
capacity or a 40 cubic yard roll on roll off bin. The latter could be loaded through a
compactor to maximise use of the bin and reduced transport movements.

c) Recyclable waste should be separated; in particular glass, paper, cardboard, metal
cans, and plastic bottles. Some of the waste containers should be allocated to collect
recyclable items.

d) Arrangements should be made for the cleansing of the waste storage area with water
and disinfectant. A hose union tap should be installed for the water supply. Drainage
should be by means of trapped gully connected to the foul sewer. The floor of the bin store
area should have a suitable fall (no greater than 1:20) towards the drainage points.

d) The material used for the floor of the waste storage area must be able to withstand the
weight of the bulk bins. If the 40 cubic yard roll-on roll-off bin option is chosen, then 40
Newton metre concrete would be required to withstand regular bin movements. Ideally the
walls of the bin storage area should be made of a material that has a fire resistance of one
hour when tested in accordance with BS 472-61.

e) Vehicular access to the waste storage area should be suitable for a 32 tonne rigid
goods vehicle if 40 cubic yard bins are used for waste storage.

The proposed storage area must also comply with Part H of the Building Regulations.
Should design amendments be required to comply with Building Regulations, these
should be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. For further information
and advice contact - Planning & Community Services, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW
(Tel: 01895 250400).

13 149 Secured by Design

The Council has identified the specific security needs of the application site to be
protection and security of bicycles within the parking parking area of the site.

You are advised to submit details to overcome the specified security needs in order to
comply with condition 17 this planning permission.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 118



14

The applicant/developer should contact the Canal & River Trust's Third Party Works
Engineer with reference to the current Canal & River Trust Code of Practice for Works
affecting the Canal & River Trust to ensure that any necessary consents are obtained
(http://canalrivertrust.org.uk/about-us/for-businesses/undertaking-works-on-our-property)

15

The applicant/developer is advised that any encroachment or access onto the canal
towpath requires written consent from the Canal & River Trust, and they should contact
the Canal & River  Trust's Estates Surveyor, Jonathan Young
(jonathan.young@canalrivertrust.org.uk) regarding the required access agreement

16 160 Cranes

Given the nature of the proposed development it is possible that a crane may be required
during its construction. The applicant's attention is drawn to the requirement within the
British Standard Code of Practice for the safe use of Cranes, for crane operators to
consult the aerodrome before erecting a crane in close proximity to an aerodrome. This is
explained further in Advice Note 4, 'Cranes and Other Construction Issues' (available at
www.aoa.org.uk/publications/safeguarding.asp)

17

Wind Turbines can impact on the safe operation of aircraft through interference with
aviation radar and/or due to their height. Any proposal that incorporates wind turbines
must be assessed in more detail to determine the potential impacts on aviation interests.
This is explained further in Advice Note 7, Wind Turbines and Aviation (available at
http://www.aoa.org.uk/policy-safeguarding.htm).

18

You are encouraged to ensure that facilities are provided to enable the easy watering of
the planting and soft landscaped areas in the final landscaping details, and to ensure such
facilities maximise opportunities for the re-use of rainwater.

19

You are advised that no doors or gates should be installed which open out of the public
highways as these may contravene The Highways Act 1980 (as amended).

20

The air quality assessment refers to no mitigation being required except for the
construction phase of the development. It should be noted the development site is
surrounded by residential properties on three sides, including residential premises above
shops. It is recommended any condition with regard to the management of onsite
emissions during the construction phase refers to the GLA SPG on The Control of Dust
and Emissions During Construction and Demolition.

21

The Air Quality conditions relate to the operational phase of residential and commercial
development and is intended for the protection of future residents in a designated AQMA
and Smoke Control Area. Advice on the assessment of CHPs is available from EPUK at:
http://www.iagm.co.uk/text/guidance/epuk/chp_guidance.pdf. An area up to a distance of
10 times the appropriate stack height needs to be assessed. Guidance on air quality
neutral and CHP emission standards are available at:

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 119



https://www.london.gov.uk/priorities/planning/consultations/draft-sustainable-design-and-
construction. They should contact Planning Specialists if they have any queries.

22

The consultation documents indicate that this development includes an area of priority
habitat, as listed on Section 41 of the Natural Environmental and Rural Communities
(NERC) Act 2006. Natural England has published Standing Advice on protected species.
The Standing Advice should not be treated as giving any indication or providing any
assurance in respect of European Protected Species (EPS) that the proposed
development is unlikely to affect the EPS present on the site; nor should it be interpreted
as meaning that Natural England has reached any views as to whether a licence is
needed (which is the developer's responsibility) or may be granted.

If the applicant has any specific questions on aspects that are not covered by the Standing
Advice for European Protected Species or have difficulty in applying it to this application
please contact Natural England with details at consultations@naturalengland.org.uk.

23

The applicants attention is drawn to the fact that the Environment Agency should be
informed if contamination is identified that poses a significant risk to controlled waters.
The applicant should address risks to controlled waters from contamination at the site,
following the requirements of the National Planning Policy Framework and the
Environment Agency Guiding Principles for Land Contamination.

1. Following the risk management framework provide in CLR11, Model procedures for the
management of land contamination.
2. Referring to the Environment Agency guiding principles for land contamination and the
land contamination sections in the Environment Agency's Groundwater Protection:
Principles and Practice
3. Further information may be found on the land contamination technical guidance pages
on the direct.gov website
All investigations of land potentially affected by contamination should be carried out by or
under the direction of a suitably qualified competent person and in accordance with:

BS 10175:2011+A1:2013 Code of practice for the investigation of potentially
contaminated sites.
- BS ISO 5667-22:2010 Water quality. Sampling. Guidance on the design and installation
of groundwater monitoring points
- BS ISO 5667-18:2001, BS 6068-6.18:2001 Water quality. Sampling. Guidance on
sampling of groundwater at contaminated sites
The competent person would normally be expected to be chartered member of an
appropriate body (such as the Institution of Civil Engineers, Geological Society of London,
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors, Institution of Environmental Management) and
also have relevant experience of investigating contaminated sites.

The Environmental Permitting Regulations 2010 make it an offence to cause or knowingly
permit an activity that will result in the input of pollutants to surface water or groundwater,
unless authorised to do so by an environmental permit. This development may require an
environmental permit from us. The applicant is advised to telephone 03708 506 506, or
email enquiries@environment-agency.gov.uk to discuss the issues likely to be raised.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 120



3.1 Site and Locality

The site encompasses Phase 1 of an approved development consisting of two large
detached industrial buildings which are metal clad with shallow double arch roofing. Each
building is mainly single-storey although both have a two-storey flat roof section which
incorporates office space. The buildings are currently vacant and have been since the time
of completion in late 2016/early 2017. They are fitted with loading bays to the front which
open out onto a hard surfaced servicing yard. The yard areas are enclosed by a mix of
approximately 2 metre high wire mesh and timber close boarded fencing. There are
designated car parking areas adjacent to the side of each building. Car parking spaces
have been marked out and cycle parking facilities have also been installed. Landscape
planting has been provided within the cart parks and around the site perimeter.

The site levels fall from north to south, with the southernmost building being at a lower level
than the adjacent building.

The site is served by a road to which access is controlled by a manned barrier. On the
opposite side of the access road is undeveloped land which is allocated to Phase 2 of the
approved development, for which works have not yet commenced.

The site is located within the wider Stockley Park development which is characterised by
units of a variety of scales which accommodate office, commercial and industrial uses and
are set within a planned landscaped environment consisting of trees, hedging and
shrubbery, grass verging, topographical features such as grass banks and water features.
Surrounding buildings aren generally in industrial or commercial use although there is a
building used as a day nursery on Iron Bridge Road North, adjacent to the site to the east.
The nearest residential dwellings are on Horton Road, approximately 300 metres to the
west.

The Grand Union Canal and towpath is close by to the south of the site. It is approximately
4 metres below the level of the southern part of the site, which is positioned on a raised
grass embankment. A footpath passes along the top of the embankment, following the
course of the canal. The opposite bank of the canal is lined by industrial buildings behind
which runs the main railway line.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposal seeks to vary a number of conditions attached to the original approval in
order to allow the buildings to be occupied by a data centre use. The variations to
conditions will apply to Phase 1 of the development only and are as follows:-

Variation to condition 5: This relates to the approved drawing for the scheme;
Variation to condition 6: This relates to approved studies and documents;

These above variations are required to allow for the alteration in appearance and layout of
the building and the need for accompanying documents to reflect this.

Variation to condition 25: This is to allow for a mezzanine floor to be installed within both
buildings;

Variation to condition 27: This is to allow for the buildings to be used as a data centre
which, whilst classified as a B8 use is prohibited under the current condition.

A number of changes to the existing buildings, landscaping, yard area and boundary
treatment are proposed.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 121



The existing loading bays would be removed from the building and a two-storey gantry
structure would be attached to each building. These structures would provide space for
plant and machinery required for the operation of the data centre use. Across the full
development the plant provided would consist of 35 No. air cooled chillers, 35 No. auxiliary
generators and associated flues and ducting. The majority of the generators will be
positioned outside of the gantry, at ground level.

The gantry structure attached to unit 1 would project from the western elevation by 27
metres and extend along the full width of the building. Overall height would be
approximately 13.5 metres. The southern and western elevations will include louvre walls
whilst the northern elevation will be clad in materials to match the cladding used on the
existing building.

The gantry structure attached to unit 2 would also project 27 metres from the western
elevation. It would be approximately 112 metres in length, extending across the bulk of the
western elevation of the building but stopping short of the office area. This gantry would
also be approximately 13.5 metres in height with louvre walls. The southern elevation would
be screened by a living green wall which would reach the same height as the top of the
gantry.

Provision of mezzanine flooring within both buildings to allow for additional space for the
siting of data centre equipment.

Provision of two electric substations, one in the north west corner of the site and one in the
south west.

Provision of new hard and soft landscaping including an approximately 13.5 metre high
living green wall, 1.5 metre high mesh fencing to the edge of car parking areas in place of
the existing post and rail fencing, 4 metre high timber close board fencing adjacent to the
proposed substation buildings and 3 metre high mesh security fencing following the
general line of existing mesh fencing on the site perimeter but also included to the rear of
each building.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

37977/APP/2015/1004 Phase 3 Stockley Park Stockley Road West Drayton Middlesex

Hybrid Application for the phased comprehensive redevelopment of the site to provide an overa
maximum gross floorspace of 45,000sgm of light industrial uses (Use Class B1c and/or Use
Class B2) and/or storage and distribution uses (Use Class B8) and ancillary offices, together wit
servicing, parking, access roads and open space. Full planning permission is sought for Phase
containing 18,900sqgm of floorspace in two buildings up to 16.2 metres in height (to ridge),
together with associated highways works, open space, hard and soft landscaping, car parking
and associated infrastructure. Outline planning permission is sought for Phase 2 for up to
26,100sgm of floorspace with all matters, except for access, reserved for later determination

Decision: 09-09-2015  Approved

37977/APP/2016/1078 Stockley Park Phase 3 Iron Bridge Road West Drayton

Application for a Non Material Amendment (NMA) to planning permission 37977/APP/2015/100«
(Hybrid Application for the phased comprehensive redevelopment of the site to provide an overe
maximum gross floorspace of 45,000 sgm of light industrial uses (Use Class B1c and/or Use
Class B2) and/or storage and distribution uses (Use Class B8) and ancillary offices, together wit
servicing, parking,access roads and open space) for administrative changes to wording of

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 122



condition 5 (Drawing Nos)

Decision: 04-05-2016  Approved

37977/APP/2016/2263 Stockley Park Phase 3 Iron Bridge Road West Drayton

Land formation, landscaping, fencing and provision of ancillary footpaths and bridleways togethe
with ancillary works to the offsite land parcels (Land Parcel A (10.67 hectares) - Land bounded |
Stockley Road and B465 to the west, Goulds Green to the south and the residential area of
Goulds Green to the east; Land Parcel B1 (0.52 hectares) - Land to the south of Park View Roa
and to the east of the residential area of Yiewsley; Land Parcel B2 (0.60 hectares) - Land to the
east of Willow Avenue and Chestnut Avenue; Land Parcel C1 (1.19 hectares) - Land to the wes'
Bolingbroke Way and south of Dawley Road and bound by Stockley Park Golf Club to the west;
Land Parcel C2 (0.53 hectares) - Land to the west of Bolingbroke Way and bound by Stockley
Park Golf Club to the west (No works are sought to Land Parcel C2); Packet Boat Lane (2.83
hectares) - Land to the north of Packet Boat Lane, to the east of Old Mill Lane and Fray's River
and to the east of Cowley Lake) associated with the approved development at Phase 3 Stockley
Park (Planning permission ref. 37977/APP/2015/1004 dated 14/12/2014)

Decision: 21-02-2017  Approved

37977/APP/2016/240 Stockley Park Phase 3 Iron Bridge Road West Drayton

Details pursuant to condition 8 (ground levels) of planning permission reference
37977/APP/2015/1004 (Hybrid Application for the phased comprehensive redevelopment of the
site to provide an overall maximum gross floorspace of 45,000sqm of light industrial uses (Use
Class B1c and/or Use Class B2) and/or storage and distribution uses (Use Class B8) and
ancillary offices, together with servicing, parking, access roads and open space. Full planning
permission is sought for Phase 1 containing 18,900sgm of floorspace in two buildings up to 16.2
metres in height (to ridge), together with associated highways works, open space, hard and soft
landscaping, car parking and associated infrastructure. Outline planning permission is sought fo
Phase 2 for up to 26,100sgm of floorspace with all matters except for access, reserved for later
determination)

Decision: 16-03-2016  Approved

37977/APP/2016/242 Stockley Park Phase 3 Iron Bridge Road West Drayton

Partial submission of details pursuant to condition 12 (bird hazard management plan) for Phase
only of planning permission reference 37977/APP/2015/1004 (Hybrid Application for the phased
comprehensive redevelopment of the site to provide an overall maximum gross floorspace of
45,000sgm of light industrial uses (Use Class B1c and/or Use Class B2) and/or storage and
distribution uses (Use Class B8) and ancillary offices, together with servicing, parking, access
roads and open space. Full planning permission is sought for Phase 1 containing 18,900sgm of
floorspace in two buildings up to 16.2 metres in height (to ridge), together with associated
highways works, open space, hard and soft landscaping, car parking and associated
infrastructure. Outline planning permission is sought for Phase 2 for up to 26,100sgm of
floorspace with all matters except for access, reserved for later determination)

Decision: 10-05-2016  Approved

37977/APP/2016/243 Stockley Park Phase 3 Iron Bridge Road West Drayton

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 123



Partial submission of details pursuant to condition 13 (Ecological Enhancement) for Phase 1 onl
of planning permission reference 37977/APP/2015/1004 (Hybrid Application for the phased
comprehensive redevelopment of the site to provide an overall maximum gross floorspace of
45,000sgm of light industrial uses (Use Class B1c and/or Use Class B2) and/or storage and
distribution uses (Use Class B8) and ancillary offices, together with servicing, parking, access
roads and open space. Full planning permission is sought for Phase 1 containing 18,900sqm of
floorspace in two buildings up to 16.2 metres in height (to ridge), together with associated
highways works, open space, hard and soft landscaping, car parking and associated
infrastructure. Outline planning permission is sought for Phase 2 for up to 26,100sgm of
floorspace with all matters except for access, reserved for later determination).

Decision: 04-05-2016  Approved

37977/APP/2016/244 Stockley Park Phase 3 Iron Bridge Road West Drayton

Partial submission of details pursuant to Part (i) of Condition 22 (contamination) for Phase 1 onl'
of planning permission reference 37977/APP/2015/1004 (Hybrid Application for the phased
comprehensive redevelopment of the site to provide an overall maximum gross floorspace of
45,000sgm of light industrial uses (Use Class B1c and/or Use Class B2) and/or storage and
distribution uses (Use Class B8) and ancillary offices, together with servicing, parking, access
roads and open space. Full planning permission is sought for Phase 1 containing 18,900sgm of
floorspace in two buildings up to 16.2 metres in height (to ridge), together with associated
highways works, open space, hard and soft landscaping, car parking and associated
infrastructure. Outline planning permission is sought for Phase 2 for up to 26,100sgm of
floorspace with all matters except for access, reserved for later determination)

Decision: 20-06-2016  Approved

37977/APP/2016/245 Stockley Park Phase 3 Iron Bridge Road West Drayton

Details pursuant to condition 23 (Sustainable Water Management Scheme) for Phase 1 only of
planning permission reference 37977/APP/2015/1004 (Hybrid Application for the phased
comprehensive redevelopment of the site to provide an overall maximum gross floorspace of
45,000sgm of light industrial uses (Use Class B1c and/or Use Class B2) and/or storage and
distribution uses (Use Class B8) and ancillary offices, together with servicing, parking, access
roads and open space. Full planning permission is sought for Phase 1 containing 18,900sgm of
floorspace in two buildings up to 16.2 metres in height (to ridge), together with associated
highways works, open space, hard and soft landscaping, car parking and associated
infrastructure. Outline planning permission is sought for Phase 2 for up to 26,100sgm of
floorspace with all matters except for access, reserved for later determination)

Decision: 14-07-2016  Approved

37977/APP/2016/246 Stockley Park Phase 3 Iron Bridge Road West Drayton

Partial submission of details pursuant to condition 20 (Energy Assessment) for Phase 1 only of
planning permission reference 37977/APP/2015/1004 (Hybrid Application for the phased
comprehensive redevelopment of the site to provide an overall maximum gross floorspace of
45,000sgm of light industrial uses (Use Class B1c and/or Use Class B2) and/or storage and
distribution uses (Use Class B8) and ancillary offices, together with servicing, parking, access
roads and open space. Full planning permission is sought for Phase 1 containing 18,900sgm of
floorspace in two buildings up to 16.2 metres in height (to ridge), together with associated
highways works, open space, hard and soft landscaping, car parking and associated

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 124



infrastructure. Outline planning permission is sought for Phase 2 for up to 26,100sgm of
floorspace with all matters except for access, reserved for later determination)

Decision: 30-11-2016  Approved

37977/APP/2016/247 Stockley Park Phase 3 Iron Bridge Road West Drayton

Partial submission of details pursuant to condition 9 (landscaping scheme) for phase 1 only of
planning permission ref. 37977/APP/2015/1004 dated 14-12-2015 (Hybrid Application for the
phased comprehensive redevelopment of the site to provide an overall maximum gross floorspa
of 45,000sgm of light industrial uses (Use Class B1c and/or Use Class B2) and/or storage and
distribution uses (Use Class B8) and ancillary offices, together with servicing, parking, access
roads and open space. Full planning permission is sought for Phase 1 containing 18,900sgm of
floorspace in two buildings up to 16.2 metres in height (to ridge), together with associated
highways works, open space, hard and soft landscaping, car parking and associated
infrastructure. Outline planning permission is sought for Phase 2 for up to 26,100sgm of
floorspace with all matters, except for access, reserved for later determination).

Decision: 29-09-2016  Approved

37977/APP/2017/1551 Stockley Park Phase 3 Iron Bridge Road West Drayton

Details pursuant to condition 22(iii) (Contamination) for Phase 1 only of planning permission ref:
37977/APP/2015/1004 dated 09-09-2015 (Hybrid Application for the phased comprehensive
redevelopment of the site to provide an overall maximum gross floorspace of 45,000sgm of light
industrial uses (Use Class B1c and/or Use Class B2) and/or storage and distribution uses (Use
Class B8) and ancillary offices, together with servicing, parking, access roads and open space.
Full planning permission is sought for Phase 1 containing 18,900sgm of floorspace in two
buildings up to 16.2 metres in height (to ridge), together with associated highways works, open
space, hard and soft landscaping, car parking and associated infrastructure. Outline planning
permission is sought for Phase 2 for up to 26,100sgqm of floorspace with all matters, except for
access, reserved for later determination)

Decision: 05-07-2017  Approved

37977/APP/2017/244 Stockley Park Phase 3 Iron Bridge Road West Drayton

Submission of details pursuant to condition 15 (Floodlighting) of planning permission ref.
37977/APP/2015/1004, dated 09-09-15 (Hybrid Application for the phased comprehensive
redevelopment of the site to provide an overall maximum gross floorspace of 45,000sgm of light
industrial uses (Use Class B1c and/or Use Class B2) and/or storage and distribution uses (Use
Class B8) and ancillary offices, together with servicing, parking, access roads and open space.
Full planning permission is sought for Phase 1 containing 18,900sgm of floorspace in two
buildings up to 16.2 metres in height (to ridge), together with associated highways works, open
space, hard and soft landscaping, car parking and associated infrastructure. Outline planning
permission is sought for Phase 2 for up to 26,100sgm of floorspace with all matters, except for
access, reserved for later determination)

Decision: 23-03-2017  Approved
37977/APP/2017/343 Stockley Park Phase 3 Iron Bridge Road West Drayton
Submission of details pursuant to condition 18 (Canalside Risk Assessment and Method

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 125



Statement (Phases 1 & 2)) of planning permission ref. 37977/APP/2015/1004, dated 09-09-15
(Hybrid Application for the phased comprehensive redevelopment of the site to provide an overz
maximum gross floorspace of 45,000sgm of light industrial uses (Use Class B1c and/or Use
Class B2) and/or storage and distribution uses (Use Class B8) and ancillary offices, together wit
servicing, parking, access roads and open space. Full planning permission is sought for Phase
containing 18,900sgm of floorspace in two buildings up to 16.2 metres in height (to ridge),
together with associated highways works, open space, hard and soft landscaping, car parking
and associated infrastructure. Outline planning permission is sought for Phase 2 for up to
26,100sgm of floorspace with all matters, except for access, reserved for later determination)

Decision: 27-03-2017  Approved

37977/APP/2017/344 Stockley Park Phase 3 Iron Bridge Road West Drayton

Submission of details pursuant to condition 21 (Secured By Design - Phases 1 & 2) of planning
permission ref. 37977/APP/2015/1004, dated 09-09-15 (Hybrid Application for the phased
comprehensive redevelopment of the site to provide an overall maximum gross floorspace of
45,000sgm of light industrial uses (Use Class B1c and/or Use Class B2) and/or storage and
distribution uses (Use Class B8) and ancillary offices, together with servicing, parking, access
roads and open space. Full planning permission is sought for Phase 1 containing 18,900sgm of
floorspace in two buildings up to 16.2 metres in height (to ridge), together with associated
highways works, open space, hard and soft landscaping, car parking and associated
infrastructure. Outline planning permission is sought for Phase 2 for up to 26,100sgm of
floorspace with all matters, except for access, reserved for later determination)

Decision: 27-03-2017  Approved

37977/APP/2017/345 Stockley Park Phase 3 Iron Bridge Road West Drayton

Submission of details pursuant to condition 19 (Canalside Water Run-off and Ground Water
Drainage - Phases 1 & 2) of planning permission ref. 37977/APP/2015/1004, dated 09-09-15
(Hybrid Application for the phased comprehensive redevelopment of the site to provide an overe
maximum gross floorspace of 45,000sqm of light industrial uses (Use Class B1c and/or Use
Class B2) and/or storage and distribution uses (Use Class B8) and ancillary offices, together wit
servicing, parking, access roads and open space. Full planning permission is sought for Phase -
containing 18,900sgm of floorspace in two buildings up to 16.2 metres in height (to ridge),
together with associated highways works, open space, hard and soft landscaping, car parking
and associated infrastructure. Outline planning permission is sought for Phase 2 for up to
26,100sgm of floorspace with all matters, except for access, reserved for later determination)

Decision: 23-03-2017  Approved

Comment on Relevant Planning History

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 126



The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

PT1.CI1 (2012) Community Infrastructure Provision

PT1.CI2 (2012) Leisure and Recreation

PT1.E1 (2012) Managing the Supply of Employment Land

PT1.E3 (2012) Strategy for Heathrow Opportunity Area

PT1.EM1 (2012) Climate Change Adaptation and Mitigation

PT1.EM2 (2012) Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains

PT1.EM3 (2012) Blue Ribbon Network

PT1.EM4 (2012) Open Space and Informal Recreation

Part 2 Policies:

AM10 Incorporation in new developments of additions to the proposed cycle network

AM11 Improvement in facilities and promotion of safety and security at bus and rail
interchanges; use of planning agreements to secure improvement in public
transport services

AM13 AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people and people witt
disabilities in development schemes through (where appropriate): -
(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services
(i) Shopmobility schemes
(iii) Convenient parking spaces
(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street furniture schemes

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

AM15 Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM8 Priority consideration to pedestrians in the design and implementation of road
construction and traffic management schemes

AM9 Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of highway
improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking facilities

BE1 Development within archaeological priority areas

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE18 Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 127



BE25 Modernisation and improvement of industrial and business areas

BE31 Facilities for the recreational use of the canal

BE32 Development proposals adjacent to or affecting the Grand Union Canal

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

BE39 Protection of trees and woodland - tree preservation orders

EM2 (2012) Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains

EM6 (2012) Flood Risk Management

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010

LE1 Proposals for industry, warehousing and business development

LE2 Development in designated Industrial and Business Areas

LPP 1.1 (2016)Delivering the strategic vision and objectives for London

LPP 2.1 (2016) London in its global, European and United Kingdom context

LPP 2.13 (2016) Opportunity Areas and Intensification Areas
LPP 2.17 (2016) Strategic Industrial Locations

LPP 2.18 (2016) Green Infrastructure: the multi functional network of open and green spaces
LPP 2.2 (2016) London and the wider metropolitan region
LPP 2.3 (2016) Growth Areas and Co-ordination Corridors
LPP 2.6 (2016) Outer London: vision and strategy

LPP 2.7 (2016) Outer London: Economy

LPP 2.8 (2016) Outer London: Transport

LPP 4.1 (2016) Developing London's economy

LPP 4.12 (2016) Improving opportunities for all

LPP 4.4 (2016) Managing Industrial Land and Premises
LPP 5.1 (2016) Climate Change Mitigation

LPP 5.10 (2016) Urban Greening

LPP 5.11 (2016) Green roofs and development site environs

LPP 5.12 (2016) Flood risk management

LPP 5.13 (2016) Sustainable drainage

LPP 5.14 (2016) Water quality and wastewater infrastructure
LPP 5.15 (2016) Water use and supplies

LPP 5.21 (2016) Contaminated land

LPP 5.3 (2016) Sustainable design and construction
LPP 5.7 (2016) Renewable energy

LPP 5.9 (2016) Overheating and cooling

LPP 6.1 (2016) Strategic Approach

LPP 6.10 (2016) Walking
LPP 6.12 (2016) Road Network Capacity

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 128



LPP 6.13 (2016) Parking

LPP 6.3 (2016) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity

LPP 6.4 (2016) Enhancing London's Transport Connectivity

LPP 6.9 (2016) Cycling

LPP 7.14 (2016) Improving air quality

LPP 7.16 (2016) Green Belt

LPP 7.18 (2016) Protecting open space and addressing deficiency

LPP 7.19 (2016) Biodiversity and access to nature

LPP 7.2 (2016) An inclusive environment

LPP 7.24 (2016) Blue Ribbon Network

LPP 7.28 (2016) Restoration of the Blue Ribbon Network

LPP 7.3 (2016) Designing out crime

LPP 7.30 (2016) London's canals and other rivers and waterspaces

LPP 7.4 (2016) Local character

LPP 7.5 (2016) Public realm

LPP 7.6 (2016) Architecture

LPP 8.2 (2016) Planning obligations

LPP 8.3 (2016) Community infrastructure levy

LPP 8.4 (2016) Monitoring and review

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF11 NPPF - Conserving & enhancing the natural environment

NPPF4 NPPF - Promoting sustainable transport

NPPF9 NPPF - Protecting Green Belt land

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures

OES8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

OoL5 Development proposals adjacent to the Green Belt

SPD-NO Noise Supplementary Planning Document, adopted April 2006

SPD-PO Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2008

SPG-AQ Air Quality Supplementary Planning Guidance, adopted May 2002

SPG-CS Community Safety by Design, Supplementary Planning Guidance, adopted July
2004

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 8th June 2017
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 129



6. Consultations
External Consultees
GREATER LONDON AUTHORITY (GLA):

| have assessed the details of the application and, given the scale and nature of the proposals,
conclude that the amendments do not give rise to any new strategic planning issues.

Therefore, under article 5(2) of the above Order the Mayor of London does not need to be consulted
further on this application. Your Council may, therefore, proceed to determine the application without
further reference to the GLA.

TRANSPORT FOR LONDON (TFL):

It is understood from the transport statement that the proposed data centre would generate up to 26
two- way
vehicular trips during both of the AM and PM peaks therefore TfL has No objection.

Having said that, it is noted that the original proposal comprises of 100 car parking spaces, TfL
therefore asks the

applicant to make reduction given the demand of the data centre would be significantly less than the
original

proposal.

OFFICER COMMENT: The parking spaces have already been provided as required by condition of
the original application. Removing spaces would not be practical and would also restrict the flexibility
of the future use of the site.

CANAL & RIVER TRUST:

The Trust is keen to ensure that the proposed development protects, and if possible enhances, the
character of the waterway corridor in this location. We believe that this is consistent with the need to
achieve high quality public realm in policy BE1 of the Council's Local Plan.

We seek clarification on whether the applicant proposes a 3m security fence to the south of unit 2
(as shown on the plan marked "Landscape Details 2 - Unit 2") or a 1.5m fence (as shown on the
Proposed Site Plan and plan marked "Unit 2 - Ground Floor Proposed").

In addition, we consider that the applicant should provide further details of the type of fence
proposed, beyond the simple description of a "mesh fence".

Whilst we would want to reserve our position until the clarification / further details that we have
requested are made available, we believe that planting in front of the proposed fence to the south of
the site could help to screen it and soften the impact when viewed from the canal corridor and
adjacent public realm.

The submitted Location Plan shows land within the Canal & River Trust's ownership within the red
line boundary. However, it appears that the applicant does not propose any development on this
land.

OFFICER COMMENT: Revised plans clarifying fence height are to be submitted by the applicant in

due course. The mesh fencing will be similar in appearance to the current fencing and a condition
will be attached requiring final design and colour to be submitted to the Council and approved prior to

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 130



construction. Additional planting adjacent to the fencing forms part of the proposed landscaping
scheme.

HEATHROW AERODROME SAFEGUARDING:

We have now assessed the application against safeguarding criteria and can confirm that we have
no safeguarding objections to the proposed development. However, we would like to make the
following observations:

Heathrow would expect that the previous conditions made against this application would remain.

Given the nature of the proposed development it is possible that a crane may be required during its
construction. We would, therefore, draw the applicants attention to the requirement within the British
Standard Code of Practice for the safe use of Cranes, for crane operators to consult the aerodrome
before erecting a crane in close proximity to an aerodrome.

OFFICER COMMENT: Previous conditions will be carried over to any approval. An informative
regarding crane operation will be attached.

NATURAL ENGLAND:

Natural England currently has no comment to make.

Internal Consultees
SUSTAINABILITY OFFICER:

The provided information is satisfactory and | consider the applicant to be doing as much as is
expected under planning policy requirements.

| have no objections to the proposed development but would request that the applicant be required to
monitor the energy usage and carbon footprint and submit an annual report to the Local Authority to
ensure the development is doing what is claimed it will do.

TREES & LANDSCAPE OFFICER:

The S.73 variation involves amendments to the landscape treatment of the northern and southern
boundary of the loading areas /vehicle yard and the need for additional site security fencing.

NORTHERN YARD BOUNDARY A 4 metre high close board fence is proposed to provide additional
security and block views of unsightly plant. A system of cables will be used to provide initial support
for the climbing plants which will be grown over the fence with the intention of softening the
appearance of this boundary. Plants will be selected which are suitable for a north face with a mix of
evergreen and deciduous species. No objection.

SOUTHERN BOUNDARY Minor amendments to the car park / cycle store are proposed with
additional climbing plants and 5 No Betula utilis (birch) specimens (30-35cm girth / 7.0 metres high.
At a higher level, a bespoke green wall system by ANS (or similar) will screen the external racking
systems of plant and generators. The parameters for the plant selection have been considered to
reduce the risk of bird nesting and feeding opportunities (airport-related bird strike avoidance) and
cope with the challenge of a south-facing wall. It is possible that an alternative green wall company
will be offered by the contractor and final details of the wall type and species selection will follow by
condition. No objection.

SECURITY FENCING The existing perimeter fencing is to be removed and replaced with a higher

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 131



welded mesh fence, finished in grey. Additional fencing between the buildings and around the
eastern side of the buildings is required to secure the site and reduce the risk of unauthorised
incursion into the site. No objection.

RECOMMENDATIONS No objection subject to the final specification of the green wall and all
planting mixes and long-term management and maintenance of the planting. The green wall
installation should be complete prior to practical completion of the building. Conditions COM8, COM9
(parts 1,2,3,4 and 5) and COM10 should cover the above issues.

AIR QUALITY OFFICER:

For this particular application, given the size of the proposed development and the number of backup
units required to meet the full backup energy supply plus the proximity of sensitive receptors of the
application site we will require a detailed air quality assessment to support the planning application.

FLOOD & WATER MANAGEMENT:

Documents appears to contain contradictory information detailing different height security fencing
between 1.5 m and 3m along the car parking.

OFFICER COMMENT: This is to be addressed on revised plans that will be submitted in due
course.

WASTE STRATEGY:

The proposal is for a large commercial office building. As the waste is from a commercial premise
the site operators have a Duty of Care to contain the waste safely until it is collected by a licensed
waste carrier.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION UNIT (NOISE):

The report suggests they will be able to design the plant noise to be at least 5dB below background
sound level. | would suggest a condition requiring a post completion test to demonstrate the plant
noise level will be at least 5dB below the background sound level at the nearest sensitive receptor.

URBAN DESIGN:

The proposed additions need to reflect something of the appearance of the original structures to
avoid looking rather like ad hoc add ons. It is suggested that:

The north and south elevation of the gantry screens are curved to reflect the roof form of the existing
buildings. They could be curved to one side to drop below the eaves of the building if it is not
possible to drop on both sides.

That the screens have vertical louvres, or angled fins, that would give more interest to the long west
elevations. An alternative would be to use a metal mesh covering with an interesting punched pattern
and varied depth.

The 3m security fence on the site boundary would need to be carefully detailed and should include
planting to soften its appearance and also to help screen the low level generators.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 132



7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

The site is located within the Stockley Park Industrial and Business Area (IBA) which is
itself part of the wider Heathrow Opportunity Area. Policy LE 2 of the Local Plan seeks to
preserve the vitality of IBA's by maintaining a presumption against development that does
not fall within a B1 - B8 use or a sui generis use that is compatible with industrial
development.

The proposed variation to allow for the buildings to be used as a data centre will not lead to
a conflict with Policy LE 2 as a data centre is designated as a B8 use. It is also noted that
Strategic Policy E 2 recognises Stockley Park as a cluster site for IT industries and it is
considered that the proposed use as a data centre is compatible with this trend and will
strengthen the existing cluster and support growth within the Heathrow Opportunity Area, in
accordance with the aims and objectives of Sreategic Policy E 3.

Para. 21 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) also states that planning
authorities should plan positively for the location, promotion and expansion of clusters or
networks of knowledge driven, creative or high technology industries.

The application was referred to the Greater London Authority under Categories 1B and 3D
of the Town & Country Planning (Mayor of London) Order 2008. A response was received
confirming that the Mayor of London did not need to be consulted further on the application
and that the Council may, therefore, proceed to determine the application without further
reference to the GLA.

The original application included a condition (No. 27) precluding the use of any buildings as
data centres. The single reason stated for this was due to the energy demands of data
centres. The application was for a large development consisting of a number of buildings
whilst the current application seeks to use only part of the overall development for data
centre use. As such, it is considered that there are reasonable grounds to allow for data
centre usage for part of the overall development. Energy matters are discussed in more
depth in section 7.16 of this report.

Density of the proposed development

Not applicable to the proposed development.
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not applicable to the proposed development.
Airport safeguarding

The application has been assessed by Heathrow Aerodrome Safeguarding who have
raised no objections subject to the conditions attached to the original approval being carried
over. These relate to the use of cranes during construction as well as the choice of plants
used in site landscaping which will need to avoid the use of berries that may attract large
flocks of birds.

Impact on the green belt

The site is at the southern end of a wedge of green belt land maintained between Yiewsley
and Hayes but does not fall within the green belt itself. The green belt land immediately to
the west already benefits from outline permission for further industrial development whilst
the green belt land to the north is occupied by a golf course.

The proposal will involve the addition of a two tiered gantry to both buildings. However, it is
not considered that this will be detrimental towards the surrounding green built area as
views its appearance will be softened by screening including an approximately 13.5 metre
high living green wall and the additional structures will be located directly adjacent to
established buildings so as not to appear isolated and visually obstructive.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 133



It is therefore considered that the proposed development is an accordance with Local Plan
Policy OL 5.
7.06 Environmental Impact

Please see section 7.18 of this report.
7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The gantry structures will occupy a large proportion of the existing service yard area
associated with each building. It should be noted that the yard areas would be expected to
be used for storage purposes for other industrial uses that could occupy the buildings. The
gantry structure is sizeable and, as such, it is imperative that effective screening is used to
soften its visual impact. The screening required will, itself, be substantial and, therefore, it
is also important that the appearance of the screening is compatible with the surrounding
environment.

The screening of the gantry involves the installation of an approximately 13.5 metre high
living green wall which will entirely screen the gantry from view from the banks of the Grand
Union Canal to the south. It is considered that a green wall of this scale represents an
innovative feature that compliments both the modernity of Stockley Park as well as the
comprehensive landscaping scheme that is a distinctive and valuable feature of the
surrounding environment.

The other side of the gantry will be screened by extending out the cladding of the existing
building, ensuring a visually consistent appearance whilst views to the front will be in the
context with the main buildings behind and, due to the open nature of the front of the gantry,
it is not considered that this view will be substantially altered as a result.

The proposed electricity substations to the front of the site are single-storey structures but
will, nevertheless, have a visible presence within the street scene. Details of the final
design of the substations are not available at this stage as this is subject to discussions
with the Distribution Network Operator (DNO). As such, a condition will be attached to any
approval granted which will require submission of design details for the substation
buildings, to include the use of sympathetic external materials, prior to development
commencing.

The proposed main security fencing would be in similarly positioned to the existing fencing
and the proposed increase in height is not excessive. The fencing along the car park
boundaries, particularly alongside the banks of the canal adjacent to unit 2, should be
minimal in height and, given its proximity to the public realm and the wider blue ribbon
network, it is considered that further details of this fencing should be submitted to, and
approved, by the Local Planning Authority prior to occupation of the buildings.

The gantry structures will be attached to the existing buildings and the roof top height will
match the eaves height of the buildings whilst the footprint will not be as large as that of
each building. As such, it is considered that, whilst large, the gantry structures will appear
visually subservient towards the existing building. In order to ensure that the appearance of
the structures is acceptable, a condition requiring further details of the design and
appearance of the louvre walls and cladding will be attached to any approval.

It is therefore considered that the proposed development would be in accordance with
Policies BE 13, BE 15, BE 25, BE 31 and BE 32 of the Local Plan and Policies 7.4, 7.6,
7.24,7.28 and 7.30 of the London Plan.

7.08 Impact on neighbours

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 134



There are no residential buildings within the immediate vicinity of the site and the vacant
land opposite is to be developed for industrial use. Surrounding buildings are generally in
industrial or office use although there is a day nursery close to the east of the site.

The proposed gantry will be site on the western elevation of the buildings and will not
border any neighbouring buildings. They will be screened from view from buildings on Iron
Bridge North Road, to the west of the site, by the existing buildings which are greater in
height than the gantry structures. It is therefore considered that the proposed additions
would not appear overbearing towards neighbouring buildings or cause undue levels of
overshadowing or overlooking.

The data centre use requires externally site plant, which will be mounted on both tiers of
the proposed gantry structures. This will include chiller units that will operate in order to
mitigate against the heat generated by operating machinery within the building. Back up
generators are also required to power the data centres in the event of mains power failure.
Further generators are also required to be held in reserve should any of the other
generators fail. This plant will result in the generation of noise and air emissions which
could impact upon the occupants of neighbouring buildings as well as members of the
public using the canal side footpath.

The back up generators require maintenance and testing at times to ensure they are in
operational condition. Para. 3.3 of the accompanying External Plant Assessment states
that testing will be restricted to a maximum frequency of once per month for a period of no
more than one hour between 09.00 and 17.00 Monday - Friday (not including bank
holidays). It is considered that this will prevent frequent and sustained noise generation as
a result of testing.

The proposed use will not result in any intensification in projected trips to and from the
building by staff and visitors and the level of HGV traffic will be below that expected for the
majority of industrial uses.

It is therefore considered that the proposed development would be in accordance with
Policies BE 20, BE 21, BE 24 and OE 1 of the Local Plan and London Plan Policies 7.4
and 7.6.

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

The proposed gantries will be sited away from the windows serving the office space within
the buildings and will be positioned to the north of the office space so as not to cause
restrict the permeation of natural light into the office space.

Acoustic screening and other noise prevention measures will ensure that occupants of the
office are not subject to unacceptable noise whilst stack heights for generators will prevent
air quality issues within the building.

The proposed development therefore complies with Local Plan Policy BE 20.
7.10 Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The proposed gantry structures will be positioned within the yard areas allocated to each
building and, as such, would not result in the loss of any car parking spaces, of which there
are 141 shared between the two buildings.

In any case, the existing number of parking spaces provided are in excess of that which

would be required for data centre use. This has been noted by Transport for London (TFL)
who have raised no objections to the proposed development. TFL commented that there is

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 135



an oversupply of parking but these spaces have already been surfaced and laid out and it
would not be practical to remove any. Further, the removal of car parking spaces would
potentially prevent other industrial uses from occupying the site in the future.

It is therefore considered that the proposed development is in accordance with Policies AM
7 and AM 14 of the Local Plan and Policy 6.13 of the London Plan.
7.11 Urban design, access and security

The security of the site would be strengthened by additional fencing that would largely be in
a similar position to the existing fencing. The access road serving the site is also controlled
by a manned barrier. The external works will not result in the formation of any secluded
spaces that may attract anti-social activity.

Secured by Design details were also submitted to the Council and approved under
application 37977/APP/2017/344, in accordance with Condition 21 of the original approval.

It is therefore considered that the proposed development accords with Local Plan Policy
BE 18 and London Plan Policy 7.13.
7.12 Disabled access

The original approval included a condition (16) requiring the following accessibility criteria to
be met for each phase of the development:-

(i) External areas, including landscaped areas are designed to be inclusive with any gravel
surface to be smooth and resin bonded, and should otherwise meet the specifications
prescribed in BS 8300:2009.

(i) All areas to which the public have access are designed to achieve a gradient no steeper
than 1:18 with handrails and a level landing provided at every 8 metres of ramp flight,

(iii) Level access is provided to all buildings

(iv) Building entrances (including level approaches, signposting, types and dimensions of
door width and lobby openings) meet the needs of disabled persons,

(v) All buildings, including their approach, are designed in accordance with BS 8300:2009

The existing buildings were constructed in accordance with approved details and the
proposed works will not compromise any of the approved access measures.

It is therefore considered that the proposed development complies with London Plan Policy
7.2.
7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not relevant to this application.
7.14 Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Stockley Park is valued for its high quality landscaping and, as such, it is critical that these
standards are maintained for any landscaping of the site. The proposed green wall is
considered to be an innovative feature that reflects the overall modern and verdant nature
of Stockley Park. The green wall also provides a level of screening that is considered to be
vital due to the degree to which it will soften the appearance of the proposed gantry
structures.

Further landscaping is proposed around the replacement and additional fencing that will be

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 136



provided around the site perimeter and also around the yard areas. This involves planting
that will augment with existing landscaping to produce a high quality green environment.
Climbing species that will use the proposed new fencing for support will be included and
will help reduce the visual impact of the fencing.

No major digging is required for the installation of the new fencing and its positioning will not
compromise or remove any of the existing site landscaping that is in place. A condition will
be attached requiring details of landscaping protection methods to be adopted during
construction to be submitted to the Council for approval prior to development commencing.

It is therefore considered that the proposed development complies with Local Plan Policies
BE 38 and BE 39 and London Plan Policies 5.10 and 5.11.
7.15 Sustainable waste management

It is not considered that the proposed use will generate waste of a volume or nature that
would require special waste management considerations.
7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability

Submitted details of energy consumption and carbon emission rates demonstrate that the
development would accommodate a 45% annual CO? reduction in regulated energy loads,
therefore meeting flat rate carbon saving requirements of 35% as set out in para. 2.4.3 of
the London Plan Sustainable Design and Construction SPG and London Plan Policy 5.2.

Savings in unregulated energy use will also be achieved at a projected level of 26.29%
through the use of energy saving features including free Cooling Chillers, variable speed
fan Computer Room Air Conditioners (CRAC), variable speed pumps, hot aisle
containment, energy efficient lighting, low loss transformers and UPS (battery power
supply) systems.

Existing air source heat pumps and roof mounted solar panels will serve the office and
support areas of the buildings. These features were installed to comply with condition 20 of
the original approval, to the details specified in documents submitted as application
37977/APP/2016/246 and will be retained for use.

717 Flooding or Drainage Issues

The gantry will be located over an existing hard surfaced area and does not include any
roofing that could lead to an increase in run off or a build up in storage of surface water.
The existing drainage and surface water management arrangements, as approved under
applications 37977/APP/2017/245 and 37977/APP/2017/345, will be utilised for the
development and will not be compromised by the proposed works.

It is therefore considered that the proposed development would be in accordance with
Local Plan Policy OE 8, London Plan Policy 5.13 and the National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF).

7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues

Due to the nature of plant to be installed on site, a condition will be attached to any approval
requiring a detailed air quality assessment to be provided prior to occupation of the
buildings. This is to ensure that the release environment and stack design will not result in
adverse air quality impacts towards nearby receptors.

The acoustic statement submitted with the application, which would become an approved
document should permission for the proposed development be granted, states that noise
levels caused by machinery and plant on site will reach higher than 5dB below background
sound levels when measured from the nearest sensitive receptor.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 137



7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

A condition will be attached to ensure that this level of noise is not be exceeded and that a
monitoring report is supplied to demonstrate that this is the case.

It is therefore considered that the proposed development would comply with Local Plan
Policy OE 1 and London Plan Policies 7.14 and 7.15.
Comments on Public Consultations

Planning Obligations

The original development was covered by a Section 106 agreement that included a number
of covenants attached to phase 1 and/or phase 2 of the development, many of which have
now been fulfilled.

A deed of variation has been prepared to include reference to the current application and
this will need to be signed prior to any approval being issued.
Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues
None.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 138



Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

10. CONCLUSION

It has been demonstrated within this report that the proposed development and variation of
conditions accord with relevant Local, Regional and National planning policies and
guidance.

It is therefore recommended that the application is approved, subject to conditions.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

The London Plan (2016)

Mayor of London's adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance - Sustainable Design &
Construction

Hillingdon Planning Obligations SPD

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

Contact Officer: James McLean Smith Telephone No: 01895 250230

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 139



TNl
L

o 8 &:_‘»f{;ff:" ~~~~~ :
AT [
a

/]

&y Suaug \«:\\ ]
TP sy

inp A S TS

q..,._,". N=SiNiy

._ ‘ - ”'"gll:."'\.. T

Siial S B

Site Address: Prologis Park LONDON BOROUGH
Site boundary West London OF HILLINGDON
o Residents Services
For identification purposes only. Horton Road Planning Section
This copy has been made by or with Yiewsley Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale: Py i

Act 1988 (the Act). 37977/APP/2017/1634 1:3,500
Unless the Act provides a relevant e
exception to copyright. Planning Committee: Date: AN

© Crown copyright and database

rights 2016 Ordnance Survey Major Page 140 JUly 2017 HI LLING DON

100019283 LONDON




Agenda ltem 9

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address SITE AT THORNEY MILL ROAD OUTBOROUGH MIDDLESEX

Development: Importation, storage and onward distribution of rail borne aggregates together
with the erection and use of a concrete batching plant and associated
infrastructure at Thorney Mill Sidings, Thorney Mill Road, Iver (Consultation by
Buckinghamshire County Council).

LBH Ref Nos: 39707/APP/2017/2356

Drawing Nos:

Date Plans Received: 28/06/2017 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 28/06/2017
1. SUMMARY

This out of borough application is being reported because it is a major application that
would impact the residents of West Drayton. This report relates to an application made to
Buckinghamshire County Council (BCC) for the proposed concrete batching plant and
associated infrastructure at Thorney Mills Sidings, Buckingshamshire. The Local Planning
Authority is providing comments on the merits of the submission made to BCC as a
statutory consultee. BCC remain the decision maker on the application.

2, RECOMMENDATION
That an objection should be lodged to Buckinghamshire County Council

concerning the proposals being inappropriate development within the Green Belt
and potential noise disturbance to residents in the London Borough of Hillingdon.

That informatives be recommended to ensure other impacts are as set out in the
planning submission and to ensure no adverse highway impacts should a consent
be granted.

1 NON2 Objection

The scale and intensity of the use is considered to be inappropriate development within
the Green Belt and therefore inherently harmful. The applicant has not justified the
proposed development through very special circumstances.

2 NON2 Objection

Insufficient information has been provided to demonstrate that the proposal will not result
in an unacceptable increase in noise, which would be to the detriment of residential
amenity, or that appropriate measures will be put in place to sufficiently mitigate against
such impacts.

INFORMATIVES
1

Notwithstanding this Council's objection, should Buckinghamshire County Council be
minded to grant planning permission, the London Borough of Hillingdon request that a
legal agreement be attached to any consent granted to require the following:

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 141



That data be produced bi-annually on the throughput of the various elements of the site
including the deliveries made from the site and that a travel plan is provided and made
available to the two highway authorities involved.

Reason

It is important that the proposed tonnage are conditioned and monitored to ensure there is
no 'creep' of the permission, which could result in a significant increase in traffic to/from
the site to the detriment of the highway network.

2

Notwithstanding this Council's objection, should Buckinghamshire County Council be
minded to grant planning permission, the London Borough of Hillingdon request that a
condition be attached to any consent granted to require the following measures:

i) Ameliorative noise mitigation measures such as a 5m high acoustic barrier and
appropriate natural screening in sensitive locations;
i) Management strategies for the control of dust.

REASON
In the interest of protecting residential amenity.

3

Notwithstanding this Council's objection, should Buckinghamshire County Council be
minded to grant planning permission, the London Borough of Hillingdon request that it
should be subject to a Legal Agreement requiring the developer to, prior to the
commencement of development, submit a HGV deliveries and servicing management
plan to the Local Planning Authority for its written approval. The plan shall detail:

i) Traffic management and access arrangement which includes details of vehicles
accessing trunk roads and motorways and measures in which the vehicles avoid local
roads and peak hours; and

ii) providing information to all operators of the preferred route avoiding existing weight and
width restrictions on the local road network.

REASON
To ensure that pedestrian and vehicular safety is not prejudiced.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site extends to approximately 2 hectares (ha) and includes access to the
public highway and is presently vacant. The site is located within a wider parcel of land
which has had a variety of uses historically and which is known as Thorney Mill Aggregate
Depot. Presently, the Aggregate Depot is largely vacant, save for a large industrial type
building.

The Aggregates Depot is situated to the west of West Drayton, to the northeast of the
M4/M25 junction and to the east of Thorney. The application site boundaries consist of
woodland and a river to the north, vacant industrial land to the east, Thorney Mill Road to
the south and a rail line and golf course to the west.

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 142



The site is located within the Green Belt and within Colne Valley Regional Park.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposal relates to a planning application submitted to BCC for the importation,
storage and onward distribution of rail borne aggregates together with the erection and use
of a concrete batching plant and associated infrastructure, at Thorney Mill Sidings, Thorney
Mill Road, Iver, Buckinghamshire, UB7 7EZ.

This application seeks to allow the use of the site as an aggregates depot, whereby
aggregates will be imported to the site, primarily via the existing rail siding, and sorted for
onward distribution by road. The applicant seeks unrestricted operation of the site as the
nature of rail freight routing is such that trains will need to be offloaded at any time of the
day or night during the week. A teamster is proposed to be used to unload the rail wagons
which will convey the aggregates directly into purpose built aggregate storage bays where
the materials shall be temporarily stored.

The proposed concrete batching plant and machinery will include:

- Silos;

- Ready Mix Batching Plant;

- Wedge Pits;

- Storage Bays associated with concrete production; and
- Storage Bays associated with Aggregate Storage.

It is understood that around 210,000 tonnes of aggregates would be imported to the site by
rail each year. This, it is anticipated, would result in the onward distribution by road of
around 100,000 tonnes per annum of aggregate using HGV's, with an average load of 30
tonnes. Assuming 275 days worked each year, this would mean that around 13 loads of
aggregates will be transported off site per day (26 HGV movements).

The target market for the proposed batching plant will typically be within a 20 mile radius of
the site but aggregates may travel further than this.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

39707/APP/2002/1740 Buckinghamshire County Council Outborough Middlesex

TO INCREASE HEIGHT OF EXISTING ASPHALT PLANT EXHAUST FROM 2.1 METRES TO !
METRES HIGH AT BARDON AGGREGATES, THORNEY MILL ROAD, WEST DRAYTON
(CONSULTATION BY BUCKS COUNTY COUNCIL)

Decision: 20-08-2002 NO

Comment on Relevant Planning History

It is understood that the lawful use is operational railway land, but that for a number of
years now it has been vacant.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

The application is made to Buckinghamshire County Council and would be determined in
accordance with that County's Development Plan.

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 143



The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

Part 2 Policies:

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM8 Priority consideration to pedestrians in the design and implementation of road
construction and traffic management schemes

AM9 Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of highway
improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking facilities

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE25 Modernisation and improvement of industrial and business areas

MIN13 Proposals for chalk extraction

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

The Council erected several site notices around West Drayton advising residents to write to
Buckinghamshire County Council with their objections. Nevertheless, letters of objection have been
received from the local ward Councillor, the Yiewsley & West Drayton Town Centre Action Group,
the Garden City Estate Residents' Association and a local resident. The concerns raised are
summarised below:

- There is very little detail to base a judgement on.

- Concern about the increase of HGVs through West Drayton;

- Concerns raised in relation to noise and dust control;

- Concerns regarding light pollution; and

- Concerns relating to the highways impact of the proposal in West Drayton.

Officer comment:

The first point is noted. Matters relates to traffic, dust and noise are addressed in the report.

With regard to light pollution it should be noted that the site is located well in excess of 200m (as the
crow flies) from the nearest residential properties in Hillingdon to the east. This distance, combined
with extensive tree planting which exists along the Colne Valley corridor and provides a significant
visual screen is such that it is not considered an objection on this basis could be justified. Mayfield
Caravan Park is located to the south east of the site, approximately 50m from the site entrance.
However, sufficient screening exists such that it is not considered light pollution would cause an
unacceptable nuisance to those residents. Notably, lighting diagrams have been provided which
show that there would be no light spill into this borough.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 144



Paragraph 89 of the NPPF (2012) makes it clear that inappropriate development is, by
definition, harmful to the Green Belt and should not be approved except in very special
circumstances. Paragraph 88 of the NPPF (2012) states that:

"When considering any planning application, local planning authorities should ensure that
substantial weight is given to any harm to the Green Belt. '"Very special circumstances' will
not exist unless the potential harm to the Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness, and
any other harm, is clearly outweighed by other considerations."

The proposal should be resisted in principle as the site lies within the Green Belt and the
proposal is therefore inappropriate development which would be inherently harmful and
consequently only acceptable if shown to be justified through the existence of very special
circumstances.

Whilst it is acknowledged that there was a historic form of industrial use on the site, the
existing site is largely vacant and the proposed use would increase the scale and intensity
of industrial use conflicting with the purpose of the Green Belt. As such the London
Borough of Hillingdon strongly objects to the principle of development.

7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

This application made to Bucks CC is to develop a aggregate storage and concrete
batching plant on a site directly off Thorney Mill Road in lver. The site is immediately
adjacent to the railway line and a few hundred metres from the Borough boundary to the
west. The site has a wide access onto Thorney Mill Road with adequate visibility for a 40
mph speed limit road. The site already has rail sidings so the delivery of any materials
would be covered by an existing arrangement. The applicant has produced a Transport
Statement by the Hurlestone Partnership in support of the application.

The Transport Statement (TS) suggests that the Annual Average Daily Traffic (AADT) for
Thorney Mill Road was approximately 9000 vehicles per day and the average speed along
this road was 40mph. There is a 40mph speed limit in place at present. There are
restrictions on HGV movements to the east of the site using a 5t weight limit between
Midnight and 8am and between 6.30pm and midnight. For the rest of the day HGV
movement is unrestricted. However there is a 7ft width restriction that is permanantly in
place further to the east at the River Colne. This width restriction effectively limits access
to the area to the east (West Drayton and beyond) as most larger lorries are in excess of
7ft wide.

The proposals on the site involve the creation of storage facility for aggregates and the
construction of a concrete batching plant to serve the surrounding area.

Approximately 210,000 tonnes of material will be imported to the site by rail and that will be
used as 100,000 tones of aggregate for onward distribution as well as the remainder used
in the making of 50,000 cubic metres of ready mixed concrete.

There will be 4 concrete mixers based on site that make local deliveries. According to the
Transport Statement 'all HGVs would travel west to Ritchins Way in order to access the A4
and M4'. The TS estimated HGV movements for the aggregates at 26 HGV movements per
day, 82 HGV movements for the ready mixed concrete and 14 movements for staff
resulting in 96 movements per day. This additional traffic (+13%) on Thorney Mill Road
would be a significant increase in traffic levels but the HGV traffic would be using links to
the west through Ritchings Way. The applicant indicates that the vast majority of vehicles
would travel through Thorney Mill Road along Riching Way towards Slough.

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 145



In terms of the traffic impacts to this Borough there will be some smaller vehicles that can
use the roads to the east within Hillingdon. There would be significant concerns over any
large operation generating large tonnages of materials through the London Borough of
Hillingdon, but in this case the existing measures in terms of weight and width restrictions
in place along Thorney Mill Road should prevent such impacts. It is important that the
proposed tonnage is conditioned and monitored to ensure there is no 'creep' of the
permission. An informative is suggested that requires data to be produced bi-annually on
the throughput of the various elements of the site including the deliveries made from the
site.The development should also produce a travel plan that must be made available to the
two highway authorities involved.
7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues

Nearby residents and local communities have raised serious concerns relating to noise
and dust that would be generated by the proposal. The proposal would impact on day time
and night time living standards. it is considered that the planning submission does not
satisfactorily address potntial noise impact and an objection should be raised in this regard.
It is considered that London Borough of Hillingdon strongly recommends that
Buckinghamshire County Council seek ameliorative noise mitigation measures such as a
5m acoustics barrier, enhanced natural screening in sensitive locations and management
strategies for the control of dust.

Contact Officer: Zenab Haji-Ismail Telephone No: 01895 250230

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 146



Shreding
Green Farin,

z \Iver Heath
H “
2
z
& o
L AT (O o
B g, Houe N =
= 3 S o
> AT i
Five o
= A Points = gt
4 0 Hom )1
‘ g il
hice | i
136 L S

cmnuu s
Hin é

o

HAY
Recreic

Legend

@ Application Boundary

Government
. Buildings

S s
ongford |53/ JlHatel =
T

PROJECT
Thorney Mill

DRAWING TITLE
Location Plan

DATE
April 2016
SCALE
1:10,000 @A3
- —_— Reproduced from Ordnance Survey digital
consulting DRANNGNO. g LS
imi T THISDRAWING MAY NOT BE USED
mi
DRAWING STATUS WITHOUT CONSENT OF PDE
CONSULTING LTD
« Charterec surveyors  FINAL 125475408 o e o

Page 147



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 148



Agenda Annex

Plans for
Major Applications
Planning Committee

Wednesday 2nd August
2017

T™ILLINGDON

UUUUUU

www. hillingdon.gov.uk



Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address FORMER GARAGE SITE R/O 6-16 NELSON ROAD HILLINGDON

Development: Proposed demolition of the existing garage blocks and erection of 6 houses
with rear dormers, parking spaces, all associated external works and
changes to the front and rear gardens of 13 Nelson Road to widen the existini
access.

LBH Ref Nos: 72704/APP/2017/1068

Date Plans Received:  23/03/2017 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 23/03/2017
Date Application Valid: 24/03/2017 05/07/2017

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 150



!

’J]
g

LT

Scale 1:1280

| Em:::?&‘r mﬁ:ﬁgmxfdimm Mﬁﬁ!ﬂlﬁum:‘:’:{mpﬂt‘d 1o e Cu:tl:l; ﬂmbl:z:mmérminn
* ! 3 y i ¥ a
% R;.v : Revision notes |nil;als D:;la
HILLINGDON Project Scale Drawn by
..... » FORMER GARAGES SITE AT REAR OF 6-16  [1:1250 @ A4 SAM
NELSON ROAD, UXBRIDGE, UB10 OPU Date Checked by
2510, G SIS, UNRHIEGE, WPDIESEX, Usg 10 | PSEHPHEN 16/03/17 B
Tel: 01895 250 1 Drawing No. ey
Ko eud's SHEEPERTIGPIAN, 2016/D176/P/01

O 1Jl



20/d/eL1amloe

Qogit |eas

= il

INNIAY d131dHM8VYd

NYTld 415 DNILENE

LAY BINE WD TS L T
B g oty (A B 3 S

wdacal

g i -

9

OIS0
N0 0LEN 3DQINEXN «
QYOM NOSTEN 81 0L S 7z
40 HY3H Ly 3115 SIOVHYD HINNOA - —
L3O vm
mEEim | o
A1 BEN “YISTIOAN “IOQNEKN ‘AN D ‘03 Jb H ] L
INNYEDOEd TYUAYD 'SIDIANIS SINIQISTH Im|1|[||r
W
NOOONITTE]-
weryfesnf ] i
|| [
\._,.\_1' kT .r __.u —1 g, T,
o = = 5, Wil ' *
) . r——— AT ; 4 = 3
z \w.ltnﬂ'n;ﬂ.?']f- ___.‘-1" A ...1.\u |||WJH|'... rm“ - \w A....u i ._Hr,k.. Oll
€ i/ il bt Tt
; . b 3 ¥ o .\. £ "N
P : ; PHLLEIZ'0 ¢ ; ‘
. r + . 2
{ d & .mmm@m.o,.u&_mhmn_ ; : A £2W/"LE9T = BAlY A)IS 4 Al
R ! ¢ e 2N ¢ : 3y passe L
A ; _ A ; ealy pagsesn
4 : ] 5 3 #
| saje
4 > ssanje sou .m\» il oy, & & Dﬂlu
# K~
3 ¥ s
ﬁr wr :? L ©
e a &.
afef ssaaoe Pt




d €0/d/9.1Q/9102 _ ﬁ I T _

zL 2z e el o 0. )

4
m 9F

Nyd 3118 0350408

el | [ L ===y b e
= 1 [H = e -

N0 0Lan ‘NOgENIMIH
"IDqNEERN ‘TvOM NOSTEN
40 W¥Td LY LIS STOVIVD H3anWE0d

A0

e i

¥IT LLT GEEID oy
111 DST SEELO ML

ML BE0 NISTI00N IH0MEXN THINID 2D '0L/TT T
ANAYHICHL TYLIYD "SIIANIS SINIOISTH “

T

1SN T4

N

.. ELY B TR
Ll S g =hii| /| - s ITNZS MAELL RUEHL B0 AT | W ATFHAGNICET S LEVH ENGED I
B . AAIN LA TIOR3 30 T IHY L .._»:O.nn. it L5303
pmos| W R R BT T I a/l N, A8 MO 5Y S5000 S3lvDrsToNad | o e o, e
TS i S y W L L ABNAGA MWL RSN TN B 4 .
I g““ﬂ“ﬁ — .- - e | P | FRASTH AT EELIRE TR LM 0N AL OILYIHEBD W |
- jmry b - 2 [ i i pe e
i | @ " pokiger] 4 3 2 ROH WOV 1L A o Yyt o v el
5 LS ST 1 #4 o L DN S LG
s 4 0 = : o wnisiy
E— )
{ | R \ :
L .
— 1 = ; e —
s : {; © ,
| - . ' .!.\ Z
H e ¥ 3
=] i A W L .
S - r L lg WEHY K3
i Tl
Akt IR Ay b d Fl
Wy sl Biopab ] sty L ._. H ? 3
o ol ik
SO O i a5
SN MOV DL 3N .\ w@ﬂ'w .
P IM0E 3 3 YEVHDOT
VAUV 440
FraT e
Jen4al A THIFM
4] FLBAM “ w_ I .-mm&
suaped

Qnays pasodi o
Fayg pastdisg @

- nm |

a2

3| pawdag)

Gl
o
=
QQQ@

6E

IR THLL N T OO
T ot L ﬁJ

whlah




ATH
LVED/LL

Atvo

ENYId HOO S LaHIS OMY ONNCHS
¥Woois
L] |

Nl QLN IDTRENN
‘aYor NOSTIN

S0 HYIH L% 1S SIDVHYD H3N0L
LT

Wl 8an WISTIO0M IHGHENG ‘SHINID JuuD ‘0l/T
INAVHDOHS LYY "5IANES SINIOISIH

$LL LLE CRELD Mog
LIk 05T SEELD SRl

1T kg

il 0L T P |0 6

St by U Y (S e AT )

.

T

007 BIENg

€ ONY 2 S3SNOH
AUETE HOOTd LSHId VIO

9aNY S ‘7L S3SNOH
7585 HOOT4 LSHId Y19

€ ONY '2 S3SNOH
AUL'ER HOOTd ONNOHD i

9aNY S v L SISNOH
U929 HOOTd ONNOHD YID

1=

[ A A ——
2 _..|_| = d007Td LSHId
( | |
§ e . p 7 v %0018
| wi'g (| Jwrg _ ! _
=] [ __ _ < wsmmu*u,“ ‘yeg | = _ "_ == L
MITBL ¥ E e - _ E W] AT HL
ﬂ[ﬂ { -
wcoipag “ m. o 1S | wooipag
aignog B0 || S SMIB0L _ 8iqneq
7 Woblpag i — ¢ woalpag |
1 0 __ 5 == B o [T |
o — - - B N — A - 8
i | y M, e et Lug'g Calf
") wioowjeg | ——— Buipueq | [ Bupuer M_I upoxjed I
— ——| Buipuer . __ 3 \ | 3 : Buipuen |—
i 4 Wy'g| ﬁ "ﬁ Wyl i | .
pHEER =" _ | thooipag - | fuocaipag "= HEE
woolpag o —— — < e 7 Woolpag
ul zie® f 1 el umy
= =
woolpag _ 7 £ woolpag
a|fuig =) i B|Buig
= ] | — | == [ ] —F == C
.m..wmuuL; Tmmcu{
\u:m_ an _ HO074 ANNOYD
- @ V:Ecn_ Y M20718
L e ed . | . IEH
(5] ] — <
: Jgg) : —— g9l
Buiuig / uayoyy g ) unz Buing 7 uayary
_ UAMHSIOM| - [uMHSIoM PUE!
3) (&
[T = — ]
|
- 4 Wi = o il ST
ooy | 1 | ] ooy
wooy Buia |Buiig Buar i ~ Buiug Bun ooy BuiAT
=S ._. - — - ~ - _ —
= ] = T} ssepoy [T = —# e e ssapoy [ E _
__ [ET ] : Z = : |9Aa =
> , _ :

Page 154




S0/d/941A/91L0T

AT {4 S
Aivn | a0 ol i i 0oLl =joas

SNVl HOOTS LEHIL ONY SHNONS = e = =4 ¥0014 1sdld

|
W ) . : h
BuHo0Te ~
il | N — gX00718
Nl QLN IDTREERN N — L
‘aYor NOSTIN - 2

40 MYIM LY LIS SIOYNYS HINHDH 1 [ 1 =l [ 1 L
LATiad

7 -4
(T3]
o~

¥IT LEZ EEBID ¥Ry
Lit o5z SEEiD e
M1 BEN I90MENN IAINAD DIAIT ‘01/TE - an
ANMVAB0KE LAY, SINANIE SINATIS3N % fi i ¢
APl AUZ L
simapia §

NOCONITT 4 | lwoolpag y | woaspeg

_ . ¥ = |l ¢ 1= - - s v
b “..l._“ i — .“,z = O

) P i ARG E
7 fuooiyleg = |-

i

—_— T
= . " ——
i
[
L=

Bujpuie] BuipLe —— — —— |
§ f
Jwggl = = . JuggL
Z wooipag Z Wooipag
L8 AUL'E
£ wooipag ¢ wooipag
9aNY S ¥ I SISNOH |
AMIS'85 HOOT4 LSHI4 VID ] ] i E il L
mw@mw T.@u@
oo | — | loreT— d00714 ANNOHD
ol [o g X207d
7|22 5
yosod \, gl [E]|  uotod
|- ed | . ieH
¥ ——=—
ZM16'91 = [ = il _
Buiuig / uayojiy wgzl ) oz Buiuig { usyoiy
wei | HAMHSOM| |HARHSIOM ey I
s 2 _ﬁ, i &— 2 [
rm.| — 1& : : - = s : 3 ﬂ .
MGZ ApeE
wooy Buiarg wooy Buiar
9aNY 5P 'L S3SNOH |
U585 HOOT4d ANNOHD WID L 1 i sseooy 77 ssepoy f J B
IoAe] : Z lane :

St by TV ey (S A AR 1

- Pt

wainh

Page 155




90/d/9L} /9102 o031 a9
wol =1 < 5z 9 NY1d 4004 ¥ ¥2019

SNV SO0 T L<07 - ¥ MO0

tn.___n-smﬂ_—
N0 DLEN ‘NOTSNTIH
‘DTG GYOH NOSTIN

40 HY2Y 1Y 315 SI0VYD HINN04
LT

WIT LLE GEALD o4

1k 05T SERID %)
WL BEN ‘I20MENN “IHINGD A ‘OL/TE
ANAVU00HS WIYY "SIANES SINANISIR

ey

NOCDNITT 4

gl
Wwoolpag

i L._Em_:oo

£ ONV '2 S3SN0oH
AT TN Tl TV (SIS N_._:G‘NN IOOI‘H_ EOJ q—w

= e 9 ONV S ‘v ‘L SISNOH

|
|
|
|
|
|
|

v LAULLE HOOTd L3071 YID

Page 156




20/d/941.Q/91L0T

1 EHWAYEILL

DGl smog

ko NvY1d 400Y
: SR _ — g 0018

SNV SO0 ONY L4077 aNY 8 0078

LAl |
MG DLEN ‘NOTSNTIH
‘ID0FENT ‘YO NOSTIN

40 Hy3H Ly 1S SIS HINH0L
LT

¥IT LLZ SRl ¥od
Vil 057 GeElg ‘el
M1l BN “I00MEKN TAINID DA ‘0L/TE
TNVEO0HS WLV TEIIANEE SIKIOISTH
M|

NOCONITT 4

L

el e | =it JER
[iex]

NV1d 14071
_—— =1 g M0079

L L)
L i)
_ L ln)hlv_
| Bio0Y
gl
f wooipag

ke )
..m_.__Em_E

£ ONY 'Z S3SN0H
s L o v [ AU0'ZE HOOTd 1407 vID

= A 9aNY §'v 'L SISNOH

vy AULLE WOOTH LJ0T VIO

Page 157




‘ RN AL oAl Tl DA

Plain tiles on 35"

pitched roof.

Timber Windows

Brick solider
course head & sill.

Fairfaced brickwork —

Projected quions in

fairface brickwork

CAPITAL FROGRAMME
UXBRIDCE, UBE LW

Hiromy
HILLINGDON
e
sq':%m!. 750 11
Foi: DI85 277 274

HESIDENTS
210, EVIE ¢

FORMER GARAGES SITE AT REAR OF
§7T0 15 NELSON ROAD

PREECT

HILLINGDO#, UB10 0FL
[e==en

BLOGK A

FRONT AND SIDE ELEVATION 1 ard

2016/D176/P/08

2 e e

BLOCK A - FRONT ELEVATION

Page 158

BLOCK A - SIDE ELEVATION (NORTH)

Scale 1:100




‘ VNI A P T DA

: :
] i
= 33 5 2
= aval ¥ £ o
5, 5iE & S
uﬁii §=a Eas| kB|S
| s 33| B e
- i fHE
- gg hg%gﬁmé _%

to dormer walls

A s e

———Plain tile cladding
7.5

i
=
]
'_
< |
i (]
g z1
= wl =
E| 14 =
= w I
= i o
m i}
k4 o ¥
3
e
m

ﬂifi!-[ii.uiIii;rﬂi||!E-f.uIHi.=zﬂ]|.1|!ih.l:lh’miﬁ!nlﬂ!v.l

BLOCK B - SIDE (EAST) ELEVATION

= S =

= ggf

3 %.gg
5 R 5 &
-8 T u5
33- §§8
A »\:,g\g
238 § Ex
u;.S w o
' |

I

=

=

= Timber Windows

=

G R |
|
|

It I‘TFFJTH

F— =
N T

E‘mmmmml

BLOCK B - SIDE (WEST) ELEVATION

z
o
:
[T} _.-
'g = (| B |
&
= (= 0}
¥ o @
L. |3 3¢
Nl i (e e ey 25
25
= =l
®Le
o

Page 159




60/d/941Q/91L0C

2 I8 T NOLLYATE 3015 ONY HvaH

¥ ¥00TE
LAl ] |
M0 DLEN NOTSNTIH
OroH NOSIZN &1 OL 8

A0 Y24 1y 315 S0V HINE0L
1ihid

1T G el e
M1 860 adARn R dis ‘al/T
INAVHIOHS WiV 'S3ANTS SINIUSIR

L
NOADNITTIIHE

] L s 1P | G

D043} sjoag

]
wpy

gL 5

i

lrE
™~

i
Q

T
'—
=
@]
0
=
Q9
'—
i
o |
]
w
=}
7

o
e
o}
)
m

T

IR |

I

||;ﬁ|;.;ﬂ.r. Hilieslilel

NOILYAZTE Y3y ¥ MO0T8

e

o
T

TR

i

A

e

Nl e e e i

SHIoMaNG 80jie)

—ul suoink: pajoslaid

saAsjoLq paoelied

“liis ® peay asinoa

- 1apijos youg

OPUIAA I3

“Joos payond
-§E U0 2 ure|d

Page 160




LNIW4OTINIT OYOH NOSTEN ¥Od S3LVE
7 O0vou 55300V 03504084

E.:..ﬂu-.-

Ndd OLEN "NOOSNITIH
'FD0IHEXN'AYOH NOSTAN

A0 HWYTH LY 3115 SADYHYD HAIWHO-
izarohi

¥EL LT GERLD KO
111 DG SEL0 del

Wil gEn ‘pIETI00N N 'JULHID DD ‘0N /3T

INAVESOHA WLHYD SIIUMES SIMGOISIH
T

NOGDOMNIT T

e [we] ) B

2 L =] ]

0oL

wol b i

ML S T TS b C
Rttt it i, i b i

walgh

L T A R
| 'G sasnoy 16 1ka) suy Buoje avoy NOST3N £ _//m\%mwpw R
U dujs uosues pue sous) map HIANNN WOHS NG 2
Q3YIASNYEL ]
aNy1 40 vady
39v1d )
SYd AB YYD
wcwﬁtm ._mmﬂ_ AL3YS L_,.‘__m__,__w
sBuljamp
0] [0jUoD $59008 03PIA

Ynm falionucs sjowat
‘a1ef apis ueusapad -~

ue sajeb sseooe v
S8 30_:_ %m._ 1S N SNeWoiNe Man
Buny 146y =
EMUMDP 2
m uwnpo By [
ybBy wig man T
N/ n.\/.xuw
S
9 10 11 i
‘_ N AT
SRR
||em pua o} Sy
paung gieb q/o sequy _ fif o
paulejal agloj ZLoN O Biywsgy men [
uapiep o] ssaoe ot i
abefeb Buysixg 301q INGI0D JUBIBHIP Ul 4t S
gnol ueLysapad s
=z
s 0) pa I3

qiay
paddoig

2 i o |

vu«m..._l._l_lhl._lﬂJlmuu_l_l_JJ_.l._l_JJl
fk..wI_H_I_I_I_JI_I_I_I_I_I_JI_.I_Iﬂl.u

d _n_i

S macar e s S

g oaREOe AT PO kINEE

/a4 |2

Bl A= ] Rl

I T 1 Y

-

s i o
I|]L“,MI_.I_I_I_I_I“J_I~I_J
L D T B I T

S ) e e i

=0 )il sl ed o/ 1T
o e 3 g G U
= e L 4
=L Lok
o i
. & r&
/ ey \
it
B R
.. l__ Tl
| soejdal oy Buljueid pue { TG
} MU ‘poob g uapieg |
way sgiey pue sisod ‘sausy
Jaqui ‘Bunued ‘Bunsixg '
— ~—
n ©
—
(0]
(@)}
| Qs mau yiL Dnl“
uaj g ybiy wgfl
u| loop apis
UE Jaqui pue yEod _Wﬁ_

a]a10u0a faN




LL/d/941a/910e

—
ieoith 5 s _?@ NMEHS S|

L rinciac o

NOLLISE TWhldaL

‘‘‘‘‘‘ =

NG 0LEN 'NOTDNTIH

'ADAENT 'AYON NOSTEN

40 HyTd L¥ 3118 SIDVHD dENE04
L

VEE [ET SARIR )

141 o w0
| 0 MR SNl TAD 0L
INEOus YLD SIARES SiNdes

Bk
DTN T T4
v}
£
002:L |p2s 00LiL ®pag
L e—— 2 i _ T ! S ! : _ PSS
=] 1 wpz Sl oL g 0 wol gL S sz 0

00¢:1 9|edsg 00L:} ®e3sS
NVY1d 400714 ANNOHO V-V NOILO3S TVOIdAL

P | I el
_ i = wooy Buin uEuapy | 2 1
: g —f il y ¥ s H
il ) : | £ = ey
11 s (= \.\._\..__‘ .“
..._ s ) ) . ﬂ|":,. n . ] . .\...1:_1 k . _Bi
f wipy i { X ]
3 ; = A Lm i
T Wooipag { yied o i
! : g G m. E 3

A
i s i B 0|
- i 3
® i 5 i
el
i L

i) P |

Page 162




T I T [

INNIAY A131IHEvd

LLOZ YIop |3

oost

2oy ool
auy) ve puncub

an0g0 f@ppipauny Jo (i
PaNSOAL JIAUDI Wals Wl PansAp a0 (vl

:

AT TR DR LIRS M /e TND he

cl

S5l

T

= L =1

ZC.r_:l.-.Z_f_ T4

TI'[H
= =L}

- Ta——




T T T =} | ] [ H| q _‘ g _
fonn Jood / rr
o Mobajpn ®
ORIODS . ks Ayjongy wo v JNNIAY A131dMdvd
sl : V — 30
1 3:.:» A . A W.m_mo_wwu °
VIS o [ e
£1/d/9£10/9107 MO o < 1
1102 4ai0p upld sjuipAsue) sa)] ¢ e Bumesg G e e
o0&t pooy uosia &yg ‘

A G {HHLHT S |
aioy) a0 fi@joipaunuy a jo aps adopsdn

uﬁsnﬁ“ﬁ»miissg .eh_nvﬁﬂmﬁ En.hﬁsﬂs

PONSDAL JISLIDP LS WoJ) PP 4D (M) DAl UOHIFIA] (00N

UNoID By Jo LojojuesaIda 9j0and0 LD
4amjop o} sjuiod PUIPIDD Mo) By) |0 LaKD) B BB Ul poaids duDg

NOTON T

7

e g st ] . e PO ST 12




OTTS COUTT

I

1 “

| V!

i

h "

| I
oo

o 'y !
~ I L
I

i L

o i

I ,‘
AN
o
2
L Z
y;g‘\
R
s
\‘-“
T
[THE

~ X
™ "E’
o

\\
\\\ \\ 1
.
N N h' n
: [y

AN
AN

~ \\
AN \\’o
X

N \

NN N
<GQ S N N \\\
8

N \\
\\ \\ \\
NN |
. N NS

>

RCH

AT

09

14

9 [e9y

N
N

~ Q)

o \

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.
This copy has been made by or with

Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

the authority of the Head of Committee

Site Address:

Former Garage Site,
To the Rear of
6-16 Nelson Road

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
72704/APP/2017/1068 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date: @ R
Major page 165 July 2017 HILLINGDON




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address VYNERS SCHOOL WARREN ROAD ICKENHAM

Development: Extension to sports hall to create a new two-storey teaching block comprising
classrooms, dining room, library, admin space and ancillary facilities;
provision of new All Weather Pitch (AWP); reconfiguration of parking layout
and reversal in direction of existing vehicular one-way system; increased
cycle parking; landscaping; creation of off-site cricket run; and associated
development.

LBH Ref Nos: 4514/APP/2017/1771

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 166



v

NV1d %2078
31IS 035dO¥d

THLNOSITIVD

uopBulliH
jo yBnoiog uopuo
looyag
fiepuooag siaufp
Moz 3w | o

s i ) B
ot sy o] e b ]t £

TR ) P

0L B

w

wg

L]

Page 167



521 g

Wi wme B000I-050
e LT

Buiuueld

el

NV1d NOILYOO1
31IS ONILSIX3

OUYZ NG LT

0w o el
v N e g . e et T

IHLNOSITIVO

uopBuliiH
jo ybnoiog uopuo

g

looyag
Aiepuoaag siaukp

DarDae

A | owase

s i o o ]

s s S S

et s ] e i) oy @ By
Pyl 2 b

g e 0 s DR 4 o A
PRy W 0 v e sl AR
] e s b 8 A ) £
P el

EALTH T

wEousn 0




NVISAIAUNSAE

uVHIAS Wine

OV N

|-

Page 169




NVISAIALNSAE

g 1 L o
sioleE

L T
OHYEEAT WIS

NVId LAV
HOOW 18

WYHNTHDI
0% NIHYM
TJOOH2S SEENAA

T o et P S

ujod
uorasy| -*

[
2 L
mi

: UJ%E T

o

ARitB¢NA

- -

§—

Page 170




NVISAIALNSAE

EirA L M

siolee W
I (T
OBVEEAS WOl
NV LNTANVT
HOOH O
WYHNTHDI

0% NIHEAM
TJOOKDS SEENAA

Wiod

Page 171




NVISAIAUNSAE

(1[0 Sg [
G0l T

Ci0 ol B0 CiSLE

OENEEAT WDIE

uiog
voest) &

Page 172




Y T g

000}~V

..m DB IV DAY

_ﬂ -y .

z o seema

T ik e Py

g P T e LT
Buiuue|d

EniviE

NV1d NOILVOO1
3LIS a35dO¥d

Yo o vl
T e g . Vo et (T )

THLNOSITIVD

uopBulliH
jo yBnoiog uopuo

g

looyag
Aiepuosag siaufp

CArTa

A

o e

e e e
Bog peaciaiy 2 WSS | LLSITT

o o i s 5 ]

TS ) P BT
et by ] i i) sty P

Ryl 2 b
i ety 3 e g e s s

LR

st Lo =ousno0




Buuueid

400714 ANNOND
a350d0Nd

[y

s o T s e

THINOSITIVD

uopBulliiH
Jo yBnolog uopuo

looyas

Kiepuodag siaufp |

L 1|-\ \L-.{\\ %

///x////////




E] 200Z-Y
- N T
m k]
i Al
Bujuueld _
NY1d ¥00Td
T

e T
iy LRI

THINOSITIVD

uopButliH
4o ybnosog uopuo

fooyag
Muepuodasg siaufp




!
: : ot B
S p— __ Ll o e - - \ﬂ_ ...,.._.‘\ i
i - o ] )
4 £00Z}-Y — ) y X
s Jretetrv e - | - - _ : A
] { ‘g S iy
EE e | ) ; gy, (Bel
Bujuueld __ e Sh oy L A /
40O | = e A\
NVd __ . - e L f
ANO23S 0350d0Y¥d _ ; e T L
W — 1
A = P e 4

hoﬁ::ﬂmoum__._—_n_.___go._ _ﬁ_. ‘ = o .* % : p_

e __ Y ’ 3
. o w AL AL R,

ke

CETER
Sl
AT
i w o
e
no

fooyog f = SN
AKiepuodag siaufn _ o 1 Nt
| [ e - . e | e I | AT

T P e

p
B
1
|
|
|
|
S
%
[

igl—i-
(B Iﬁ 1] o A .wi.I[ML W ..".w i
] i LW,
. ..._"..“_ Al |

:: g
:: ! 7 o w0 =

A_____:_______

!.

TR
.-f!j_l :
H

o
s

Page 176




uopBuliH [ : -
4o ybnouog uopuay (£, = s - _

fagled | L
L b e

_n_"___nm f ! ; (e ) o
fuepuosag s1aukp vy Y, ot
] e ; e e vRy =z \/ .I.ﬁ

[ ; iE - — _El7 [

__ g — — = = ,my o | i)

| e wEE Aol b e L e |
e P £ e { LT |

|

I




NVISAIAUNSAE

ulod
uantasu| ‘.

Page 178




e ToLe— e G

i - S000E-V-A
s v 3G Daied |
P = & wone |
=l ~ 1spua) |
soads dujs 183913 _
‘nads g juawabuene

06Z:| - uawabiuese 20u4 ¥ ild

20Ua4 1Y2lid ONSY |

uopBuliH :
Jo yBnolog uopuo

i

Dam

-,

2

L~

jooyog siaufp

o s
L =T

i it ki 88+

§'} lleyep dn uoRaas Yani

My | o o

e o e e o g i 55
et s oy ity
o e i o e 3
e i e
iy P
P e
- —
o e e o Y P
mren e W
(e o | e 0 ) O g
29ds dung 1e%ou0 $9101 YOI [21010
o TRETATY Y
) e
-
T NS A P ] Wty
i
x oy
[‘I}llln
ki b
—]
e ————y
1 e ] A T VS
——
4 e et o) By Sy
wiom STy chy
TN Ju# il
" o +
P Lt ks ) e
TN R S, o
reacew o e,

Pty e b gy hem +

9ads s0Ua) ysel punogay




T

' -
PR e e e ey e 2 e e

-2
i 1) ot BV - JOGET VATERL I PSS - |

i prepr e
L

43

LU s g iy o 1 o e s g s gt oy
aEg

Twaone:
s o = e e el ot
740 1398US e ALy P P s
ueld adedspuet sAensnit :

Sy taani

g 1
Y
oy NINHV HOH CENSEL
ALARY P SN o] e
s cabns BUNUPY NS uP Sl Saan AN td
Sy q
=
AN M e
T e Py DU 104 O
N

) I S O P Bupyeed

LT3 o
e sbiaigaanap I Buppew proy o
I BURSIE J0 SELap 50] 314 A1es pa oy &
OIS PP SO 1SRN Bple) | ssaanile JaW o) g unube e | Bnab v
stapmeip NS
e siary f sl
wenEg s pue slumes) sl o) S abeueg T
10N
AT LR 1 PINSH 31 D0 Pascide ms 1 i
PO R SERONTE UL - PAYDE 4O (PO LU0 T X0
A | g s0p - Bupepns £d
ﬂ.._hw.. s s 10 SOpaEE
b g pus o juacelpe ans o ey ‘abpa m PANDKI LT 10 UCpE
i Guipy faaral puniog - Buavpng 9d
s S0 WG] LS ST [ PO
JsiBag !_-.".__.:nn. pasitiandey sirmwasd ‘ws; LR T O — Eﬂﬁtﬁaﬂﬁ!ﬂ: sd
s saulisap ypm uornfion uw pess 2 o Gumein hnzm Bumbpa urprm e - bupepns
ey WUKIS X DST % $16 G U AT e AR St
oar Dnnbipd wEpEITL R - Bapaegans td
Pondidde srs 0
- nz Ay Py Sy | RPN J0ULRMG L 003 AN [Rears _
Dinbp3 iy o Euasnd Qv 00 - Bied




i rative hedge phanting, > Notes.
3%

mnsntained 1o & beight of 2.5m
1]

= = Drawing to be read in confunction with designer risk
Tegiter

[¥y)

| 1
| Hatch: area 10 roonwve Tammac H)
| Tinish following romoval of I
E mokile buldings 5
£ = |
{ |
- ; P
" . i
|
= T
For indicative plant selvedule refer 1o plan mi202-100
m - Fermniture - wrrsatde sheldon
} | Eonerete road kerh s-|-—uw
Fidging Fencing = =
s Concrete pin ket 314 0 150 % S0mm | tmber knee rall N
—_ Shalist
Faqing
—————— Timber edng 150 25mm, pe b Legend I PLANNING
soffwood wah timiber s5akes 4 1.5m cenes
PG T
Edging
Metal edge, hekght 1o S8 ajacont paang and bedding, Propased tree - ners School
m?umww efer 1o planiling schedde. Wy
Rivimond: Lo s
i s ek s ]
| b, e 5004 or b sppraved ' (b N Tllustrative Landscape Plan
T el o plant schduile = Sheet 2 of 2
) owmuwmmﬂmm e ST TEEwT
3 Dt m-um 0 Engineers drawings and speciiication # Panting - St 1:2008A1 team
3 i ] g v Memmmm;mmwa s specication f I RRE LA 8
satety File toe of existing
& Road marking whitelining: Refer (o £ - - - e T
T Page 181 M2 5906 477471 W ot 100K K il coLulk M292-101 Pl
o 5 10 13 » 25 e s
Grass - fewdorced Lawn froed e gt Jittane z
iolpda of simiat apgeovert o e e et ey i




nuzy

o e e
Buuuelg
a3xnoI10d
SNOILVAZT3 GUVYA

- 14N02 a3s0d0dd

uopBulliiy
jo ybBnosog uopuon

[ooyag
Aepuodes siaufp

oy uoERag filogEang ekune o \2)
|II|

=

»

"

A

uﬂj-yﬂyflr>,
|_ _|__
M|

oG [uogeNeE ERog Yo

Page 182

— e 1 O
UODeg | LOgEAS peninios 15 . o




'ZE e
:m:wmn_ u_EEw_._um
nmzbo.”oo

SNOLLVAZT3 3TVOS
394V 03S0d0Hd

uopButjiiy
j0 ybnoiog uopuo]

|ooyag
Aepuooag Eu:?;

wogesaga weg yinog L

-

_—w hﬂu ./ | m-..a

AREdie ---E%

w.ll E

uogenarg goes: 5




£0L0Zv

ettt

iy
et —_—
Buuue|d
v

a3¥No103
SNOILVYA3T3
31IS 03S0d0ud

uopBulii
jo yBnosog uopuo

s

[00yog

Aepuosag siaufp

T

LOTIEAN GUS 153

o3 0pS (nos

Page 184

i (T
UogEAsg TS IEEg




4

P I .
Etwantaw 4 "

&> —

A L

<

Page 185

<

3DSURVEYSCAN




RS o e B e o e e
B

D3 e S P,

Vyners Secondary

School

London Borough of
Hillingdon

sk PR 4

CALLISONRTKL

A DESIGN CONSULTANCY OF ARCADIS
Dot WL vt Sovwet, V0 Vi {ondim. 500 440
TOPOGRAPHICAL

SITE PLAN




e ]
- ok
i
Bl T2
== =
..«._ —.thm.

.

..... v_.i. Iluﬂ w:..t.a

¢ ﬂ T gm% 1»%@ L.,.

|_|

a\

_._ __\w_f-

Page 187




«««««««««

\
A
A
4
N

R
iy
Hﬁn&
=7

- _HEYTHROP DRE _ _ _ _

':DD

by

The Clump

uud 1A

pn Plantation

Park Wood

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Notes: Site Address:
Site boundary

Vyners School

For identificafi | Warren Road Residents Services
or identification purposes only. Ickenham Planning Section

This copy has been made by or with Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

the authority of the Head of Committee Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Services pursuant to section 47 of the . S . i on

Copyright, Designs and Patents Planning Application Ref: Scale: oft.

Act 1988 (the Act). 4514/APP/2017/1771 1:2,500 ¥y

Unless the Act provides a relevant ,}

exception to copyright. Planning Committee: Date: LNy

© Crown copyright and database ' == =

rights 2016 Ordnance Survey i Julv 2017 _]\I ILLINGDON

100019283 Major Page 188 y s




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address LITTLE BRITAIN LAKE PACKET BOAT LANE COWLEY

Development: Proposed footbridge over the River Colne at the north end of Little Britain Lak
LBH Ref Nos: 52368/APP/2017/1844

Date Plans Received:  19/05/2017 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 24/05/2017

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 189



/FB

e, Little Britain Island
FB \

!
)
= =
Weir f— Huntsmoor Weir N
L] 3
| Q)
34
A
4 ~
® V4
4
/ / ’
FB . Q
' )
@) &
" /, A %
=3 4 site area = 448.3m X
) N7 ““‘
~
A
47
]
Little Britain Lake
N
25 50 75 100 125m
| - | | ]
Scale 1:1250
MOTES: - DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING, The Cs must verify all jons at the site before satting out,
commencing work, of making any shop drawings. Any discrepancies must be reparted to the Contract Administrator before proceeding.
- Rt_zv : Revision notes Inil;als D;!E
: IGDON Project Scale Drawn by
FHLLINGDON LITTLE BRITAIN ISLAND BRIDGE PROJECT  |1:1250@A4  |DEV
RESIDENTS SERVICES, CAPTITAL PROGRAMME oy SIetiel bY
: Description 15-05-17 SA
B s e, W SITE LOCATION BLAN Ty Rev
Fox: 01895 277 224 age 190 2017/D217/P/001




c00/d/LVedrLLoe

HYTd LIS DNLLSIND

ROUAMISI0

A23royd ISAINE ONYISI NIVLIEE 31LLN

LD O

¥ET LLT SERLO x4

LLE 052 S6RI0 ‘W]
ML BEN ITCHENN CITHINID JMD "01/3T
INAVHI0H TYILAYD 'SIIAEIS SINIOISTY

yied aeo

(
WU_.._mh—Cm/U

o

S
Ay
Ny
I~
QU
>

JI9\\ JOOWISIUNH

e
ulellig
317

pues|
uleyg
9T

pue|pooM

00S:L 8o

I
wpg or og oz

13 0

Page 191




HYTd 3LIS 03504084

ROLLAMIEIT

€00/d/L1ea/LL0g

A23royd ISAIHE ONYISI NIVLIEE 3L

LD
¥ET LLT SERLO x4
LLE 052 S6RI0 ‘W]

ML BEN ITCHENN CITHINID JMD "01/3T
INAVHI0H TYILAYD 'SIIAEIS SINIOISTY

e :
ulelng 4
9|17 d

yded Jed

SJUBIjUa

pue|poom
2,
<
Q)
®
g
2 o
=
®
; A 3 .,. D A __.__‘.. ....___
JI9/\\ JOOWISIUNH < sl B
e (D
ueing
00G:L @|pag
S| &7 = = L

Page 192




¥00/d/Lea/LL0g

NOILD3S ONY NOWYAZ T3 ‘WY d 03S0d0ud

HOLLAMISIT

123roud IS0IME ONYTISI NIVLIbE 310N

LIt

VT LiT SERID a0y
111 0SZ S8R0 il
M BEN "IHOHAXN ‘3EINID DND 01/3T
INAVHIONS TYLLLAYD 'SIHANTS SINDOISTY
T

NOCIONITT I

85L_u o005t 7 T~

A0 e T TPON 0N 00

Fam

~—00012

sduwiel mojeys

390148 40 N¥1d %
sdies mojjeys
|
[ |

Bujuea| Joj padeys 321Ul WWINOT ¥ W 05 S|IBIpUBY ED

R B B R N O S N B e e o e N R S R R R N R R R N N N e R e N N R ERX E R

L= sjuawaiinbal 3/5 / sainioejnuen afipuq 01 38pUg (dY4) JNse|d padiojuisy aiqly

Asana Bu)jies (3215 JO apis YIRa 01 BUIPPED JAAO ¥BO ¥IIY)
WWOOPT X DOT X WLWSE X 7 aney oF |jeJ yydia Aang

Y-¥ NOILD3S

Page 193

Asana Bul|led |333s Jo apis Yoea 0] SUIpPe|D JBA0 B0 X211
WWOORT X Q0T X WWSE X ¢ aney 01 |1ed yiysdia Aang

3/5 Aq qu 1s0ddns 4y

[T

[ —

I

sjusulinbal 3/5 o3

Huljled BpIm WLLIOQT 1.} (3215 (U3U8 Ajoy) paieod Japmod
NOILYAZTI ONOT

x

i

)

001:} 2@|oag

¥ 1
ol S o

T




§00/d/L)ed/LLoc

oL

NOILYAZTS LXILNOD 0350408

s CEik )

L23royd 3S0IME ANYIS| NIvLIEE 310N

DY) B TR TTVIE 0N OO

004:1 83

0




Weir/— /7 < Huntsmoor Weir |

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address: . . LONDON BOROUGH
Little Britain Lake OF HILLINGDON
Packet Boat Lane Residents Services
Cowley Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
52368/APP/2017/1844 1:1,250 A
Planning Committee: Date: N

Major p,qe 95| July 2017 BHL LINGDON




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address PROLOGIS PARK WEST LONDON HORTON ROAD YIEWSLEY

Development: Section 73 application for variation of Conditions 5 (approved drawings), 6
(approved documents), 25 (insertion of mezzanine floors) and 27 (use as
data centre) as attached to planning permission ref. 37977/APP/2015/1004
dated 14-12-2015: Hybrid Application for the phased comprehensive
redevelopment of the site to provide an overall maximum gross floorspace of
45,000sgm of light industrial uses (Use Class B1c and/or Use Class B2)
and/or storage and distribution uses (Use Class B8) and ancillary offices,
together with servicing, parking, access roads and open space. Full planning
permission is sought for Phase 1 containing 18,900sgm of floorspace in two
buildings up to 16.2 metres in height (to ridge), together with associated
highways works, open space, hard and soft landscaping, car parking and
associated infrastructure. Outline planning permission is sought for Phase 2
for up to 26,100sgm of floorspace with all matters, except for access,
reserved for later determination.

LBH Ref Nos: 37977/APP/2017/1634

Date Plans Received:  05/05/2017 Date(s) of Amendment(s):

Major Applications Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 196



004/ d / 2EbiE

M e

5N SNINNY 1
s

Ly
3d [ CHES GLOE HIMWH
o ™ Ll

aL1xn siooi0dd
L]

N¥7d NOILYDOT
NOANOT LS3IM "MuVd SID0T0Hd
T

=a | mem m R

00014

NOILYD07 3LIS

BillE o

7
by

71—

-J.ff-.rrr.___ hl | FJF_F

L e ¥ Wy

=

—

|
_JI._

Page 197



S i
S =

. TS0
. i c
wiE
o ey
WE 99 gr/cofs? 00501 i_“_q
[ icsd = = .

sibojoig s
) wafiag

ONINNVId 404 |

)

AnueB may

waang saqui|
SRS ooy ——

Bupuay wssws by ws [
Buifaiay GESIL Aurass ey wE
s Awndas pabuil wan  (20)
3300 Ajunaas Supis MaN (19

L it 2 e

-
—

—
o e e

—
SRR

) 1 69 g0 Wbty

% f
_ i
m b Ling

£
‘&wu?ms Na.—nsa.umqm
Xy

Page 198



s s e o 8
e e L
D071 Bjens
OO ONNOYD H D
Ry AROES A0 Aylanoeg
————_mE S
——— ———
L0050 —— ——— ——
“ % - { - — sy Ajunaas
T o 41 U 80
s osass warg -
wiE = .- ——————
o e — AL .
PAY20/A) 30 03 sauy ~
WO 99 FE0/6E 00EF oV BAEER p0 Ly sy - I/ by
4D ume ) s S Tossan Butisey \ _
pasodaig /_
10014 PUNsS - § 1N
Bummeg
Aguel vasuos o) Pk a i
50 Slari e Jamod ASCIBRS At - ; e ».u____un
[T LK HIMO ADNITHIWS I ! )
FHOUIP I PAGER]
S{0(01g S \ ]
| o N | 1% ¢ {5919 % 0 e G e e A | - 1 S -
| ONINNVd ¥04 : s h
o | _ —— o
| - 1eapdizags apenaud 21110
i moma e A INET S | NSt __

__ g E00 BUSIE YaIew

e By - omadle ] il Anuet 91 Bupen My

I U
_ Yum 20ty sagum Yy w g

Buipping
_h samnd S5gesud Anian

Asmplnog s

Page 199

L 1INN

URALG JaalL
W M Bl parsodong

— i

\__-_---——’-‘

Dl s UG WS ———

Buouny wsaus Kjnoes ybsy wi

\

Bunsics yanew T
o4 it Bippep mosy /

= T P § £ 1 i t 1 1 b
UBARIS-GNS Man ¥ = ———————— L

SuoT umd Man

—-———

SUL1 Aiepupoy —— —

g 0

9

n R R

N ——— v
i (] P S 8 iASe B0



O0E: T DEIS
WO ONNOHD T0
paEIeR aq 0 S|
aaumy Aqunaas P POUSEP L Lo
by W Mo JADSSEI M SATSELD By T -ﬂ.ﬁﬁ
———— ——— ——— —— ——— ———— ——— i —— i —————
e ————— —
WE 99 gifEofez  o0oeil oy s T e
B e men  wes e N P m <
pasodoig
40044 PUNGE) - 7 1IN0 !.......rr.; [, S = &
| 9303} Apisnzas
Bupugg =0 - Yl W M3y
o By 1 :
ezl SR AR 890 a1
= AN WIMOM KNI e sawod Auabmaus LN MO AINISUIHD
o siainied anoqu saiAnD)
! i <330u9p Uil pegsEa
siojig STAA f
g wlog ilpag —
403 3 wpneLs ‘puniadiven wogrenng !
ONINNVId 04 In?u-«u”ﬂﬁ“..ﬂ“.ﬂ.hn el
i e ey o1 pasnfijuooas sheq By —_— [ 51
o 4 oy e sy Aaues sumd

VBRAS MWL
W (v B pasodaiy

Bl s W WG] e

Beiiauiy ysaw Auross wSiy w

Bumsixa yagm H.
a i Bopep vay b

VORES-ns MaN

aunz i NI |

BT} AT =

e
—— —
o -y w0

L3]G e ibizon [y

—
£ e

ARIY SR [ 1A PUR USUBY SN

PR G N
oL BB MaN DO

Fauy Bujuan ]

16801 1 L oy s Buiary
Supuepd Baquua

i 83693 J9qu yBIY W v

